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Overview

Alled Minds 15 an innovative US-focused science and technology development and commerciaiisation
company The Group commenced operations in 2006 to invest in and advance science and technology
innovation developed at many of the leading US universities  Our business model 1s to form, fund, manage
and buld start-up companies which undertake research and product development and ulbmately to
commercialise the scientfic research and innovations emerging from the universiies and US federal
research insttutions with which we ¢ollaborate

The Group currently has 22 subsidiary businesses at varying stages of matunty across the life sciences
and high technology sectors with a range of technologrcal innovations in medical devices, biologics,
pharmaceutical compounds, cyber secunty, wireless communications, semiconductors, medical

diagnostics and food safety
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Chairman’s Report

It gives me great pleasure to present our first annual
report as a public company and to welcome you as a
shareholder in Alled Minds plc

| am pleased to note that 2014 was a year of
significant mulestones for the Group, with strong
performance and third-party equity investments
dnving a meaningful increase in the value of the
Group Both the Group and its subsidiary businesses
had a very active year The execution of a successiul
inial public offenng (IPO) on the Main Market of the
London Stock Exchange, raising gross proceeds
of $155 0 millton, was the highlight of the first half
of 2014, and provided the Group with the capital
necessary to support its business strategy and long-
term growth

Investment Model and Opportunity

The funding of basic research to generate new intellectual property (IP) 1s now largely driven by government
sources, be it through higher educaticn systems or directly funded research bodies Once created, these
ideas require an effective, efficient and sustainable channe! to develop and mature nto products or services
which can benefit the wider economy

A strong economy requires innovation to drve new products, new markets and ultimately enhance
productmity and promote employment There are a number of paths to commercialising promising
technology, the most obvious bemng the formation of a new company The disruptive force of start-ups has
been shown to be a significant driver of innovation and an iImportant and necessary feature of productive,
growing economies

In our experience there 1s no shortage of high-quality IP being generated by research institutions, particulary
inthe United States where Alled Minds cperates What is often lacking 1s an active and supportive eco-system
to enable start-ups to mature and evolve into high-growth, impactful and valuable companies Bullding a
successful start-up 1s not easy and requires not only great ideas, but also high-quality management and
consistent access to capital, ideally delvered within a model which can also ensure high-fidelity control and
governance Above all, start-ups often require considerable time to mature in order to truly delver value

Competition for investment funds amongst different asset classes 1s driving the need for shorter investment
time frames Few venture funds have the flexibility or the operational emphasis to focus on early-stage
investment n IP-centnic projects This has meant that many venture investors, particularly n the US, have
increasingly focused on internet and media deals with the inevitable escalation of asset valuations True
early-stage investment in IP-based start-ups still remains a relatively rare commodity

| belleve we are seeing the emergence of a new type of investment model to help address this problem,
which is better sutted for bulding the next generation of technclogy companies and seeks to deliver above
average returns for investors These public venture companies focus on developing portfolios of IP-based
early-stage start-ups and seek to help build them into companies over a much longer time horizon, providing
capital and management support along the way
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Chairman’s Report continueq)

| am proud to say that Alled Minds has been at the forefront of pioneenng this mode! in the US and 1s
its leading proponent The United States 1s the most important market in the world for both generating
valuable technclogy and In consuming the end product or services The market opportunity facing our
company 1S truly enormous, we are the market leader in the leading markst

In utitstng the strengths of our INvestment model and successfully executing to our strategic plan, | believe
there 1s every opportunity to take Ailed Minds to the next ievel as one of the most significant and valuable
global technology dnven businesses

People

Ouring the year and in anticipation of our IPO, we reviewed the Board composition and welcomed two new
independent Directors, Peter Dolan and Jeff Rohr Peter has 30 years of operating expenence, including 18
years at Bnstol-Myers Squibb, where he served as Chairman and CEOQ He is currently the Chairman of the
Board of Trustess of Tufts University in Massachusetts Jeff has 30 years of senior management expenence
at Deloitte LLP, hawving tast served in the role of Vice Chairman and Chief Financia! Officer

In order that wa fully comply with UK corporate governance guidelines, the Group Charrrman needs to
be an independent director and accordingly | will be standing down at our forthcoming Annual General
Meeting | am delighted to report that Peter, who currently serves as the Senior fndependent Director, has
agreed to transition to the role of Non-Exscutive Chairman | will remam on the Group Board in an axecutive
capacity In the short term but intend to step down from the Board later in the year, although | expect to stay
actively engaged with the Group The Nominatton Committes 1s actively considenng adding an additional
independent director in the near future

We are fortunate at Allied Minds to have a dynarmic and dedicated group of pecple both at the corporate
level and at our subsidiary businesses who are all determined to build further on the success we have had
to date The Group would not be in the position t is today without the contnbutions of our employees and,
as always, | am proud of and thankful for therr efforts On behalf of the Board | also want to express our
particular thanks to those employees directly involved in the stock market listing for their tremendous hard
work and dedication

Finally, I would like to formally note my thanks to all the Group's stakeholders, but particularty for the strong
support from shareholders for the Group's IPO and subsequent subsidiary financings

Outlock

It has been both a highly active and excring year for the Group | believe that the Group's track record and
experhse in its field, coupled with extensive US university and US federal research institution partnerships,
and strong balance sheet, leaves Alled Minds well placed to continue to generate significant value for
shareholders over the medium and long term | look forward to the future with much confidence

Mark Pritchard
Executive Chairman

28 Apni 2015

Page 4 of 152




ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014 ALLIED MINDS

Highlights

Perniod Highlights

Corporate X

Completed successful initial public offenng {(IPO), and admission to the premiumn listing segment of the
Official List of the UK Listing Authonty and to trading on the Main Market of the London Stock Exchange
(LSE), raising proceeds of $155 0 million

New Businesses
Formed and funded four new busmesses

* Alled-Bnstol Life Sciences (ABLS), n collaboration with Bristol-Myers Squibb, to identfy and foster
research and pre-clnical development of biopharmaceutical innovations

* Seamless Devicas, with technology from Columbia University, to develop a novel signal processing
techruque for analog to digital converters

* Percipient Networks, with technology from The MITRE Corporation, to develop next-generation
secunty technologies for enterpnse network defence

* Whitewood Encryption Systems, with technology from Los Alamos National Laboratory, to develop
the next-generation systems of data encryption that leverage advanced quantum cryptography
technologies

Team

Hired additional key senior leadership at Alied Minds and its subsidianes, including the first General
Counsel of the Group, a new Vice President to lead the partnerships with US research universities, and
new expenenced CEOs at each of ABLS, Federated Wireless, Novare Pharmaceuticals and Optio Labs, as
well as an overall increase of more than 90 new employees and consultants dunng the year

investment
Attracted third-party investment and grants directly into several subsidianes, including

* Spin Transfer Technologies, In connection with a $70 0 millon equity financing

= Optic Labs, in connection with a $10 0 million equity financing

s SiEnergy, which was awarded a $2 65 milion US government ARPA-E REBELS grant
Valuation

Increased Group Subsidiary Ownership Adjusted Value (GSOAV) from $367 3 milion to $488 0 million, an
increase of $120 7 million, or 32 9%

Subsidiary Milestones
Achieved numerous technical milestones, including

s STT completing its first phase of integration of magnetic and CMOS wafer technology to demonstrate
the technology's capability to integrate with existing fabncation processes standard i the industry

* SciFluecr advancing two lead compounds through key in-vivo, pra-clintcal tests, successiully testing its
retinal disease lead in a leading choroid neovascular study in rabbits, and successfully testing its tead
focused on neurological disease through an agency within the US National Institutes of Health (NIH})
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Highlights (continued)

¢ RF Bioodics quadrupling revenues dunng 2014 to $6 5 milion, acquinng a 28 5% interest in its supplier
Stalarm SpA in Italy, & manufacturer of radio frequency equipment, and successfully launching its new
fourth generation APEX machine

* Precision Biopsy continuing development of its commercial system n preparation for eventual
regulatory submissions, successfully completing in-vivo human feasibiity study in patients undergoing
prostatectomies, and addtional testing of ex-vive post-prostatectomy showing favourable results when
compared to traditronal pathology

* LuxCath demonstrating real time heart lesion visuahsation proof of concept system in iarge animals
using LuxCath catheter system, expanding potential applications by incorporating LuxCath optics into
feading 3rd party ablation catheters, and demonstrating real-time tissue contact assessment as well
as cardiac lesion progression monitonng in amimals, all while prepanng for First-In-Man studies with a
leading cardiologrst in 2015

intellectual Property
Received grant of numerous patents, including two patents granted by the US Patent and Trade Office to
SciFluor for clams covenng novel compounds for retinal and neurological diseases

Partner Network
Welccmed three new universities and seven new federal laborateones to the Alled Minds partner network

Financial Highlights

Net cash and deposits* $261 5m (2013 $104 6m)
Revenue $7 7m (2013 $29m)
Net loss $57 9m (2013 $42 7m), of which 345 6m (2013 $34 5m)

attributable to Alled Minds

Group Subsidiary Ownership Adjusted  $488 Om (2013 $367 3m), an tncrease of 32 9%

Value (GSOAV)

Share pnice performance 367p at 31 December 2014, an increase of 93 2% over the imtial
public offering price of 190p at 25 June 2014, welcomed to the
FTSE 250 n December 2014

* includes excess cash in form of fixed ncome secunties

Post-Year-End Highlights

e In February 2015, Alled Minds formed and funded BndgeSat, in collaboration with The Aerospace
Corporation, Draper Laboratory, Massachusetts Instiiute of Technology Assistant Professor Dr Kermn L
Cahoy and the graduate student team in the Space, Telecommunications, Astronomy, and Radiation
(STAR) Laboratory, to develop an optical connectvity systerm that aims to increase the speed, secunty
and efficiency of data transrmissions from Low Earth Orbit {LEQ) satellites compared to traditional radio
frequency solutions
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Highlights (continueq)

In Apnl 2015, SciFluor successfully rased $30 0 million n a Senes A preferred stock financing
Sgnificant participants in the funding round were Invesco Asset Management and Woodford Investment
Management, demonstrating ther continued support for the commercialisation medel of academic and
federal research pioneered in the US by Alled Minds

In Apnl 2015, Optio Labs purchased the assets of Maryland-based secunty company Ocuks Labs, and

its CEQ, Dr Bill Anderson, joined Optio Labs as Chief Product Officer Oculis Labs develops products
that protect data displayed on a user's computer and mobile device screen from visual eavesdroppers

In Apnl 2015, the Federal Communications Commission (FCC), in a unanimous decisicn, approved the
formal Rute & Order governing the dynamic shanng of federal spectrum in the 3 5 GHz band, thereby
ensuring the necessary regulatory authonty for Federated Wireless to go to market with its proprietary

Spectrum Access System
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CEO’s Report

| am pleased to present my first report as Alled Minds pic's CEQ
Alled Minds has been at the forefront of developing a US-based
public venture company that creates, invests in, and actively
manages high-potential technology businesses Prior to our
London Stock Exchange listing on 25 June 2014, Allied Minds
dedicated itsslf to bulding a strong foundation to this purpose
Before our lsting, we created and managed 18 subsidiary
businesses, employed more than 200 people, of which 125 held
advanced degrees, including 65 PhDs, and developed a robust
pipeline emanating from a network of 64 leading US universities
and federal research centres of excellence Durng the IPO
roadshow, the Charrman and | outfined Alked Minds' near-term
objectives, which were to mvest in (with third party participation)
the acceleration of key subsidiary businesses, to create the
Group’s first corporate partnership with a major international
conglomerate, to progress the commercial development across our portfolio of businesses, and to create
new high-impact businesses | am happy to report that Alled Minds accomplished all of these objectives

The Group's significant expertise across a range of science and technaology disciplines, its highly skilled
workforce, as well as its capital resources, allowed 1t to expand upon 1ts strong foundations Since mid-2014,
Allied Minds attracted third-party investment and grants and co-nvested $123 milion into Spin Transfer
Technologies (STT), Optio Labs, SiEnergy, Alied-Bnstol Life Sciences (ABLS) and SciFluor In August 2014,
we formed ABLS, a partnership with Bnstol-Myers Squibb (BMS), to create 10 new businesses that am
to develop novel biopharmaceutical assets Further, the Group estabhshed collaborations with additicnal
unversity and federal labs that led to the formation of new businesses, and continued to progress ongoing
scientific research and development for the commercialisation of products n its portfolio

Allled Minds 1s bullding a dversified portfolio of businesses in the life and high-technology sectors | believe
that the US continues to produce a wealth of potentially world-class intellectual property from its unwersities
and federal government laboratones, and that the Group s well-positioned te continue to back IP-based
early-stage projects and businesses given its strong track record, patient development timelines, strong
management and cash position The Group aims to achiave growth and value creation over the medium
and long term as its subsidiary businesses’ products and services mature through the commercialisation
cycle

Milestones Achieved

Allled Minds has access to an extensive array of intellectual property and technology opportunities in the
US through its network of universiies and federal government laboratones In 2014, our partner network
grew to 68 partners, to include the addition of three new universities and seven new federal laboratones
University of Massachusetts, Lowell, Worcester Polytechnic Institute, University of Texas, San Antanio,
Los Alamos National Laboratory, Oak Ridge National Laboratory, Pacific Northwest National Laboratory,
Sandia National Laboratones, Georgia Tech Research Institute, MITRE National Cyber Secunty Centre of
Excellence, and Charles Stark Draper Laboratory
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CEO’s Report (continued)

The partner network and technology pipeline led tha Group to form three new businesses

+ Seamless Devices, with technology from Columbia University, to develop a novel signal processing
technique for analog to digitat converters,

* Percipiant Networks, with technology from The MITRE Corporation, to develop next-generation secunty
technologres for enterpnse network defence, and

+  Whitewood Encryption Systems, with techrology from Los Alamos National Laboratory, to develop next-
generation systems of data encryption that leverage advanced quantum cryptography technologies

2014 also marked the year that we completed our first corporate partnership We teamed with BMS to
form ABLS to identify and foster research and pre-clinical development of biopharmaceutical innovations
ABLS plans to create 10 subsidiary companies, each developing a novel biopharmaceutical asset with the
mtention of exiting the subsidiary business to BMS at the end of pre-clinical development

Qur subsidiary businesses progressed well iIn 2014, achieving numerous technical milestones Notably,
STT completed its first phase of integratton of magnetic and CMOS wafer technology, demonstrating the
technology's capability to integrate with existing fabncation processes that are standard in the industry The
Group also saw significant growth mn its intellectual property estate, receving grant of numerous patents,
including two by the US Patent and Trade Office to SciFluor for clams covening the novel compounds for
retinat and neurclogical diseases

Aliled Minds attracted third-party investment and grants directly into several subsichanes, including a
$70 0 milhon equity financing in STT, a $10 0 milion nvestment in the formation of ABLS, a $10 0 milion
equity financing in Optio Labs, and a $2 65 million US government ARPA-E REBELS grant for SIEnergy

The Group Subsidiary Ownership Adjusted Value increased to $488 O milion as of 31 December 2014 from
$367 3 milkon at 31 December 2013, an increase of $120 7 milion, or 32 9%

Continuing Momentum

Allled Minds has continued this progress into 2015 The Group recently announced the formation and
funding of BndgeSat, which 1s developing an optical connectmty system that aims to increase the speed,
secunty and efficiency of data transmissions from Low Earth Orbit (LEQ) satellites compared to tradiional
radio frequency solutons BndgeSat was formed in collaboration with The Aercspace Corporation, Draper
Laboratory, Massachusetts Institute of Technology Assistant Professor Dr Kerr L Cahoy, and the graduate
student team n the Space, Telecommunications, Astronomy, and Radiation (STAR) Laboratory

In addition, SciFluor recently raised a $30 0 million equity financing, which included $25 2 million of third-
party funds, to commence chnical tnals of its patent-protected compounds in retinal and neurological
diseases

The Group also has two additional transactions near completicn ABLS |, LLC was formed to execute on the
first project approved for investment under our ABLS partnership with BMS  This project invalves licensing
ntellectual property with respect to prostate oncology from an vy League institution, and proceeding to
pre-chirical evaluation and development In addiion, ABLS 1, LLC was formed to execute on a second
project approved for investment This project involves licensing intellectual property with respect to fibrotic
diseases from a second Ivy League nstitution, and proceeding to pre-chnical evaluation and development
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CEO’s Report (continued)

The Group s currently assassing new technologies we believe can have a significant commercial impact We
have 13 technologies in final dus dilgence and 89 technologies in early due diligence The Group expects
that its significant technology pipeline 1s ikely to lead to the creation of a number of new subsidianes dunng
the remamder of 2015, and aims to form and fund 5 to 10 new projects annually

We continue to scale and add resources at the Group and its subsidiary businesses Since the IPO, we
have added an additional 98 employees and contractors across cur businesses QOur total workiorce has
reached 298 employees and contractors, of which 180 hold advanced degrees, including 87 PhDs We
intend to strengthen our highly skilled workforce as business needs require

Outlook

As we continue to buid from our strong foundation, the momentum we achieved with a successful IPO, and
the meeting of the near-term goals set out dunng the IPQ process, | belreve Alled Minds 1s well positioned
for meaningful further growth In 2015, we will continue 1o focus on the commercial advancement of our
subsidary businesses, ntend to nvest further in our businesses and together with third-party imvestment
where appropnate, expand our portfolio of high-impact businesses, and add key industry managers and
expertise to the Group Importantly, as the Group and the subsidiary businesses mature, we aspire to attract
new corporate allances, which wa believe will further validate our modet and the commercial potential of
the subsidianes Future corporate collaboratiens could include co-development agreements, licensing, jont
ventures, and direct equity investment The Company and s businesses are well positioned for continued
execution excellence, commercial maturation and sxpansion, which should result in increased value for
sharehoclders over the medium and long term  In closing, | believe the outlook for Alied Minds 1s strong

Chris Silva
Chief Executive Officer

28 Aprl 2015
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Company Overview

Alled Minds 15 an innovative US-focused science and technology development and commercialisation
company The Group commenced operations 1n 2006 to invest in and advance science and technology
innovation developed at many of the leading US univarsities The Company’s business model 1 to forrn,
fund, manage and build start-up companies which undertake research and product development and
ultirately to commercialise scientific research and innovations emerging from US universities, and scientific
research and innovations emerging from US federal research instituhions and laboratories

Alled Minds’ strategy 1 to buld a signficant and diversified group of businesses and achieve strong
growth over the medium to long term through the maturation of its products through the commercialisation
cycle Alled Minds' business mode! centralises the support functions at the Group level, thereby enabling
s businesses to focus efforts pnmanly on commercialisation actvities whilst achieving operational and
financial efficiency We believe one of the foundations of the Group's strategy 15 its ability to access a wide
range of innovative scientific research and technology by leveraging its relabionships with leading research
nstitutions In total, the Group currently has relationships wath 88 research universities and US federal
government laboratones, providing it with an extensive pipeline of scientific and technologrcal innovations
from which the Group can dentify technology for potential development to commercially wable products

Since nception, the Group has invested significant capital and resources in companies that focus onlaboratory
based scientdfic research and product development This has enabled Alled Minds to successfully progress
and complete testing of a number of iInnovative products The Group currently compnses 22 subsiciary
businesses In the Iife sciences and high technology sectors based upon a broad range of underlying
innovative technologies ranging from molacular compounds to memaory integrated circuit technology Allied
Minds benefits from a highly skilted workforce, with significant expertise throughout the Group across a
range of science and technology disciplines The Group has 298 employeas and consultants of whom 180
hold advanced degrees and 87 have PhDs (as at 31 March 2015) By leveraging this expertise, and through
its extensive research and development activity to date, Allied Minds has estabhished a significant portfolio
of intellectual property to suppoert and protect its research and innovation

Allled Minds 1s structured as a dwersified holding company with a strong central management team active
n the strategic development of its subsidiary businesses We believe this is a key distinguishing feature
of the Cormpany when compared with investment funds Allied Minds’ core am is to focus on early-stage
disruptive technologies that it believes have significant upside potential and to realise that potential through
supporting commercial development

The Opportunity

The US is the world's largest market for R&D investment The investment by the US federal government
in research through the nation's unversities, federal laboratories, and non-profit insttutions generates
innovations and mventions with considerable commercial potential These innovations and inventions result
in thousands of US patent applications per annum Though US urversities and federal research institutions
have an established technology transfer process designed to commercialise this intellectual property, they
face a number of challenges Marketing early-stage innovations to investors that often seek lower-nisk,
more mature technologies 1s challenging Universities also often lack the resources necessary to adeguately
and efficiently identify the most marketable opportunities, coordinate between technology transfer offices
and researchers to render opportunities marketable, and locate investors and entrepreneurs to hicence the
invention and carry concepts forward As a result, many uriversities licence only a relatively small number
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Company Overview (continued)

of patents a year from a base of thousands, of which only a small fraction progress to the next stage of
development

Alled Minds was established with the otjective of collaborating with universities, and subsaquently, US
federal government labs, to better identify high-potenbial innovations and inventions at an early stage, and
subsequently icensing those nventions into subsidianes formed and funded by the Company By providing
requisite commercial direction and management talent together with funding the research and product
development actmties of its businesses, we believe Alled Minds has the potental to be able to unlock the
rmarket potential inherent in promising technologies

QOur Strategy

Alled Minds ams to identfy, develop and commerciahse potentially transformatve technologies The
Company seeks to maximise growth by creating new businesses bassed around innovative intellectual
property Alled Minds 1s actively engaged in focused scientific research and product development within its
businesses, with the objective of bringing commercially viable products to significant identifiable markets
The Company's objectve 1s to builld its businesses into commercially successful and valuable enterpnses

A key component of the Company's strategy 1s to maintan strict capital discipline within an operationally
efficient model for new companies while the commercial viability of the technology 1s explored and tested

The Company aims to ensure that only when there are sufficient additional proof ponts that the technology
15 satsfactonly de-nsked and could succeed commercially, 1s additional scale-up capital provided

Should those proof points no longer support on-going commerciaiisation activity, a subsidiary's business
IS terminated As part of Alled Minds' strategy it 15 recogrised that falure 1s an inherent but necessary
component of commercialising scientific research

In order to execute this strategy, and more broadly to ensure aignment of stakeholder interests, we believe
that for early-stage businesses tt 1s important to retain control of projects Accordingly, the Company
currently maintains operating control of all of its businesses and we anticipate maintaining such control for
as long as practical subject to the demands and needs of each subsidiary and the overall management of
the Company's business

We review the development path of each business on an on-going basis and, at the appropriate tima, it 1S
expected that each business will look to secure strategic, commercial and capital partners, as appropnate,
with a view to accelerate and maximise value appreciation Where the commercial potential of a business
ments significant further nvestment, we may deem it to be in the best interests of the Company to dilute our
shareholding in that business to below 50% In such circumstances, we believe that Allied Minds 15 likely to
remain the largest shareholder for a further penod and should therefore retain influence over the strategic
direction of the businesses for that penod

The Company's strategy 1s to drive each subsidiary business toward commercialisation but ¢ does not
mandate a specific imeline in which this has to be accomphshed The development time of each technology
can vary enormously, particularly if regulatory approvals need to be secured before the product can reach
the market Inherent in the commercialisation strategy 1s a belef that realisation of assets should not be
attempted until significant value inflection milestones have been reached These milestones are typically
commercial traction and revenue generation
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Company Overview (continued)

Achievement of such milestones is expected to provide the Board with strategic flexibifity to explore a range
of avenues for valus realisation, including initial public offerings, trade sales (in whole or In part), licensing
arrangements and joint ventures

Our Business Model and Approach

Since inception, Alled Minds has sought to deliver the commercial potential of selected university owned
early-stage intellectual property by working with technology transfer coffices (TTOs) and establishing a
structure to form, fund, manage and build start-up companies 1o develop innovative tachnologies Allied
Minds maintains regular contact with its university partners, which includes Allied Minds campus visits and
Interaction between Alled Minds staff and university technology transfer personnel and researchers The
strategic relatonships that Allied Minds maintams with universities provide Allied Minds with direct access to
scientfic research which 1s potentially capable of developing into transformative technologies and products

As an extension of its university model, in September 2012, Aled Minds reached agreements for first-of-
therr-kind Public Private Partnerships (PPP) with several US Department of Defence laboratones and federal
government agencies, and subsequently reached agreements with other federal government agencies such
as the Department of Homeland Secunty and the Department of Energy Under these PPPs, the Company
typically receves certan access and licensing rights to inventions ongnating from the US Department
of Defence laboratones and other faderal government agencies We believe that these PPPs create a
closer relationship between the Company and the respective institutions, thereby increasing the amount of
potential deal flow avalable in new ntellectual property for the Company

Through these collaborative relationships with research universities and federal government laboratones,
the Company and the corresponding research institutions wark together to form, fund, manage and build
early stage companies to commercialise US mnovation

Form

The Company’s extensive network of relationships with universities and US federal government laboratones
provides access to the outcome of substantial research and development expenditure In 2014, Alled
Minds evaluated approximately 2,160 potential projects from across a broad range of university and
federal laboratones and addressing a broad range of underlying technologies These proposals frequently
represent the culmination of years of scientific research within university and federal government laboratory
environments

Using a screening and investment selection process and supported by data on technical ment, commercial
potential and patentabiiity, we beleve Allled Minds 1s able to make timely and effective decisions on which
projects ment further consideration We believe that use of this opportunity assessment system and the
efficiency of this process can substantally reduce transactional costs and enhance tmely and effective
decision making for the Group

In order for a project to proceed past the first review stage, it must score highly in terms of a number of
key technical assessment critena The starting point for this process 1s an assessment of the science that
underping the project As part of this assessment, projects are assessed on the following critena value
proposition, advantaged technology, inial commercial apphication, addressable market, business model,
potential intellectual property protection, competitive landscape, and regulatory path, if applicable
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Company Overview (continued)

Approximately 5% of those projects reviewed are typically selected for further evaluation At this stage
Allled Minds coordinates the involvement of domain experts, academic peers and, in certain cases, external
adwvisers to perform a deeper evaluation of the scientific and commercial potential of the project Following
this second review stage, approximately 1% of those projects initizlly reviewed are selected for detaled
due diigence The Company's full due diigence process involves coordination with the inventor(s) and
institution to gan acceptance of the Alled Minds operating mode! as well as preparation of a detalled
product and business development plan and budget structured around key milestones We intend to form
five to tan new projects per annum N the near and medium term

After selecting a project, Alled Minds typically establishes a subsiciary that receives a licence for the
commercial nghts (which 1s normally exclusive subject to certain exceptions) to the underlying intellectual
property The subsidiary 15 usually majonty owned by Allied Minds in either a imited lrabiity company or
incorporated structure, with the onginating unversity and inventor(s} each typically receving a minonty
shareholding in that entity

Fund

Following the due dikgence procedures to identify the technology and form a subsidiary to ncubate, develop
and ulimately commercialise such technology, the subsidiary and partner university or federal govermment
agency often enter into a sponsored research agreement [SRA), cooperative research and development
agreement (CRADA) or equivalent Pursuant to such agreements, the subsidiary will work with the partner
and fund a targeted scope of research, focused on validating the core scientific principles of the intellectual
property, to be performed by the principal nvestigator (Pl) and other personnel gualified to advance the
science This approach to developing technology allows an Alled Minds subsidiary to evaluate the progress
and lkelthood of commercial success of a technology prior to making a significant additional commitment
to fund, develop and commercialise such technology

Following this inhial seed funding from the Company, Alled Minds ams to provide further incremental
funding to support the scientific ressarch and product davelopment activity within its subsidianes

Disbursement of funding and future rounds of financing for further research and development are often
based on achievement of key milestones, which are designed to measure technological and commercial
progress Where a project has faled to deliver sufficient additional proof points, no longer supports on-
going development and commercialisation actwity, and cannot be successfully redirected to an alternative
commercial path, Alled Minds will look to terminate the investment early Since inception, Alled Minds has
terminated 11 underperforming businesses having spent approximately $1 0 million, on average, on each
business

As its businesses mature further, Allied Minds will also seek funding from third parties for its businesses
should it be In the Group’s strategic interests to do so Alled Minds has a frack record with certain
institutional investors which have co-invested with Alled Minds to finance Hs subsidiary businesses

Manage

Alled Minds actvely manages and monitors its businesses as they advance research and product
development actmty towards commercialisation Dunng the early stages, Alhed Minds typically utilises
technical and executive leadership to provide oversight of progress of its businesses toward preliminary
milestones As those businesses evolve, Alked Minds actively contnbutes to the board composition of
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Company Overview (continued)

the compares and often appoints externally sourced dedicated management to advance the businesses
towards commercialsation Scientific adwvisors are often integrated into the decision making processes to
ensure the appropnate techrmical direction is pursued We believe the Company 1s well placed to continue
to attract talented executives to its businesses

Allied Minds expects to directly control each start-up company in its early stages, and retain board seats
in the later stages of such company’'s development Throughout this process, Alled Minds expects to
continue to directly provide strategic and other adwvice or retain expert advisors for the businesses, as
needed

k)

Build

Alled Minds applies a structured approach to bullding the business infrastructure that 1s cntical to the
growth of its businesses In addition to providing executive leadership, Alied Minds can prowide sales
and marketing research, consulting, competitive analysis, technology analysis, commercial development
support, shared services such as payroll and IT support, and operational advice In doing so, Alhed Minds'
business model mantains central support funchons at Group level, thereby enabling its businesses to
focus on research and product developrnent activity whilst achieving operational and financial efficiency
We believe that the support provided to each of the Group's businesses distinguishes them from many
comparably-sized and -aged businesses in terms of avalabiity of resources that ard n ther planning and
decision making

Alhed Minds 1s focused on pursuing projects with the objective of bnnging commercially viable products to
signficant identifiable markets Accordingly, we evaluate on an on-going basis the progress and potential
of each of the Company’s businesses, and take strategy and funding decisions based on the achievement
of key milestones The Company's policy 1s, wherever feasible, to look for each subsidiary to capture early
revenue as a means of commercially valdating the technology and business case
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Portfolio Summary

Dunng 2014, the Group, together with third parties, deployed $125 0 milton of capital into the Gompany's
businesses, which includes, together with the ardinary course annual funding of the subsidianes, the $10 0
milhon invested m ABLS at formation, and the equity financing transactions at STT ($70 Om), Optio Labs
($10 0m) and Federated Wireless (35 Om) Alked Minds currently has maonty ownership In, or operating
control of, all of its subsidiary investments, and continues to nvest In and support its most promising
companies Below we provide an overview of our current existing subsidiary companies, including year
formed, and Allisd Minds' ownership interest

Year Ownership
Subsidiary Formed  iInterest Overview

Life Sciences

Allied-Bnstol Life Sciences, LL.C 2014 80 00% Created with Bnstol-Myers Squitb to
identify and foster research and pre-
clinical development of biopharmaceutical
nnovations, and convert discovenes from
university research institutions into therapeutic
candidates for chinical development

ABLS |, LLC 2014 80 00% Fommed to execute the first ABLS project
approved for investment, this project involves
icensing intellectual property with respect
to prostate oncoltogy from an lvy League
institution, and proceeding to pre-clinical
evaluation and development

ABLS I, LLC 2014 80 00% Formed to execute the second ABLS project
approved for investment, this project mvolves
Icensing intellectual property with respect to
fibrotic diseases from a second Ivy League
institution, and proceeding to pre-clinical
evaluahcn and development

Biotectix, LLC 2007 64 35% Aiming to enable the next generation of
implantable electrostimulation and sensing
products through the development of
propnetary, gh-performance, conducting
polymer coatings

Cephalogics, LLC 2006 95 00% Developing a non-invasive, bedside
neuroimaging system, which seeks to mprove
monitenng of patients with neurological injury

CryoXtract Instruments, LLC 2008 93 24% A suite of automated product solutions that
seeks to allow the global scientific community
to access valuable frozen biogsamples without
exposing them to damaging freeze/thaw
cycles
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Portfolio Summary (continued)

Year Ownership
Subsidiary Formed Interest® Overview

Life Sciences (continued)

tuxCath, LLC 2012 98 00% A catheter-based real-time tissue and lasion
visualisation technology for potential use
dunng cardiac ablation procedures initially
focused on atnal fibnllation ablation

Precision Biopsy, LLC 2008 80 35% A medical device platform utiising tissue
spectroscopy, which seeks to distinguish
tissue charactenstics in real-time and seeks
to guide clinicians toward areas of disease for
optimum therapy inttially focused on prostate

)
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cancer
ProGDerm, Inc d/b/a Novare 2008 90 38% A biologic that ams to represent a natura
Pharmaceuticals approach to generate subcutaneous fat to

enhance the appearance of skin using the
body's own processes

SciFluor Life Scences, Inc 2010 69 94% Developing a portfolio of propnetary
compounds by harnessing the
transformational power of fluonne with a view
to eptimising drug discovery and accelerating
the clinical development of innovative new
therapeutics

SoundCure, Inc 2009 84 62% Developed an FDA-cleared consumer medical
device for tinnitus therapy offering customised
acocustic technology

High Technology
Alled Minds Federal 2012 100 00% Through a senes of public-private partnerships
Innovations, Inc {PPPs}) with the US federal government,
ams to develop and commercialise the next
generation of transformative technologies from
US federal research institutions
BridgeSat, Inc 2015 100 00% Developing an optical connectivity system
that ams to increase the speed, secunty
and efficiency of data transmissions from
Low Earth Ortut {LEQ) satellites compared to
traditional radio frequency solutions
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Portfolio Summary (continuea)

Year Ownership

Subsidiary

Formed

Interest "  Overview

High Technology (contnued)
Federated Wireless, Inc

Foreland Technologies, Inc

Optio Labs, Inc
Percipient Networks, LLC

RF Biocidics, Inc

Seamless Devices, Inc

SiEnergy Systems, LLC

Spin Transfer Technologies, Inc

Whitewood Encryption
Systems, Inc

Notes

2012

2013

2012

2014

2008

2014

2007

2007

2014

90 88% Focused on enabling technologies for the
next-generation of wireless communications
by seeking to mprove supply, demand,
and delivery of spectrum for future cellular
communications

100 00% A cyber secunty platform company which
ams to discover, incubate and commercialise
emerging technologies

81 23% Developar of mobile secunty technologies for
the evolving cyber operating environment

100 00% Developing next-generation secunty
technologies for enterpnse network defence

67 14% Developer of equipment that seeks to disinfect
food from insects and pathogens through a
process that does not use chemicals

79 85% Developer of semiconductor devices using a
nove! approach to analog signal processing,
bulding upon patented switched-mods signal
processing technology and algonthms

100 00% Developing thin film low tamperature sold
oxide fuel cells that seek to bring efficient, and
affordable clean energy systems for broad w
application ‘

48 40% MRAM computer memory that 1s being
developed with the aspiration of becoming a
leachng universal memory technolagy in the
$60 bilion per annum worldwide computer
memory market

100 00% Develop the next-generation systems of data
encryption that leverage advanced quantum
cryptography technologies uniquely capable
of meeting intensrfying market demand for
secure, computationally efficient, and low-
latency encryption

{1} Ownership interests are as at 27 Apnl 2015 {being the latest practicable date pnor to the publication ¢f this Annual Report) Alled
Minds' ownership of SciFluor was 79 00% as at 31 December 2014, pnor to a funding round (invohang both Alied Minds and
external nvastors) of $30 0 milion in Aprl 2015 Alled Minds ownership of Optic Labs was 79 86% as at 31 December 2014,
pnor to its final contnbution and purchase of shares in January 2015 1n the $10 0 million financing round  Alhed Minds ownership
of Seamless Devicas was 80 00% as at 31 December 2014, pnor to an exercise of employee stock options that reduced its

ownership percerage
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Subsidiary Valuation

The Group currently has 22 subsidiary businesses, whose activities are pnncipally in the life sciences and
high technology sectors

All of the Company's subsidiary companies are currently majonty owned and/or controlled and therefore
fully consolidated in the Company’s consolidated financial statements prepared Iin accordance wath
international Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) As a result, the Consolidated Staterments of Financial
Position incorporated within the Company’s consolidated financial statements do not include current
valuations of the Company's subsidiary compames As a means of promoting transparency, we zlso
present, as supplementary information, ownership adjusted valuations of sach ¢f the Group's top ten
subsidiary businesses by value, as well as an aggregated sum-of-the-parts vatuation of all the Group's
subsidiary businesses This supplementary valuation disclosure has been prepared on the basis of the
Amencan institute of Certified Public Accountants' Valuation of Privately-Held-Company Equity Securities
Issued as Compensation (AICPA Gudelines) The AICPA Guidelines do not represent, but are consistent
with valuation principles adopted under IFRS The subsidiary company valuations are not presented as
alternative measures to, and should be read in conjunction with, the Company’s consolidated financial
information prepared in accordance with IFRS as set out in this Annual Report

There ¢an be no guarantee that the aforementioned valuation of the Group will be considered to be correct
in hght of the future performance of the vanous Group businesses, or that the Group would be able to realise
proceeds In the amount of such valuations, or at all, in the event of a sale by it of any of its subsidiarnes

At the close of each annual financial period, the Directors formally approve the value of all subsidiary
businesses in the Group which s used to denve the “Group Subsidiary Ownership Adjusted Valug” The
Group Subsidiary Ownership Adjusted Value was $488 0 million as at 31 December 2014, as set out In
the table below, which has been extracted withcut matenal adjustment from the Company’s consoldated
financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS as set out in this Annual Report We believe there
has been no significant change in the Group Subsidiary Ownership Adjusted Value since 31 December
2014
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Subsidiary Valuation (continued)

The Group Subsidiary Ownership Adjusted Value (GSQAV) of $488 0 million as of 31 December 2014,
compared to $367 3 mulion at 31 December 2013, was an increase of $120 7 milion, or 32 8%

Allied Minds Total QAV as at OAV as at
Invested Invested 31 December 31 December
Capital Capital 2014 2013
Subsidiary Business $'000 $°000 $'000 $'000
Early Stage
Spin Transfer Technologes, Inc 285 107 5 1210 769
SciFluor Life Sciences, Inc 178 431 914 308
Cptio Labs, Inc 91 116 328 330
Cephalogics, LLC B2 82 223 225
ProGDerm, Inc d/b/a Novare
Pharmacseuticals 39 39 167 1586
Precision Biopsy, LLC 75 75 162 159
SiEnergy Systems, LLC 72 72 153 227
Commercial Stage
RF Biocidics, Inc 234 314 69 6 62 8
CryoXtract instruments, LLL.C 12¢ 129 178 165
SoundCure, Inc 163 163 115 143
Top 10 Subsidianes by Value 4146 3110
Other Subsidiares 3086 328 734 563
Group Subsidiary Ownership
Adjusted Value 488 0 367 3
Notes

{1) Ownership adjusted value represents Alied Minds' interest in the equity value of each subsidiary = (Business Enterpnse Value
- Long Term Debt + Cash} x Alled Minds percentage ownership plus the valua of debt prowided by Alled Minds pic to each
subsidiary business Alled Minds commits post-seed funding to its subsidianes in the form of loans

{2) The Group Subsidiary Ownership Adjusted Valus includes cash balances held by Alted Minds subsidiaries at 31 December 2014
amounting to $86 1 million {including thosa valued based on recent financing founds, of which $68 6 million was held by STT) on
an ownership adjusted basis As at 31 December 2014, the Group reported totat consclidated net cash and other investments
balanceas of $261 5 millon, the balance being net cash and investments of $175 4 milion held at the parent lave! and avalable for
invastmant in the Group

(3) Where substdianes have raised financing from external parbes since 31 Decemnber 2014, the ownership adjusted value n the table
above has been updated to reflect the current percentags ownership and the valuation impled by that external invastment on a
post new maney basis, as well as the current Alled Minds® and total invested capital SciFluor Life Sciences completed a funding
round of $30 0 million in Apnl 2015

The Group Subsidiary Ownership Adjusted Value above excludes net cash and other investments balances
of $175 4 milion held at the parent level as at 31 December 2014 (2013 $85 7 mullion)
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Partner Network

The Group has established relationships with 34 of the most prestigious academic research institutions
across the United States, as set out below Alled Minds aims to gain direct access to technologees at the
forefront of research by working to develep the existing university network and selectively adding highly

regarded research centres across the US

In addition, the Group has established relationships with 34 US Department of Defence laboratones and
other federal agency laboratones, such as the Department of Energy, with the objective of systematically
commesrcialising the US federal government's technological inventions developed in the corresponding US

federal government laboratory

University Partners (East) *
Boston

Brown University

Columbia University

Cormnell University

Urwersity of Florida

George Washington University
Harvard Unversity

New York Unmorsity

Penn State

Tutts Unmversity

Unwversity of Massachusetts, Lowell
Virginia Polytechnic insttute
Worcester Pofytechnic Institute
Yale University

University Partners (West)
Anzona State University
Colorado State University
UC Berkeley

UC Dawvis

UG Invine

UCLA

UC San Diago

UC San Francisco

Uruversity of New Mexico
Unrversity of Colorado
University of Washington

University Partners (Central)
Uni of Arkansas for Medical
Soence

University of Michigan

University of Missoun

University of Nebraska, Lincoln
Univ of Nebraska Madical Cantra
Unuversity of Texas, San Antonio
Vanderbilt University

Washington University n St Louis
Wayne State Univeraity

Department of Defence *
Ar Forca Research Lab - Avionics
Aw Force Research Lab -
Electronics Tech

Aur Force Research Lab - Flight

Dynamics
Aur Force Research Lab - Matenal
Axr Force Research Lab - Asro

Propuision and Power Laboratory
Ar Force Resaarch Lab - Armament
Aur Force Research Lab -
Information Dwectorate

Naval Arr Weapons Station - China
Lake

Naval Ar Weapons Station - Point
Mugu

Naval Surface Warfare Centre -
Crane

US Ammy AMRDEC

U5 Amy ARDEC

U8 Amny CERDEC

U5 Ammy ECBC

U S Amny Natick Soldier Labs
U S Ammy RDECCOM

U S Army Ressarch Lab

U S Ay TARDEC

Deapartment of Energy
Lawrance Barkeloy National
Laberatory

Lawrence Livermora National
Laboratory

Los Alamas National Laboratory
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Oak Ridge National Laboratory
Pacific Northwaest National
Laboratory

Sandia Nabonal Laboratonas

QOther Key Federal R&D
Organisations
Aerpspace Corporation
Georgia Tech Research Instiute
Charles Stark Draper Laboratory
MITRE Natonal Secunty

Centre

MITRE National Cyber Secunty
Centra of Exceflence

MITRE Centre for Advanced
Awation System Development
MITRE Centre for Enterpnse
Moderrusation

MITRE Homeland Sacunty Systerns
Eng & Dav

MITRE Judiciary Engineenng and
Modarmnsaton Centre

MITRE CMS Adiance to Modemise
Healthcare
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Key Performance Indicators

We believe the following Key Performance Indicators (KPis) accurately measure the performance of the
Company

+ Number of subsidiary businesses,
s  Ownership adjusted value (OAV) of subsidiary companies,
» Group revenue growth, and

+ Graduation of substdianes to the next development leval, with the two levels being consistent with the
Group's reporting segments as follows

(a) Early Stage subsidiary businesses that are in the early stage of therr Iifecycle charactensed by
incubation, research and development activities,

{b) Commercial Stage subsidiary businesses that have substantially completed ther research and
development actvties, and that have developed cne or more products that are actively marketed

2014 KPIs are set forth below:

KPI 2014 2013 Performance
Subsidiary Businesses 22 18 +4/ 22 2% growth
Group Subsidiary Ownership Adjusted

Value $488 0 milion  $367 3 milhion +$120 7 mulkon / 32 9% growth
Revenue %7 7 milion $2 9 mihon  +$4 8 mikon / 165 5% growth
Commercial Stage Subsidianes 3 3 No change
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Portfolio Review and Developments

For the purposes of this section, the Company's top 10 operating businesses by estmated value, accounting
for approximately 85% of the Group Subsidiary Ownership Adjusted Value as at 31 December 2014, have

been dentfied as Matenal Subsidianes

Material Subsidiaries

Early Stage

Spin Transfer Technologies, Inc.

Spin Transfer Technologies, Inc (STT) engages
in the development of Orthogonal Spin Transfer
(OST) Magneto-Resistive Random Access Memory
(MRAM), an innovative memory integrated circuit
technology OST-MRAM ams to combine the
advantages of high- speed volatle memory {1 e
DRAM and SRAM) and non-volatile memory {Flash)in
a single memory element OST- MRAM's potentially
unique combination of fast wrte speed, low power,
and wirtually unhmited endurance 15 expected to
enable it to address a wide range of applications
in the standalone and embedded memory markets,
which collectively had a combined estimated value
of greater than $60 bilion per annum worldwide in
2014

Dunng 2014, STT completed s first phase
of integration of magnetc and CMOS wafer
technology Thisis animportant step to demonstrate
the technology's capabilty to integrate with existing
fabnecation processes standard in the industry Also
the company successfully raised $70 0 miflion in a
Senes A preferred stock financing, the proceeds
of which will be used to procure caprtal equipment
and other infrastructure, strengthen the company's
product development, sales and operations teams,
and expand the intellectual property portfolio

For 2015, key milestones include the development of
a fully functional technology demonstrator memory
integrated circuit, completion of the company's
expansion of its clean room to accommodate the
installation of a vanety of fabncation equipment and
expansion of existing partnership relatonships and
development of new ones

On 10 October 2013, Crocus Technology S A filed
a petition at the US Patent Office (PTO) requesting
that the PTO grant an inter partes review (IPR) of

US Patent No 6,980,469 which relates to magnetic
devices for memory cells that can serve as non-
volatile memory This patent 15 licensed by STT
from the New York University (NYU) The IPR is
a form of proceeding permitted under the Leahy-
Smith Amenca Invents Act, which permits third
parties to challengse the valdity of 1ssued patents
Ne damagss are avalable in such IPR proceedings

On 26 March 2015, the PTO entered a judgment
on the IPR and cancelled several clams under
the NYU patent as being invalld over pnor art
references The Company believes that STT's
abiity to develop and market its technology and
products will not be matenally impared by this
judgment IPR proceedings do not make any
findings regarding patent mfnngement, and thus this
judgment provides no legal authonty holding that
STT mnfnnges any patents held by third parties In
addition, the NYU patent portfolio censed by STT
contains other patent clams that are unaffected by
the IPR action Further, as STT has developed its
technalogy, 1t has filed s own additional patents
The Company believes that the clams remamning
under the licensed NYU patents, as well as under
STT's owned patents, provide substantial defense
aganst other competitors who may enter the
market

SciFluor Life Sciences, Inc

SciFluor Life Science, Inc (SciFluor) engages n
drug discovery and development using fluonne
and 1s bulding a portfolio of propnetary fluonnated
compounds serving bilhion dollar markets Fluonne
modification of the underlying chemical structure of
a drug has been demonstrated to improve potency,
selectvity, rates of absorpton and metabolic
stability n many cases, and approximately 25% of
drugs currently marketed or in the pipeline contain
fiuorine SciFluor's principal products are two lead
compounds
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Portfolio Review and Developments (continueq)

+ SFO166, a patented small molecule integnn
antagomist wholly owned by SciFluor and
intended to treat sye conditions including age-
related macular degeneration, diabehc macular
edema and retinal vein occlusion, representing
an estmated 50 milon patients worldwide
SF0166 s a topical drug intended to replace
drugs requinng injection into the eye

* SF0034, a KCNQ2/3 modulator and a fluonnated
denvatve of ezogabimne, is also patentsd and
15 wholly owned by SciFluor SF0034 could
elmmnate key safety issues associated with
ezogabine and serve markets totalng $5 billion
N aggregate including epilepsy/seizures,
tnmitus, amyotrophic lateral sclerosis (ALS or
Lou Gehng's disease), and channelopathies
{genetic orphan rare diseases)

In Apnl 2015, SciFluor successfuly raised
$30 0 milhon in a Senes A preferred stock financing
For the remainder of 2015, the company expects to
adivance the pre-clinical research so that SFC166
and SF0O034 will be ready to enter Phase | clinical
tnals late in the year or early 2016 It 1s envisaged
that the Phase 1 tnals will cover up to four indications
for these two drugs Addiionally the company will
execute pre-chnical tests on its existing pipeline
compounds n respiratory disease, pain therapy,
fibrosis, cardiovascular disease, and neurclogy

Optio Labs, Inc

Optic Labs, Inc (Opto Labs) s a software
secunty company engaged in the development
and deployment of mobile securty solutions for
global organisatons The company’s three current
prototype/early stage products include

¢ OptioCore, an adaptive, policy-dnven mobile
device software solution secures information
and apphcations for Google's Android operating
system OptioCore has the distinct advantage
over all other platforms because it monitors,
informs and resolves mobile security threats at
the Inter-process, Communication (IPC) layer

» OphoGnzzly, 15 an applcation which leverages
OptioCore to provide real-time identification of
malware on mobile devices Additional features
include the remedaton of the malware and
notification at both the enterpnse and end user
level

* Kodomo 1s Optio Labs’ consumer offering
allowing parents to “monitor, teach and trust”
therr child's mobile behaviour and expenences
Kodomo allows parents the ability to review and
control SMS ftraffic, YouTube video review, bad
language notrfication and dnver's speed

In March 2014, Optio Labs closed a Sanas A round
of funding The company continued development
of its products with CptioCore placed with a large
aerospace OEM and beta roll-out for Kodomo
Dunng 2014 and early 2015, Optio Labs welcomed
several new executives Gregg Smith, the former
Chief Executive Officer of KoolSpan, Inc and
Acuity Mobille, Inc , joined to become Optio Labs’
CEQ Bryan Glancey, the former Chief Technology
Officer of CellTrust and Director of Public Sector
and Securty for Samsung Electronics Co, joined
Optio Labs as its new CTO Francis Knott, whose
corporate development expenence included Asther
Systermns and Telecommunications Systems, joined
as Senior Vice President, Corporate Development

In Apni 2015, Optio Labs purchased the assets of
security company Oculis Labs, and its CEQ, Dr Bill
Anderson, joined Optio Labs as Chief Product
Officer Oculis Labs developed products that
protect data displayed on a user’'s computer and
mobile dewvice screen from wisual eavesdroppers
The company's enterprise and consumer product,
Prvatekye, protects computer screens agamnst
unauthonsed vewers by using computer wision
technology For 2015, the company intends to focus
on market deployment and sales development for
its three mamn products Gnzzly, Private Eye and
Kodomo
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Portfolio Review and Developments (continued)

Cephalogics, LLC

Cephalogics, LLC (Cephalogics) 15 working to
develop and commercialise a non-invasive bedside
neuroimaging system The Cephalogics system
aims to provide continuous data and imaging from
clinically relevant cerebrovascular regions This
technology 18 asmed at improving on current neuro-
monitonng technologies and bnnging non-invasive
neuro monitorng and imaging to the bedside in this
estimated $1 blion market

Dunng 2014, the company continued development
as well as bench, phantom, and clinical testing of its
algonthms and prototype system Cephalogics has
collected data on normal subjects as well as a total
of 24 patients at three hospitals and was able to
utihse the data to interpret system performance and
for input Into algonthm development

The focus for 2015 1s to complete the company's
commercial prototype and inhiate testing on blood
phantoms, animals and human subjects A vanety
of tests are to be completed on healthy human
volunteers or “normals ” Patient testing should
follow through existing relationships at univarsity
hospitals such as Duke Unwersity, Washington
University or Tufts University

ProGDemm, Inc d/b/a Novare Pharmaceuticals
ProGDerm, Inc, d/b/a Novare Pharmaceutcals
{Novare} holds the exclusive hcence nghts to a
technology that represents a potentially revolutionary
breakthrough In tissue engineenng and disease
control — based on the observation by Or Eva
Turley (founder} that blocking RHAMM (Hyaluronan-
mediated Motity Receptor, CD168) reduces
inflammation and enhances normal tissue formation
through umigue anti-inflammatory properties and
directed stem cell activation

We belisve that Novare 1s the only bictechnology
company that 18 dedicated ic treating catastrophic
disease by using BHAMM-based cellular responses
to aid the body's natural regenerative processes.
Novare 1s positioned to provide novel therapies that
range from promoting women's health and post-

mastectomy breast regeneration, to reducing pan
and joint damage n cnpphing arthntis, to aesthetics
and to preventing Ife-threatening lung damage
in infants with Bronchopulmonary Dysplasia and
adults with idopathic Pulmenary Fibrosis

During 2014, Dr Mike Delmage joined the comparny
to serve as Chief Executive Officer Dr Delmage
earned his PhD in cellular and molecular biology,
15 an expert In Hyaluronic Acid and has served as
Chief Technical Officer and CEQ at Senetek PLC
and Transvivo, Inc, respectively, with expenence
in the aesthetics, medical device and therapautic
drug sectors Novare licenced additional RHAMM
compounds discovered by Dr Turley for research
and develcpment into therapeutics for inflammatory
condiions and expanded the company's focus
beyond aesthetics

For 2015, the company intends to optmise peptide
targets for the indications highlighted above These
peptides will be charactensed and supported by
a vanety of in-witro tests as well as limited arumal
studies Expansion of the patent portfolio 1s ntended
to support these advancements

Precision Biopsy, LLC

Precision Biopsy, LLC (Precision Bropsy) 1S
developing a next generation prostate cancer
biopsy system, with the an of being able to analyse
prostate tssue n real-tme for signs of cancer
durning the biopsy procedure, and of minimising
unnecessary tissue coring as well as the associated
pathology costs Current biopsy procedures require
random or “‘blind"" sampling, and often multiple and
repeated biopsies per procedure The Precision
Biopsy system 1s intended to be used within the
typical biopsy procedure and the company ams to
develop a system along with a disposable needle
biopsy unit, creatng a capital equpment and
recurring revenue model

In 2014, Precision Biopsy continued development
of its commercial system by evaluating multiple
product design options, developing prototypes,
and conducting testing on bench and in human
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4

excised prostate tissue to select optimum design
The company also established its own qualty
management system (QMS) to adhere to the
FDA and CE Mark regulatory requrements The
company expanded its team and began evolving its
reimbursement strategy

In 2015, Precision Biopsy intends to complete its
product development and complete FDA 510k and
IDE (investigational device exemption) subrmissions
The current US regulatory strategy includes
these two separate submissions to  support
cormmercialisation based on the indications for use
Preciston Biopsy also intends to iniate a clinical tnal
to evaluate ts commercial system in humans This
chrical data 1s expected to support the regulatory
approvals Precision Biopsy ams to expand its
intellectual property portfolio

SiEnergy Systems, LLC

SiEnergy Systems, LLC (SiEnergy) 1s developing
thin film Sohd Oxide Fuel Cell (SOFC) technology
The technology uses sihcon-based microfabnication
and nanometer scale electrolytes with the am of
creating SOFCs that operate at a commercially
desirable temperature and are scalable to mest
vanous powser requirements Thin film SOFC could
be a promising technology for meeting cost and
rellability challenges facing fuel cell developers
SiEnergy seeks to integrate its uttra-thin film SOFC
technology into fuel cells and stacks, and will
target jont development partners to integrate its
technology into systems and end applications

in 2014, SiEnergy contnued to develop its
technology and recenved an award of $2 65 milionin
US government ARPA-E funds under therr Rehable
Electnicity Based on Electrochemical Systems
(REBELS) programme Under this programme,
SiEnergy will collaborate wath Harvard University to
develop a multi-functional electrode to altow the cell
to perform both as a battery and fuel cell, which
enables the system to respond rapidly to changes
in power demand In addition, non-precious
catalysts wil be developed to allow the dect
use of hydrocarbon fuels, such as natural gas, at

300-500 °C without the use of a fuel reformer The
awarded 3-year project entals the commitrment
by SiEnergy of cost share funds, part of which 1s
offset by a $300,000 convertible grant provided by
Massachusetts Clean Energy Centre in 2015, under
their AmplifyMass programme

In 2015, the company will continue to improve yield,
degradation and power charactenstics of its fuel
cells and stacks Additionally, as part of the ARPA-E
programme, the company will sesk to demonstrate
In-situ charge storage to enable the battery-like

capability

Commercial Stage

RF Biocidigs, Inc

RF Biocidics, Inc (RF Biocidics) engages in
the development, manufactunng, and sale of
environmentally fnendly, chemical-free food safety
solutions using radio frequency technology RF
Biocidics operates in the area of disinfection and
disinfestaticn of agncultural products for the
elmination of pathogens, pests and fung In a
vanety of food cormmodities Today, RF Biocidics'
addressable market includes the dned frurt, tree nut
and seed/grain markets representing an estimated
500 milton metnc tonnes (MM1), in aggregate,
globally per annum The company currently has two
Iines of RF processing equipment

* The SENTINEL ine uses high frequency RF to
process high moisture products, such as prunes
and raisins

+ The APEXIine uses low frequency RF to process
lower moisture products, such as nuts, grans,
seeds and flours

In March 2014, RF Biocidics acquired a minonty
interest of 285% in its suppler Stalam SpA
(Stalam) in ltaly, a manufacturer of radio frequency
equipment, for $15 millon With Stalam, RF
Bioadics successfully designed, built, and launched
our new fourth generation APEX machine 2014
also marked the transition to our new office and lab
in Sacramento
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In addition to pursuing further sales opportunities, in
2015 the company will apply for addiional regulatory
approvals for pasteunsation, roasting and other
capabilities Treatment for new commoedities could
also be pursued

CryoXtract Instruments, LLC

CryoXtract Instruments, LLC (CryoXtract) develops
automated solutions to protect the long-term
biological integrity and quality of biosamples used
to advance next generation life-science R&D The
company has commercialised a frozen biospecimen
samplng {aliquotting) technology platform that
enables the research community to access and re-
access biospecimens in the frozen state, avoiding
the damaging freeze/thaw cycles commen today
The technology does nat require US FDA approval
and the company's instruments are currently being
marketed and seld both in and outside the US

CryoXtract has developed two principal products to
date

e The CXT 750 Fully-Automated Frazen Sample
Ahquotter 1s drrected at large-scale automated
access to frozen biofluids and feces

e The CXT 350 Frozen Sample Alguotter 1s a
semi-automated solution directed at smaller-
scale semi-automated access to frozen tissue
samples, bonse, and cells as well as frozen
bioflids and feces 1t 1s specifically designed to
service a lower volume lab or biobank

In 2014, the company focused its efforts on building
i1s commercial capabiiies, strengthemng s global
distnbutor network, restructuring its work force,
developing applicaton specific data sets and
workang with customers to enhance the company's
products

In 2015, the company will pursue sales and expand
its installed base of units Additional US direct sales
resources added in 2014 and early 2015 are being
augmented by an expanded set of nternational
distnbutors Recent expansion has focused on Asia
with new distnibutors targeted for Japan, Korea and

Singapore Scientific data supporting the company’s
products are critical for the sales process and 1s
best achieved with industry partners The company
will build on data sets and publications completed
in 2014 with GSK, IBBL and others

SoundCure, Inc

SoundCure, Inc (SoundCure) 1S a consumer
medical device company with a core technology
based on neuroscience used to treat hnnitus
through its acoustic therapy, branded as S-Tones
S-Tones are temporally patterned sounds which are
custormised specrfically for each patient’s unique
tinnitus, generating neural activity which researchers
consider may suppress tinmitus

SoundCure's first product 1s an FDA 510(k} cleared
and CE Marked medical device n a handheld
configuraton  called Serenade incorporating
customised tracks of sound therapy including
S5-Tones An estmated 50 mihon Amencans
expenence tinnitus to some degree Nearly a third of
this number seek medical advice and approximately
two million Amerncans expenence tinritus as a iife-
altering, disabling conditron

Sales growth in 2014 has not been as robust as first
envistoned and 2G15 will see an expanded emphasis
on market development With e-commerce sister
company, Tinnitus Treatment Solutions (TTS), the
company will be focused on becoming the number
one onine tinnitus therapy source TTS Is a cutting
edge telemedicine tinnitus health care provider and
will offer for sale, in addition to the Serenade medical
device, a vanety of tinnitus and heanng products
from other manufacturers As of this wnting, supply
agreements had been completed among others
with heanng aid companies Starkey, Widex and
Resound (note that most tinnitus sufferers also have
hearing loss)

In April 2015, SoundCure received FDA clearance
for the Remote Programing of the SoundCure
Serenade To the company’s knowledge, this i1s the
first FDA clearance for a tinnitus therapy device to
be programed in a patient’s home via telemedicine
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This would represent a unique tinnitus care tool for
telemedicine prowviders such as TTS, and potentially
the US Veterans Administration (VA} - many
returming soldiers suffer from tinrutus and look to the
VA for therapias upon retumn from duty

Other Subsidiaries

Allied-Bnstol Life Sciences, LLC

Alied-Bristol Life Sciences, LLC (ABLS) 1s a drug
discovery and development platform company
created in August 2014 through a partnership
between Alled Minds and Bnstol Myers Sguibb
{BMS) Alied Minds and BMS provided $100
miftlon to the company resulting in Alled Minds
ownership of 80 0% and BMS ownership of 20 0%
The company's mission is to create novel drug
candidates (Earty Candidate Nominations, “ECNs”
or New Chemical Entities, “NCEs") against sernous
diseases with large market size These include
fibrosts, genetically defined diseases, cardiovascular
and immunclogical diseases, immune-ocncology.
oncology, and virology The focus on these diseases
1S by design well aigned with the strategy of BMS
It 1s intended that up to 10 drug candidates will be
sourced from US universities and national labs and
a new subsidiary will formed arcund each of these
candidates Additional funding will be reguired to
further advance thess subsichanes

Wea belleve that this partnership s a “win-win”
for both parties it provides Alied Minds with a
seasoned large pharmaceutical partner as well a
natural early stage acqurrer of developing assets
It prondes BMS access to Alled Minds' broad
university network and expenenced lcensing
practices and provides a capital efficrent, structured
format through which early university breakthrough
research can be advanced Into the formal drug
discovery process at BMS This partnership 1s
structured to reduce nsk for both partners since
it 15 intended to dnve exits of novel early stage
assets to BMS prior to human testing or chinical
tnals Both parties intend to agree on development
milestones for each subsidiary programme pnor to
launching any given subsidiary and upon successful

achievernent of such milestones, it 1s anticipated
that BMS would acquire the subsidiary or asset
We believe that this model of upfront agreement on
exit milestones 1s typically deemed “earty” relative to
most exits in the pharmaceutical marketplace which
require additienal capital to enter chnical testing

Since formation, ABLS has achieved the following
milestones

* Hred Chief Executve Officer, Satish Jindal,
Ph D, formerly Vice President of R&D within
BMS, with prior executve positions at Vedantra
Inc , Varastem Inc , and NeoGsnesis Inc ,

* Retained Cathenne D Strader, Ph D and Ben
Askew, Ph D, each with more than 20 years
of expenence in senior research and executive
leadership posiions i the biotechnology and
pharmaceutical industnes, as advisors to ABLS,

* Retaned Synergy Pariners R&D Solutions,
LLC (Synergy) to assist with due diligence
and project management, utlizing ther team
of scientists with experise n areas such as
disease biology, medicinal chemistry, process
chermistry, toxicology, pharmacology and drug
safety, with proven track records at many of the
world’s leading biopharmaceutical companies,
including Bnstol-Myers Squibb, Merck & Co,
AstraZeneca, Pfizer Inc, Johnson & Johnson
and Eh Lilly & Co,

* Sourced more than 625 potential projects from
our US university partner network,

* Completed intiat evaluation of more than
450 projects, with due diligence teams from
Allled Minds, BMS and Synergy,

e Selected approximately 20 projects for
continued due dilgence, based upon strength
of the project and alignment with BMS disease
area focus, and

+  Two compantes have been formed as described
below Three additional projects are in final due
diigence
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ABLS |, LLC

ABLS |, LLC was formed to execute on the first
project approved for investment This project
involves icensing intellectual property with respect
to prostate oncology from an Ivy League institution,
and proceeding to pre-cnical evaluaton and
development, Alled Minds expects this investment
to be completed in the second quarter of 2015

ABLSIL LLC

ABLS It, LLC was formed to execute on the second
project approved for investment This project
involves licensing intellectual property with respect
to fibrotic diseases from a second Ivy League
inshtution, and proceeding to pre-clinical evaluation
and development Alled Minds expects this
investment to be completed In the second quarter
of 2015

Allied Minds Federal Innovations, Inc

Alled Minds Federal Innovations, Inc (AMFI)
was created as a vehicle designed specifically to
commercialse US federal laboratory inventions,
via publc private partnerships (PPP) with a
number of US federal research institutions
The company represents the first PPP formed
between the US Department of Defence and a US
technology commercialisation firm dedicated to
bringing government inventions to market AMFI
has a team of six employees, all of whom have
advanced degrees As at the date of this Annual
Report, five companies have been created from
federally sourced intellectual property, including
BndgeSat, Inc , Federated Wireless, Inc , Foreland
Technologies, Inc , Whitewood Encryption Systems,
Inc , and Perciptent Networks, LLC each descnbed
further below

Biotectix, LLC

Biotectix, LLC {Biotectix) ams to develop a
new class of conductive polymer matenals and
coatings for medical dewvices which electncally
commuricate with the body including implantable
medical devices and sensors as well as other
markets The company's technology seeks to
address key imitations faced by the medical device

industry including foreign body reactions, surgical
invasiveness, component stability, and long-term
electncal performance in vivo The company’s first
commercially avalable coating, AmplCoat™, s
under evaluation by prospective medical device
manufactunng customers The company has had
the following patent issue in 2014 AUSTRALIAN
PATENT# 2011224383 - Electncally Conductve
And Mechanically Supportive Matenals For
Biomedical Leads (the corresponding US Patent #
8,577,476 was granted on 11/5/2013) We believe
that this technology has the potential to offer key
benefits such as improved electncal performance,
biocompatibity and tssue response The core
technology underlying Biotectix was sourced from
the University of Michigan

BridgeSat, Inc.

BndgeSat, Inc {BndgeSat) was formed in February
2015 to seek out new applications for technologies
at partner Federally Funded Research and
Development Centre, The Aerospace Corporation
The resultng portfoho of technologies that has
been licenced or opticned to licence to BndgeSat
encompass intellectual property from Asrospace’s
small satelite efforts and select technologies from
Cambndge, Massachusetts-based MIT BrndgeSat
18 developing an optical connectmity system that
ams to increase the speed, secunty and efficiency
of data transmissions from Low Earth Orbit (LEO)
satellites at a reduced cost compared with traditional
rachio frequency solutions Demand for accurate
and frequent data collection from LEO satelites 1s
expected to accelerate aggressively over the next
decade amidst deckning costs for bulding and
launching satelites Tradiional RF communications
are constrained by limited spectrum, lower
bandwadth, and targe transmitter payloads Near
term, BndgeSat wilt deploy a downlink payload and
its associated ground stations to fully demonstrate
its advantages in volume, mass, power, and
bandwidth
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Federated Wireless, Inc

Federated Wreless, Inc (Federated Wireless)
engages n the development and daployment of
mobile connectmity and spectrum management
software and hardware for mobile enterpnses,
bulding and venue owners and small businesses
The company's flagship product, Spectrum
Management System (SAS), s a cloud-based
dynamic spectrum management platform  built
to support FCC spectrum rules for the 3 55 GHz
band, and it allows customer to deploy high quality
in-bulding LTE systerns at costs compebtive with
enterpnse Wi-F products

Founded in August 2012 (ongnally as Alled
Communications, LLC), Federated Wireless was
formed to develop and commercialise innovativa
spectrum management systems to capitalise
on the planned restructunng by the Federal
Communications Commission (FCC) of the way
in which wireless spectrum 1s made avalable to
commercial and government users The core
technologies underlying Federated Wireless were
sourced from Virginia Polytechric Inshtute, The
Aercspace Corporation and the Naval Surface
Warfare Centre Crane Dvision

In Apnl 2015, the Federal Commurications
Commission (FCC), n a unammous deciston,
approved the formal Rule & Order governing the
dynamic shanng of federal spectrum in the 3 5 GHz
band, thereby ensuring the necessary regulatory
authonty for Federated Wireless to go to market
with its propnetary Spectrum Access System

Foreland Technologies, Inc

Foreland Technologies, Inc ({Foreland) was created
as a platform company for the discovery, ncubation
and commercialisation of cyber secunty related
intellectual property, leveraging AMF!’s access 10
techmeal nnovation within Alled Minds' partner
network The company focuses on the following
areas

* large scale data management, infusion and

analytics,

+ Information provenance and integnty,

* native IPv6 secunty technologies,

« forensics and attnbution automation,

* geo- location and data tagging / tracking,

» self-configunng and self-optimising autonomous
systems,

s cloud computing, cloud-based information
assurance, and virtualisation secunty,

* active defence and cyber exploitation,

» supply chain security and hardware integnty
venfication, and

e secure data storage

In 2014, Foreland created two subsidianes,
Percipient Networks, LLC which s commerciaksing
intellectual property from The MITRE Corporation,
and Whitewood Encryption Systems, Inc, which
15 commerciaising Intellectual  property  from
Los Alamos National Laboratores Foreland
Technologies 1s currently evaluating several core
technologies in due diligence to becoms the
basis of new Foreland subsidianes, these core
technologies include those sourced from Qak
Ridge National Laboratores, the Massachusetts
Institute of Technology Lincoln Laboratory, and the
Massachusetts Institute of Technology

LuxCath, LLC

LuxCath, LLC {LuxCath) 1s developing a catheter
based real-time wisualisation technology for use
during cardiac ablation procedures to ensure
electrophysiclogssts are treating the nght parts of the
heart in atnal fibnilation patients effectively LuxCath
seeks to significantly improve the speed of ablation
procedures and outcomes and 1s initially focused on
optimising atnal fibnllation ablation The technology
has been proven to identfy and distinguish viable
from ablated cardiac tissue in prechnical tests It
has been used to monitor the progression of lesion
formation as well as to determine the presence
and qualty of catheter-tissue contact in prechnical
testing All of these accomplishments have been
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performed both with standalone LuxCath devices
as well as through the integration of LuxCath
technology into an existing FDA approved ablation
catheter Vancus results from these tests were
presented at the Heart Rhythm Society conference
on May 8, 2014

Atnal fibnllaton 1s a commenly occumng cardiac
arrhythmia or irregular heartbeat and leads to an
increased nsk of stroke, affecting approximately
2 5 milllon people in the US alone Atnal fibnllation
catheter ablation 1s a minimally invasive procedure
used to disconnect electncal pathway and restore
normal heartbeat and 1s expected to be one of the
fastest growing catheter-based cardiac procedures
in Europe in the next 5-10 years In conjunction with
its product development partner, Nocturnal Product
Development, the LuxCath technclogy 15 the
basis of a US government STTR {Smali Business
Technology Transfer) grant titled “New Generation
of Catheters for Treatment of Atral Fibnllation”
amounting to $200,000 The LuxCath technology
1S based on discovenes by cardiologist Dr Marco
Mercader and colleagues at George Washington
University

Percipient Networks, LLC

Percipient Networks, LLC (Percipient) 1s developing
cyber secunty technologies to provide network
defenders more options aganst advanced
threats The company uses automated threat
interdiction  capabilities, advanced remediation
technigues, and shared inteligence platforms as
the foundational bulding blocks upon which the
company is developing its solution for enterpnse
network defence Percipient Netwarks 1s currently
in the commercialisation stage on its first enterprise
focused cybersecunty product The company's
first technology to be brought to market 1s
STRONGARM, a malware protocol parser that
automates precise malware identification and
remechation on propretary networks The core
technology underiying Percipient was sourced from
The MITRE Corperation and was formally hcenced tn
Q4 2014 as the company transitioned development

efforts of the technology from the MITRE lab to the
company’s own development team, which s led
by Todd O'Boyle (CTO) and Steven DiCato (VP,
Engineerng) both previously malware analysts at
MITRE

Since transitioming the technology from MITRE to
Percipient in late 2014 the company has introduced
its first product STRONGARM Inteligent DNS
Blackhole, an enterpnse level solutiontoingest threat
intellgence and operationalise the analysis of DNS
traffic to fingerprint malware and support incidence
response in an automated fashion, saving enterpnse
tme and money The product has achieved
signicant technical milestones by completing a
SaaS deployment mechanism with a multi-tenant
architecture n its commercially availlable version
10 The company completed its first corporate
partnership agreement with Threatconnect, a
leader n threat mnteligence aggregation with its
threat inteligence framework The relationship wall
help Percipient customers derve more value dunng
testing, prots and ultmately in commercial use
gven the high fidelity nature of this intellgence The
company has also filed a subsequent utitty patent
around the inteligent DNS black-hole capability

Seamless Devices, Inc.

Seamless Devices, Inc {Seamless) 1s a fabless
semiconductor company based in Siicon Valley,
Califorria, that 18 developing devices using a
novel approach to analog signal processing The
Seamiess technology aims to simplify production of
high-performance devices even as transistors are
scaled down deep mnto the nanoscale Developed
in the Columbia University Electncal Engineenng
laboratory of Professor Peter Kinget, Seamless
bulds upon patented swiched-mode signal
processing algonthms and extends therr capability
to serve a wide range of apphcations across
several industnes, including consumer electronics,
telecommunications hardware, instrumentation,
network hardware, healthcare devices and
even lransportaton and miltary systems As
semiconductor chips scale to increasingly finer
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features, the avalable voltage to circuit elements
also dminishes, presenting difficulhies in analog and
mixed-signal applicatons Typically these issues
are addressed by adding additional complexity to
the design or suffer with lower efficiency Seamless
Devices’ switched-mode analog signal processing
technology takes advantage of the fact that as
tming resolution in integrated circuts becomes
more accurate, transforming analog signals into
a tme-based form can preserve a high degree of
signal fidelity in an elegant, lower power solution
Seamless Dewvices will intially develop sclutions
for the semiconductor intellectual property {IP)
market, which invoives licensing IP blocks that
are incorporate¢ into system-on-chip integrated
carcuits Within the analog IP market, the company
expects to offer analog-to-digital converters (ADC)
for wireless connectwity applications, meeting an
accelerating demand for ADCs that can operate at
high bandwidth and high resolution in a low power
environment

Whitewood Encryption Systems, Inc.

Whitewood Encryption Systems, Inc (Whitewood)
commenced operations in August 2014 with a seed
round of funding following incubation at Foreland
Technologies, Alled Minds’ cyber secunty platform
company, to produce next generation systems of
data encryption that leverage advanced quantum
cryptography technologies onginating from Los
Alamos National Lab (LANL) In current network
infrastructures, the increasing mass quantity and
speed requrrements of data beng transferred 13
considered to be presently at odds with the market
demand for more ubiguitous encryption to protect
consumers and businesses from malicious, costly
attacks and data leakages Whie businesses and
government entities have expressed a greater need
for encryption of data both at rest and in transit,
the performance of current encryption technologres
may not scale inearly to address this need, rather,
as encryption algonthms become more complex
gven 1mproving adversanal capabites, the
encryption keys necessary to support the encryptor
wiil become ncreasingly longer and more prolific

As a result, scaling current software and hardware
encryption systems may have a significant impact
on network latency and computational intensity,
making the widespread adoption of mproved data
encryption potentially costy and discouraging
Additionally, the development of high performance
quantum computing capabiities in the future puts
into jeopardy the cryptographic capabiites of
existing systems of public key cryptography

Against this backdrop, Whitewood 1s producing
key management systems for encryption which
are designed to be of lower computational Intensity
and lower latency, while providing for a high level of
data integnty believed to be impervious to quantum
computing attacks and offered at lower pnce points
than that of existing competitive systems Since
the company’s inception, Whitewood has formally
licenced 21 patents and patent submissions from
LANL and has funded a Cooperative Research and
Development Agreement (CRADA) at LANL for the
further technical development and productisation
of the company’s first product, a high throughput,
high entropy quantum random number generator
and entropy management system for providing the
necessary randomness to support existing systems
of key management, which 1s anticipated for market
release in Q3 2015 Addtionally, the company
received a new patent approval in February 2015
for the patent Secure Multi-Party Communication
with Quantum Key Distrnibution Managed by Trusted
Authonity

Dissolved Subsidiaries

Consistent with the Alled Minds’ model, where a
project has faled to deliver sufficient additional
proof points and no longer supports on-going
development and commercialisation activity, and
cannot be successfully redirected to an alternative
commercial path, Alled Minds will look to terminate
the investment early

Allied Minds Dewvices, LLC
In Apri 2015, Alhed Minds terminated and dissolved
its subsidiary Alled Minds Dewices, LLC (AMD)
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The company was intially formed to develop
commercially viable medical device products Alhed
Minds determined that the two technologies in the
development stage did not meet key milestones
wihich were designed to measure technological and
commercial progress At the time of dissolution,
Allled Minds had invested $1 3 mullton in AMD, and
had an Ownership Adjusted Value {OAV) in the
investment of $nil

Broadcast Routing Fountains, LLC

In April 2015, Allled Minds terminated and dissolved
its subsidiary Broadcast Routing Fountains, {LC
(BRF) The cormpany was initially formed to develop
an internet infrastructure technology that would
supplement the border gateway protocol with a
view to improving the way networks communicate
Alled Minds determmed that the technology dd
not meet key milestones which were designed to
measure technological and commercial progress
At the time of dissolution, Alled Minds had invested
$0 6 milhon in BRF, and had an Ownership Adjusted
Value (QOAV) in the investrment of $nil
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The financial results of the year reflact the Group's sustainable mode! of deploying patient capital into
our continuously growing portfolio of Group controlled businesses at the nght pace We significantly
strengthened our balance shest with the proceeds from the Company's Iisting on the London Stock
Exchange 1n 2014 which raised $155 0 milion (before 1ssue costs) as well as $54 5 milion raised from
external iInvestors directly mto our subsidianes

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Loss
For the years ended 31 December

2014 2013

$'000 $'000

Revenue 7,715 2,936
Cost of revenue (5,416) (2,342)
Seling, gensral and administrative expenses {38,032) (27,472)
Research and development expenses {22,195) {15,689)
Finance income/{cost} 222 (140)
Other comprehensive {loss)/incomea {159) 35
Total comprehensive loss of which attnbutable to (57,865) (42,672)
Equity holders of the parent {45,637) {34,466)
Non-controling interests {12,228) {8,206}

Revenue increased by $4 8 milion, to $7 7 millon in 2014 (2013 $2 9 mifion) This increase s mainly
attnbutable to the higher product revenue at RF Biocidics, as well as the increasing sales at CryoXtract
systems when compared to last year The revenue in the early stage companies segment remamned
relatvely consistent at $0 4 mullion n 2014 (2013 $0 5 milion) Cost of revenue increased by $3 1 milion,
proportionately to the increase n revenue from pricr year

Seling, general and admunistrative (SG&A) expenses increased by $10 5 milkon, to $38 0 mitlion for the
year ended 31 December 2014 (2013 $27 5 milion} largely due to incremental cost mcurred due to the
IPO in June 2014 as well as the overall growth of the Group Of this increase $4 8 milion relates to an
increase In personnel expenses reflecting the increase in headcount and salanes as well as the increase
in non-cash share-based compensation expense by $2 7 millon, of which $2 4 million was duse to the
acceleration of vesting of options under the old US Stock Pian upon the IPO n addition to instituting the
new UK LTIP plan under Alled Minds plc The increase 1s also attributed to some incremental cost incurred
in 2014 associated with the listing of Allled Minds on the London Stock Exchange, which 1s not otherwise
offset agamnst the net proceeds from the offering, reflected mainly in a $3 0 milllon increase n professional
services to $5 6 milion (2013 $2 6 million)

Research and development (R&D) expenses increased by $6 5 million to $22 2 rmillion for the year ended
31 December 2014 (2013 $15 7 million) The increase is attnbuted to the overall growth of the Group's
research and development activities, reflecting the creation of six new subsidianes in 2014 and ramping up
full scale of R&D activihies of companies created in late 2012 and into 2013

As a result of the above discussed factors, total comprehensive loss increased by $15 2 million to
$57 9 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013 $42 7 milion) Total comprehensive loss for the
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year attnbuted to the equity holders of the Group was $45 6 milion {2013 $34 5 milion) and $12 2 million o

(2013 $8 2 million) was attnbutabla to the owners of non-controling interests g

g

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position ,%

As of 31 December

2014 2013
$'000 $°000
Non-current assets 44,039 23,027
Current assets 248,991 108,778
Total assets 293,030 131,805
Non-current liabilities M7 3,210
Current llabilities 12,499 8,736
Equity 279,814 119,859
Total iabilties and equity 293,030 131,805

Significant performance-impacting events and business developments reflected n the Company's financal
position at year end include

* Property and equpment decreased by $1 7 millkon to $16 3 million as at 31 December 2014 (2013
$18 0 miullion), mainly reflecting depreciation expense of $2 3 millon for the penod, the sale of machines
in normal trade for $2 8 milion and reclass of remaining systems into inventory for $1 3 millon at RF
Biocidics, offset by capital purchases for the penod of approximately $4 7 milion, of which $3 9 million
by Spin Transfer,

* Intangible assets as of 31 December 2014 decreased by $1 1 millon to $3 4 milion (2013 $4 5 million)
maimly as a result of amortisation expense of $0 6 millon and impairment of $1 1 millon of ntellectuat
property returned by SciFluor, offset by new additions of $0 4 million in software and licences purchases
and $0 2 mithon in capitalised development costs in CryoXtract,

+ Investment in associate ncreased to $1 6 milion (2013 nil) as a result of the investment by one of the
subsidianes In March 2014, RF Biocidics acquired a minonty interest of 28 5% in Stalam SpA (Stalamy)
in ltaly, a manufacturer of radio frequency equiprnent for $1 5 million,

« Other investments, non-current increased to $22 2 million (2013 nil) reflecting the investment of excess
cash into fixed ncome government and corporate secunhies that have matunties longer than twelve
months,

» QOther non-current assets, including non-current financial assets remained relatively consistent at
$0 & rmullion when compared to prior year,

¢ (Cash and cash eguwvalents increased by $118 5 milion to $224 1 milion at 31 December 2014 from
$104 6 milion at 31 December 2013 The increase 1s mainly attributed to the net proceeds from the
IPC of approximately $142 9 million and $11 5 milion from the exercise of options in Alled Minds,
plus approximately $54 5 milion from the third-party investors in subsidiary rounds n 2014, of which
%50 mullion was invested in Spin Transfer The increase in cash and equivalents for the year was offset
by $45 4 million net cash used in operations, $40 7 mithon used in capital and other investing activities,
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Financial Review (continued)

of which $37 4 mithon for the purchase of fixed income secunty investments, and $3 3 millien used in
financing activities for repayment of loans,

Other investments, current increased to $15 2 millon (2013 nd) reflecting the investment of excess cash
into fixed income government and corporate securities that have matunties shorter than twelve months,

Inventones increased by $1 9 mihon to $2 9 millon as at 31 December 2014 {2013 $1 0 milion)
reflecting the purchases of mventones of $2 2 million and the reclass of $1 3 million from property and
equipmeant mentionad abovs, offset by cost of goods sold of $2 5 milkon,

Trade and other receivables increased by $3 4 mulion to $6 3 million at 31 December 2014 (2013
$2 9 mithon) as a result of increase in prepaid and other current assets of $4 2 million, net of therr
amortisation, mainly from advance payments for inventory units at RF Biocidics of $3 O milhon, offset by
trade recevables net decrease of $0 8 millon reflecting collections of recevables from sales that were
invoiced close to 31 December 2013 at RF Biocidics and CryoXtract,

The loans balance, current and non-current, decreased to $0 6 million as of 31 December 2014 (2013
$3 8 milhon) reflacting the repayment of the loans at CryoXtract and Spin Transfer The Ioan at Spin
Transfer was fully repaid in 2014,

With the increase of its sales and pipeline, RF Biwocidics 1s collecting deposits from customers as
instaiiment payments against purchases of its products This accounts for the majonty of the deferred
revenue balance (current and non-current) of $1 1 million as of 31 December 2014, which decreased
from $2 8 million as of 31 December 2013 as revenue from these sales was recognised (in 2014, and

As noted above, Alied Minds completed an IPQ and listed on the Main Market of the LSE in June
2014, which 1s the main factor for the increase n the share pramium to $153 million as of 31 December
2014 {2013 nil} Addtionally, other reserve increased by approximately $9 0 milion to $28 8 million
(2013 $19 8 million) as a result of the share-based compensation expense charge for the penod
Due to the marger of Alied Minds, Inc (now Allled Minds LLC) into Allled Minds plc as part of the IPO
process in June 2014 all 1ssued and outstanding options under the US Stock Plan vested on 19 June
2014 and 7,662,424 options were exercised, resulting in the accelerated share-based payment charge
of additional $2 4 mulhon for the penod Furthermore, $54 5 millon from the third-party investors n
subsidiary rounds were contributed to non-controlling interests in 2014 The addittons to total equity
were offset by the net comprehensive loss for the year of $57 9 milion (2013 $42 7 mullion)
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Financial Review (continued)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the years ended 31 December

2014 2013

$'000 $'000

Net cash outflow from operating actvities {45,377) (35,078)

Net cash outflow from investing activities (40,731) (10,675)
Net cash inflow from financing actvities 205,632 116,555
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 119,524 70,802
Cash and cash equivalents in the beginning of the year 104,551 33,749
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 224,075 104,551

The Group's net cash outflow from operating actvties of $45 4 milion in 2014 {2013 $35 1 milion) was
pnmanly due to the net operating losses for the year of $57 9@ millon plus the net effect from movement n
working capital and other net finance cost of $1 0 milion, offset by adjustment for non-cash items such as
depreciation, amortisation, and share-based expenses of $13 3 millon and interest receved net of paid of
$0 2 million

The Group had a net cash outflow from investing activities of $40 7 million in 2014 (2013 $10 7 mullion)
mannly reflecting the purchases of fixed ncome investrnent secunties of $37 4 mitlion and the acquisition
of minonty interest in associate by RF Biocidics of $1 6 millon These outflows were offset by $9 3 rmulhon
lower purchases of property and equipment, when compared to higher capital purchases in 2013 due to
the builld out of a ‘clean room’ for tha research and development actwittes at Spin Transfer Technologies,
as well as capital purchasss of equipment at some of the other subsichanes

The Group's net cash inflow from financing activities of $205 6 million N 2014 (2013 $116 6 mitlion) largely
reflects the net proceeds from the IPO of approxmately $142 9 milion and $11 5 milllon proceeds from
the exercise of stock options under the US Stock Plan, compared to net proceeds from the Senes B
round in Alled Minds, Inc (now Alled Minds, LLC) in 2013 Addiionally, this ncreass reflected higher
proceeds from ssuance of share capital In subsidianes of $54 5 million from the rounds in Alled- Bnstol
Life Sciences, Optio Labs and Spin Transfer in 2014, compared to the second tranche of $14 5 milion
from STT's financing round received in 2013 The cash provided in financing actvities was offset by the net
repayments of loans at CryoXtract and STT of $3 2 milion compared to net borrowings against the loans
of $2 9 millon in 2013

The Group's strategy 18 10 maintan healthy, highly iqud cash balances that are readily avalable to
support the activities of its subsidianes by providing working capital, maintaining the leve! of research and
development activilies required to achieve the set milestone goals, and acquinng capital equipment where
necessary to support research and development activities To further minimise its exposure to nsks the
Group does not rmaintain any matenal borrowings or cash balances in foreign currency
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Risk Management

The execution of the Group's strategy Is subject to a number of nsks and uncertainties A key focus for the
Board 15 to formally identdy the main nsks facing the Group and develop a robust and effective framework
to ensure that the nsks are both well understood and appropnate to achieve the stated corporate goals
This process needs to address both nsks ansing from the internal operations of the Group and those anising
from the business environment in which it operates 1t 15 possible that one or more of these identified nsks
could impact on the Group In a smilar timefrarme which may compound therr effects

As an early-stage investor in start-ups, the Group inherently operates In a high risk environment The
overali aim of the nsk management policy is to achieve an effective balancing of nsk and reward, aithough
utimately no strategy can prowvide an absolute assurance against loss

The major nsks and uncertanties identified by the Board are set out below along with the consequences
and mitigation strategy of each nsk

1 The science and technology being developed or commercialised by the Group's businesses may fail
and/or the Group's business may not be able to develop therr intellectual property Into commercially
viable products or technologies There 1S also a nsk that certan of the subsidiary businesses may fail or
not succeed as anticipated, resulting in an imparrment of the Group's value

Impact: The falure of any of the Group’s subsidiary businesses would impact the Group’s value A
falure of one of the major subsidiary businesses could also impact on the perception of the
Group as a builder of tigh valus businesses and possibly make addtional fund raising at the
Group or subsidiary level more difficult

Mitigation.

* Before making any investment, extensive due dligence 1s camed out by the Group which
covers all the major business nsks including market size, strategy, adoption and intellectual
property

» The initial seed round nvestment 1s typically quite small with incremental investmeant only
being made on successful completion of milestones

* A capital efficent approach 1s pursued such that proof of concept has to be achieved
before substantial capital is committed

* Members of the Group’s management team who carry out the iniial due diigence intially
run the subsidiary in its incubation phase and subsequently move to becoming independent
directors staying with the project to help ensure consistency of management The Group’s
point of contact will stay m regular contact with the senior management of the subsidiary
business

* Dunng incubation phase, we closely monitor milestone developments should a project fail
to achieve sufficient progress, we terrminate the investments

* Thenvestment committee carnes out face to face quarterly reviews with the management
of each of the subsidiary businesses

* The shared services model provides significant administrative support to the subsidiary
business whiist the budgetary and financial controls ensure good governance
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Risk Management (continued)

* Within the Group there 1s a wealth of management expertise which can be called upon to
support each of the subsidiary businesses where necessary

» In addition, the Group actively uses third party advisors and consultants, specific to the
particular domain in which subsidiary business operates to assist on market strategy and
direction

2 The Group expects to continue to incur substantial expenditure in further research and develcpment

3

actmvities of its businesses There 1s no guarantee that the Group will become profitable and, even if it
does so, it may be unable to sustan profitabiity

Impact: The strategic am of the business 15 to generate profits for its shareholders through the
investment into 1P-based start-ups, delivering value through capital gan  As such profits will
be generated on exits The tming and size of these potential inflows 15 uncertain and should
exits not be forthcoming, or In the event that they are achieved but at values significantly less
than the amount of capital invested, then it would be difficult to sustain the current levels of
investment in the subsidiary businesses and continue to make new investments This will lead
to reduced activity across the Group In turn this could make raising additional capital at the
Group level difficult and it could ultimately lead to the failure of the Group as a whole

Mitigation:

* The Group retains significant cash balances in order to support its internal cash flow
requirements

+ The Group has ctose relattonships with a wide group of investors, iIncluding its shareholder
base to ensure it can continue to access the capital markets

*  Senior management continually seek to create additional strategic relationships for the
Group

If any of the Group's relationships with US universities and federal government institutions were to break
down or be terminated or expire then the Group would lose any rnghts that it has to act as a private
sector partner in the commerciaisation of ntellectual property being generated by such unwversities,
other ressarch intensive institutions or US federal research institutions

Impact: Terminahion of certain of the Group's existing relationships would impact the guantity and
potential quality of the Group's deal flow This may in turn prevent the Company from achieving
its stated am of completing five to ten new deals per year This could potentially have an
adverse effect on the Group's long term prospects and performance

Mitigation.

+ The Group currently receives in excess of 2,000 tems of intellectual property per year from
its 68 partner institutions  The nsk of losing deal flow through the termination of relationships
15 greatly lessened by the wide portfolio and geographic spread of our partners

+ The Group continues to add partners to its network

+ The Group has recently hired a dedicated resource to manage and expand the partner
network
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Risk Management (continued)

4 A majority of the Group’s intellectual property relates to technologies onginated in the course of research
conducted in, and initally funded by, US unversities or other federally-funded research institutions
Although the Group has been granted exclusive ficences to use this intellactual property there are
certain imitations inherent In these licences, for example as required by the Bayh-Dole Act of 1980

Impact: There are certain circumstances where the US government have nghts to utiise the underlying
intellectual property without any economic benefit flowing back to the Group In the event this
were 10 happen this could impact the financial return to the Group on its investment in the
subsidiary business

Mitigation:

+ Tothe Board's knowledge, while thess so called “march in” nghts exist, the US government
has never had cause to use them

= The Group seeks to develop dual use capabiites for the technology it licences and
generally tends to avoid use cases directly applicable to government use

= This nsk 1s also mitigated through employing experienced technology transfer experts
supported by our legal team to assess risks that may arise out of this eventuahty

5 The Group currently has in place cooperative research and development agreements with certan US
Department of Defence laboratories and federal funded government institutions  Certan regulatory
measures apply to these agreements which restnet the export of information and matanal that may be
used for military or intellgence applications by a foreign person

Impact: Hfthe Group were to breach restnctions on the use ¢f certain icenced technologies, particularly
those derved from federally funded research faciities, this could matenally impact upon the
Groups ability to hcence addiional IP from these estabishments In certain circumstances 1t
may alse lead to the termination of existing icences In the event that this were to happen this
could matenally affect a number of the Groups businesses and potentially harm tha reputation
and standing of the Group and cause the termination of certain important relationships with
federally funded research institutions

Mitigation

s Prior to the commercialisation process the Group’s management seeks to obtan all
the necessary clearances from apphcable regulatory bodies to ensure that the export of
products based upon the hicenced IP 15 stnctly in accordance with government guidelines

e The Group employs a number of individuals with expenence of working with vanous
government agencies .

* Senior management are fully cogrisant with the regulations and sensitmties in relation
to this 1ssue and in particular with International Traffic in Arms Regulations {(ITAR) which
regulate the use of technologies for export, and has numerous mitigating actions avallable
should 1ssues arise

6 The Group operates in complex and speciahised business domains and requires highly qualfied and
experienced management to implement its strategy successfully All of the operations of the Group and
its subsidiary businesses are located in the Umted States which 1s a highly compettive employment
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Risk Management (continued)

market There is a nsk that the Group may lose key perscnnel, or fail to attract or retain new personnel
Furthermore, given the relatively small size of the semor management at the corporate level, the Group
1s reliant on a small number of key ndviduals
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Impact: Theloss of key personnel would have an adverse impact on the ability of the Group to continue
to grow and may negatively affect the Group's competitive advantage

Mitigation.

» The Board annually seeks external expertise to assess the competitiveness of the
compensation packages of its semor management

* Semor management continually monitor and assess compensation levels to ensure the
Group remamns competitive in the employment market

» While staff turnover has histoncally been low and the Group continues to attract highly
qualified indwduals, management encourages development and wmnclusion through
coaching and mentonng programmes

7 A large proportion of the overall value of the Group's businesses may be concentrated in a small
proportion of the Group's businesses If one or more of the intellectual property nghts relevant to a
valuable business was termmnated this would have a matenal adverse impact on the overall value of the
Group’s businesses

Impact: The termmation of cntcal P licences would matenally impact the value of the subsidiary
business and have a consequent effact on the value of the overall Group

Mitigation:

¢ In each subsidiary the management i1s specifically directed to pursue a policy of generating
and patenting additional intellectual property to both pronde additonal protection and
create direct IP ownership for the subsichary business

* Where possible the Group seeks to negohate mtellectual property ownership nghts in any
research and development agreement 1t enters into with a network partner, such that the
Group becomes a part owner of the underlying IP

+ The Group has a dwersified portfolio of subsidiary businesses The value of any cne of its
subsidianies relative to the aggregate value of the Group 1s closely monitored to ensure that
the concentration nsk of any on subsidiary 1s not disproportionate
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Risk Management (continued) '

8 Chnical studies and other tests to assess the commercial viabilty of the product are typically expensiva,
complex and tme-consuming, and have uncertain ocutcomes If the Company falls to complete or
expenences delays in completng tests for any of its product candidates, it may not be abie to obtan
regulatory approval or commercialise its product candidates on a bmely basis, or at all

Impact: Significant delays in any of the clinical studies to support the approprate regulatory approvals
could significantly impact the amount of capital required for the subsidiary business to
become fully sustainable on a cash flow basis A cntical failure in any stage of a clinical testing !
programme would probably necessitate a termination of the project and a loss of the Group's
invastment

Mitigation

* The group has dedicated internal resource to establish and monitor each of the clinical
programmes 1n order to try and maximrse successful outcomes

+ Dunng the evaluation and due diigence phase pnor to the inmal nvestment focus 1s placed
on an analysis of the nsks of the clinical phase of development

* Prnor to the launch of any ciinical testing it will be normal for a dedicated management team
{and in certain cases an advisory team to include key opinion leaders {KOLs)) to be hired,
and expenence with the management of clinical programmes would be a prerequisite
qualification

* In the event of the outsourcing of these tnals, care and attention 18 given to assure the
gualty of the Contract Research Orgamisation (CRO} vendors used to perform the work '

This Strategic Report has been approved by the Board of Directors

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Mark Pnitchard Chnis Silva
Executive Charrman Chief Executive Officer
28 April 2015
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The Board

Executive Directors

Mark Pntchard - Executive Chairman

Mark founded Alled Minds in 2004 and has been directly involved in its strategic direction and growth
since Inception Mark spent his eariier career as an investment banker based in the City of London, latterly
working as a director in the corporate finance department of Nomura International He has been an active
investor n a number of early stage companies, including FuturaGene a spin out from Purdue University,
Indrana FuturaGena PLC was admitted to the AIM market in 2005 and Mark was Charrman from 2006
until its acquisition by Suzano Papel e Celulose, a Braziian based multinational in 2010 He graduated from
Cass Business School, London in 1984 with a B Sc (Hons) Mark was appointed to the Board in April 2014,
but was a member of the predecessor company board since 2004

Christopher Silva — Chief Executive Officer

Chns joned Alied Minds in March 2006 Before joning Allled Minds, Chns was a Partner at JSA Partners,
a professional M8A and strategy censultancy in Boston, MA, which provides high technology companies
with market entry, competitive strategy, acquisitions and investment decistons His consulting background
includes three years with AT Kearney's Aerospace Aviation and Defence Practice Chns was also the
Drrector of Business Development for GRC Interational, a scientific and technical support contractor to
the Department of Dafence and US Inteligence Community Earlier, Chns served in the US Arr Force Chris
holds a BA degree from Tufts University and a Masters of Business Administration Chns was appointed to
the Board in April 2014, but was a member of the predecessor company board since 2006

Non-Executive Directors

Peter Dolan - Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Peter joinsed Allied Minds in Apnl 2014 Peter has 30 years of operating experence, including 18 years
at Bnstol-Myers Squibb, where he served as Charman and CEO He subsequently served as Charman
and CEQ of Gemin X, a venture capital backed oncology company that was sold to Cephalon Peter 1s
the Chairman of the Board of Trusteses of Tufts University having served in several leadership capacities,
including Vice Chair, and as a member of the Compensation, Academic Affairs and Audit Committees,
before his election as Chairman in November 2013 Most recently, Peter served on the Board of Overseers
of the Tuck School at Dartmouth College and on the Board of Directors of the National Centre on Addiction
and Substance Abuse at Columina University Additionally, he has served on the Boards of the American
Express Company, G-Change {a cancer coalition organisation}, and was Charman of the Pharmaceutical
Research and Manufacturers of Amenca Peter holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from Tufts University
in Social Psychology and a Master of Business Administration degree from the Amos Tuck School of
Business at Dartmouth Peter was appointed to the Board in May 2014, and serves on each of the Audit,
Nomination {Chairman), and Remuneration Commitiees

Jeffrey Rohr - Non-Executive Director

Jeff joined Alled Minds in April 2014 He has 30 years of senior management expernence at Deloitte LLP
Jeff has career long experience serving chents in a multitude of industnes and extensive expenence In
governance processes having last served in the role of Vice Charman and Chief Financial Officer at Deloitte
In the role of CFO, Jeff was responsible for all aspects of financial affairs of the Deloitte Global Firm and
the Deloitte US Frm, including strategy, accounting and financial reporting, treasury, capital adequacy,
lquidity, taxes, pensions, and nsk management Previously, Jeff served as the Managing Partner of
Deloitte’s Midwest and Mid-Atlantic regions as well as National Director of Deloitte's Business Planning
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The Board (continued)

Currently, Jeff serves on a number of Boards and Foundations He 1s a member cf the Board of Directors
of Amencan Exprass Centunon Bank where he 1s the Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee, has for
nine years sarved as Charman of the Audit Commuttee of the Flonida State Unwersity Foundation Board
of Trustees and 1s Chairmen of the Callege of Business Board of Governors Jeff 1s a graduate of Flonda
State University with a B S degree in Accounting and 1s a Certified Public Accountant Jeff was appointed
to the Board in May 2014, and serves on sach of the Audit {Charman), Nomnation, and Remuneration
Committees

Richard Davis — Non-Executive Director

Rick joined Alked Minds in August 2011 Rick is an internationally recogrised political leader with more than
30 years of expenence in business and public affars Rick currently serves as a Partner and Chief Operating
Officer at Pegasus Capital Advisors, a $2 2 billion pnvate equity fund founded in 1995 He has a long and
distinguished career in both the public and pnvate sector Having served on President Ronald Reagan's
political team, Rick also served in three Reagan Administration Cabinet Agencies including as White House
Special Assistant to the President for the Domestic Policy Council In his capacity in the White House Rick
managed all policy development related to Climate, Energy and Environment President George H W Bush
appointed him as Deputy Executive Director for the White House Conference on Science and Economic
Research Related to Global Climate Change While in the private sector Rick built one of the most influential
and successful public affars companies in the United States In 2000 and 2008 Rick served as Senator
John McCain's national campaign manager leading all aspects of the campaign activty While serving as
Senator McCain's chief strategist and political advisor Rick was integral in the development of some key
legislative intiatives including ground breaking Climate Legislation and Campaign Finance Reform Rick
currently serves on the Board of The Environmental Defance Action Fund developing initiatives and ties to
the corporate community that promotes better stewardship of the environment Rick was appointed to the
Board in May 2014, but was a member of the predecessor company board since 2011, and serves on each
of the Audit, Nomination, and Remuneration Committees (Chairman)

Table of Board Attendance
The table below summanses the attendance of the Directors at the scheduled meetings held dunng the
year

Meetings Attended

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Director Board Committee Committee Committee
Mark Pritchard 11 of 11 - - -
Chns Siva 11 of 11 - - -
Rick Davis 10 of 11 40f4 1of1 20of 2
Peter Dolan 10 of 11 40f 4 1 0of1 20f2
Jeff Rohr 10 of 11 4of4 1of1 20f2
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present therr report together with the audited financial statements for Alled Minds ple and
its subsidianes for the year ended 31 December 2014 The Company was incorporated on 15 Apnl 2014
under the UK Companies Act 2006

Directors

The Drectors of the Company as at 31 December 2014 were those listed on pages 43 to 44 The only
changes to the composition of the Board dunng the year were the appointments of Peter Dolan and
Jeffrey Rohr as Non-Executive Directors prior to the compietion of the iritial public offering Each of Mark
Pntchard, Chns Silva and Rick Dawvis served on the predecessor company board The Directors’ interasts
in the share capital of the Company are as shown in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 81 None
of the Directors was matenally interested in any significant contract to which the Company or any of its
subsidianes were party during the year

Corporate Governance

Information that fulfils the requirements of the corporate govermance statement can be found in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 51 to 60 and 1s incorporated into this Repoert of the Directors by
reference

Employees
The Group's pclicies in relation to employees are disclosed on page 62

Results and Dividends

Dunng the penod, the Group generated a net loss after taxation for the year ended 31 December 2014 of
$57 9 rmilon (2013 $42 7 milklon) The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for 2014
(2013 nl)

Strategic Report
The Group's Strategic Report can be found on pages 5 to 42, and includes information as to the kkely
future development of the Group Financial key performance indicators can be found on page 22

The Strategic Report contains forward-looking statements with respect to the business of Alied Minds
These statements reflect the Board's current view, are subject to a number of matenal known and unknown
events, nsks and uncertanties, and could change in the future Factors that could cause or contribute to
such changes include, but are not mited to, genera! econemic cimate and trading conditions, as well as
specific factors relating to the financial or commercial prospects or perforrmance of the Group's individual
subsidiary companies, the ability to consummate expected transactions, and the abihty to identify promising
new technologies invented by university or Federal iaboratory partners

Principal Risks and Uncertainties and Financial Instruments
The Group through its operations 1s exposed to a number of nsks The Group’s nsk management objectives
and policies are described on pages 38 to 42 and in the Governance Report on pages 58 to 59 Further
information on the Group's financial nsk management objectives and policies, including those in relation
to credit nsk, lquidity sk and market nisk, 1s provided in note 22 tc the consolidated financial statements,
along with further information on the Group's use of financial nstruments
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Directors’ Report (continueq)

Significant Agreements
The Group has not entered into any significant agreements which may be impacted by a change of contro!
following a takeover bid

Share Capital

Details of the structure of the Company's share capital and the nghts attaching to the Company's shares
are set out in note 16 to the consohdated financial statements Other than the lock-up agreements entered
inte by all Executive Directors and Alled Minds' employees in connection with the IPO which expire on
25 June 2015, there are no specific restnctions on the helding of secunties or on the transfer of shares,
which are both govemned by the general prowisions of the Company's Articles of Association (Articles) and
prevailing legislation None of the ordinary shares carry any special nghts with regard to controt of the
Company and there are no restnctions on vating nghts

Articles of Association
The Company's Articles may be amended by a special resolution of the shareholders

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had been adwvised of the following shareholders with interests of
3% or more In its ordinary share captal Other than as shown, so far as the Company (and its directors) are
aware, no other person holds or 1s beneficially mterested in a disclosable interest in the Company

Number of
Shareholder Shares Percentage
Invesco Asset Management lumited 89,957,038 41 95%
Woodford Investment Management 34,260,094 15 98%
Mark Pntchard 22,407,704 10 45%
SandAre 10,227 867 477%
P3 Prvate Equity Fund 8,701,330 4 06%

Between the year end and 27 Apnl 2015, the Company was adwised pursuant to DTR 5 that Woodford
Investment Management had increased its holdings to 36,328,342 shares, or 16 94%

Relationship Agreement
In accordance with Listing Rule 9 8 4 (14), the Company has set out below a statement descnbing the
relationship agreement entered into by the Company with its prnincipal shareholder

On 19 June 2014, the Company entered into a Relationship Agreement with Invesco Investment Asset
Management Limited, which will came into force at the IPO The principal purpose of the Relationship
Agreement 15 to ensure that the Company 1s capable at all tmes of carrying on its business independently
of Invesco

If any person acquires control of the Company or the Company ceases to be admitted to the Official List,
the Relattonship Agreement may be terminated by Invesco If Invesco {together with its associates) ceases
to hold 30% or more of the voting nghts over the Company’'s shares, the Relationship Agreement shall
termunate save for certain specified provisions
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The Relationship Agreement prowides that Invesce undertakes to use all reasonable endeavors 1o procure
that its associates and any person with whom 1t 1s acting in concert shall

+ conduct all agreements, arrangements, transactions and relationships with any member of the Group
on an arm's length basis and on a normal commercial basis and in accordance with the related party
transaction requirements of Chapter 11 of the Listing Rules,

* not take any actien that would have the effect of preventing the Company from compiving with its
obhkgations under the Listing Rules or precludes or inhibits any member of the Group from carrying on
its business independently of Invesco, its associates and any person with whom 1t 15 actng in concert,

* ot propose or procure the proposal of a shareholder resoluton which 1s intended to, or appears to be
intended to, circumvent the proper application of the Listing Rules, and

* not exercise any of its voting nghts attaching to the shares held by it to procure any amendment to the
articles of association of the Company which would be inconsistent with, underming or breach any of
the provisions of the Relationship Agreement

The Board beleves that the terms of the Relationship Agreement enable the Company to carry on its
business independently from Invesco and its affiiates, and ensure that all transactions and relahionships
between the Company and Invesco are, and will be, at arm’s length and on a normal commercial basis

The Company has and, in so far as t 1s aware, the Invesco and ts associates have, complied with the
independeance provisions set out i the Relatonship Agreement from the date of the agreement, dunng the
relevant penod under review The ordinary shares owned by Invesco rank pan passu with the other ordinary
shares in all respects

Political Donations
The Group did not make any political donations In 2013 or 2014

Corporate and Sccial Responsibility
Detalls on the Group's policies, actmvities and aims with regard to its corporate and social responsibilities I1s
included in the Sustamability section on pages 61 to 62

Directors’ Indemnity and Liability Insurance

During the year, the Company has maintained liability nsurance in respect of ts directors Subject to the
provisions of the Companies Act 20086, the Articles provide that every director 1s entitted to be indemniied
out of the funds of the Company agamnst any hkabiliies incurred in the execution or discharge of his or her
powers or duties

Issuance of Equity by Major Subsidiary Undertaking

On 9 October 2014, the Company's major substdiary, Spin Transfer Technologies (STT), raised $70 0 million
to accelerate commercialisation of its innovative computer memory technology Of the $70 0 milion raised
in the financing, the Company contributed $20 0 million for the purchase of 1,686,340 preferred shares,
Woodford Investment Management (Woodford) contnbuted $27 85 million for the purchase of 2,348,561
preferred shares, Invesco Asset Management (Invescc) contrbuted $21 65 million for the purchase of
1,825,133 preferred shares, and SandAire contributed $0 5 milion for the purchase of 42,158 preferred
shares Woodiord and Invesco are gach a substantial shareholder of Alled Minds pursuant to the Listing
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Rules, and thus this transacton was a smaller related party transaction faling within the scope of Listing
Rule 11 1 10R

Requirements of the Listing Rules
The following table prowvides references to where the information required by Listing Rule 9 8 4R 1s disclosed

Section Listing Rute requirement Location

1 Interest capitalised Not applicable

2 Publication of unaudited financial nformation Not applicable

4 Details of long-term incentive schemes Directors’ Remuneration Report,

page 63

5 Warwer of emoluments by a director Not applicable

6 Waver of future emoluments by a director Not applicable

7 Non pre-emptive 1ssues of equity for cash Not applicable

8 Non pre-emptive 1ssues of equity for cash by any major Directors’ Report, page 47
subsidiary undertaking

9 Parent participation in a placing by a listed subsichary Not apphcable

10 Caontract of significance with director Not applicable

11 Prowviston of sarvices by a controling shareholder Not applicable

12 Shareholder wavers of dividends Not applicable

13 Shareholder warvers of future dividends Not applicable

14 Relationship agreements with the controling sharehclder  Directors' Report, pages 46 to 47

Post Balance Sheet Events
Matenal events occumng since the balancs sheet date are disclosed in the Strategic Report In summary,
they are

¢ In February 2015, Alled Minds formed and funded BndgeSat, in collaboration with The Aerospace
Corporation, Draper Laboratory, Massachusetts Institute of Technology Assistant Professor Dr Kerri L
Cahoy and the graduate student team in the Space, Telecommunications, Astronomy, and Radiation
{(STAR) Laboratory, to develop an optical connectmty systern that ams to increase the speed, secunty
and efficiency of data transmissions from Low Earth Orbit {LEQ) satellites compared to traditional radio
frequency solutions

e In April 2015, SciFluor successiully raised $30 & miion 1n a Senes A preferred stock financing

¢ In Apnl 2015, Optio purchased the assets of Marviand-based secunty company Oculis Labs, and its
CEQ, Dr Bill Anderson, joined Optio as Chief Product Officer Oculis Labs developed products that
protect data displayed on a user's computer and mobile device screen from visual eavesdroppers

Disclosure of Information to Auditor
Each of the persons who 1s a Director at the date of approval of this Annual Report confirms that

* so far as the Director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit nformation of which the Company's auditor 1s
unaware, and
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« the Director has taken all steps that he cught to have taken as a Director in order to make himself
aware of any retevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditor 1$ aware of that
information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of
the Companies Act 2006

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting (AGM) will be held on 28 May 2015 The Notice of AGM circulated with this
Report and Accounts contains a full explanation of the business to be conducted at that mesting This
includes a resclution to appoint KPMG LLP as the Company's Auditors

Directors’ Responsibilities Statement
The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and Accounts and the Group and parent
company financial statements in accordance with apphcable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and parent company financial statements for each
financial year Under that law they are required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Europsan Union (EU) and
apphicable law and have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance with
UK Accounting Standards

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and far view of the state of affars of the Group and parent company and of therr profit or
loss for that period In preparing each of the Group and parent company financial statements, the Directors
are requirsd to

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
* make Judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

« for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared n accordance with IFRSs
as adopted by the EU,

« for the parent company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Ascounting Standards have
been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the parent company
financial statements, and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basts unless It 1s inappropnate to presume that
the Group and the parent company will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficent to show and
explain the parent company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the parent company and enable them to ensure that ts financial statements comply with the
Cormpanes Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to
them to safequard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other rreguianties

Under apphicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for prepanng a Strategic Report,
Directors’ Report, Directors” Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance Statement that complies
with that law and those regulations
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Directors’ Report (continued)

The Directors are responsible for the mamntenance and integnty of the corporate and financial nformation
included on the Company’s website Legslation in the UK goverming the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Responsibility Statement of the Directors in respect of the Annual Financral Report
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

* the financial statements, prepared m accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give
a true and far view of the assets, llabiities, financial position and profit or loss of the company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, and

= the Strategic Report includes a far review of the development and performance of the business and the
posttion of the issuer and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with
a descnption of the pnncipal nsks and uncertainties that they face

We consider the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, i1s far, batanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group’'s posttion and performance,
business model and strategy

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Mark Pnichard Chns Silva
Executive Chairman Chief Executive Officer
28 Apnl 2015
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Corporate Governance

Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

The Directors are committed to a high standard of corporate governance and to compliance with the best
practice of the UK Corporate Governance Code (Code) which was 1ssued by the Financial Reporting Council
in 2010 and revised in September 2012 The Code 1s avalable at the Financial Reporting Council website
at www,fre.org.uk Dunng the twelve months ended 31 December 2014, the Directors consider that the
Company has been in compliance with the prowvisions set out in the Code with the following exceptions

» Contrary to provision A 3 1 of the Code, Mark Pntchard, an Executive Director who has served as our
Charrman since our IPQ, 1s not desmed to be independent At the ttme of Admission, the Board deemed
it approprate that our company founder fead the Company through the PO in the role of Chawrman
The Company has announced that Peter Dolan, the Senior independent Director, will succeed Mark
Pritchard as Chairman effective as of the conclusion of the AGM of to be held on 28 May 2015

+ Contrary to provision B 6 1 of the Code, due to the short penod of time since the Board was constituted in
connection with the IPO, a performance evaluation of the Board and its Commuttees was not undertaken
i 2014 Beginning 1n 2015, a performance evaluation of the Board and ts Commuttees will be camed
out annually to ensure that they continue to be effective and that each of the Directors demonstrates
commitment to his respective role and has sufficient ime to meet his commitment to the Company

¢ Contrary to provision D 1 3 of the Code, each of the Non-Executive Diractors holds restricted ordinary
shares that vest over time, as set out on page 81 of the Directers’ Remuneration Report These shares
were granted to the Non-Executive Directors prior to the IPO and do not have performance conditions
The Board does not believe that ownership of these shares impacts the independence of the Non-
Executive Directors

Further explanation as to how the provisions set out in the Code have been applied by the Company 15 sat
out In the following statement, the Directors’ Remuneration Report, the Audit Committee Report and the
Strategic Report The Company’s auditor, KPMG LLP, 1s required {0 review whether the above statement
reflects the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Code specified for its review by the Listing
Rules of the UK Listing Authonty and to report if it does not reflect such compliance, no such report has
been made

The Board

Role and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board 1s responsible to shareholders for the overall management of the Group as a whole, providing
entrepreneunat leadershup within a framework of controls for assessing and managing nsk, defining,
challenging and interrogating the Group's strategic ams and direction, mantaning the policy and
decisionmaking framework in which such strategic ams are implemented, ensunng that the necessary
financial and human resources are In place to meet strategic ams, monitonng performance aganst key
financial and non-financial indicators, succession ptanning, overseeing the system of rsk management,
setting values and standards in governance matters and monitoring policies and performance on corporate
social responsibiity The Directors are also responstble for ensunng that obligations to shareholders and
other stakeholders are understood and met and a satisfactory dialegue with shareholders 1s maintained All
Directors are equally accountable to the Company’s shareholders for the proper stewardship of its affars
and the long-term success of the Group
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Corporate Governance (continued)

The responsibility of the directors is collective, taking into account thesr respective rolss as Executive Directors
and Nen-Executive Directors The Executive Directors are directly responsible for running the business
operations and the Non-Executve Drrectors are responsible for constructively challenging proposals
on strategy, scrutnising the performance of management, determining levels of remuneration and for
succession planning for the Executive Directors  The Non-Executive Directors must also satsfy themsetves
on the mtegnty of financial informatron and that financial controls and systems of nsk management are
robust

The Board reviews strategic 1ssues on a regular basis and exercises control over the performance of the
Group by agreeing on budgetary targets and monitonng performance aganst those targets The Board
has overall responsibiity for the Group's system of internal controls and nsk management, as descnbed on
pages 58 to 59 Any decisions made by the Board on policies and strategy to be adopted by the Group
or changes to current policies and strategy are made foliowing presentations by the Executive Directors
and a detaled process of review and challenge by the Board Once made, the Executive Directors are fully
empowered {0 implement these decisions

Except for a formal schedule of matters which are reserved for decision and approval by the Board, the
Board has delegated the day-to-day management of the Group to the Chief Exacutive Officer who 1s
supported by the Executive Directors and other members of the senior management team The schedule
of matters reserved for Board decision and approval are those significant to the Group as a whole due to
therr strategic, financial or reputational imphcations

This schedule 1s reviewed and updated regularty and currently includes those matters set forth below

* Approval and monitoring of the Group's strategic aims and objectives, and approval of the annual
operating budget

* Strategic acquisitions by the Group
»  Major disposals of the Group’s assets or subsidianes

* Changes to the Group's capital structure, the 1ssue of any secunties and matenal borrowing of the
Group

* Approval of the annual report and half-year results statement, accounting pohicies and practices or any
matter having a material impact on future financial performance of the Group

s Ensunng a sound system of internal control and nsk management

s Approval of all circulars, prospectuses and other documents 1ssued to shareholders governed by
the FCA’s Listing Rules, Disclosure Rules or Transparency Rules or the City Code on Takeovers and
Mergers

* Approving Board appointments and removals, and approving policies relating to directors’ remuneration
* The division of responsibility between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

* Approval of terms of reference and membership of Beard committees

* Considenng and, where appropnate, approving directors’ conflicts of interest

« Approval, subject to shareholder approval, of the appointment and remuneration of the auditors
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* Major changes in employee share schemes
* Insurance and litigation

The schedule of matters reserved to the Board is availlable on request from the Company Secretary or
within the Investors section of the Group’s website at www.alledminds.com

The Board delegates specific responsibilifies to certan committees that assist the Board in carrying out its
functions and ensure ndependent oversight of internal control and nsk management The three principal
Board committeas (Audit, Remuneration and Nomination) play an essential role in supporting the Board in
fulfiling its responsibiities and ensunng that the highest standards of corporate governance are mantaned
throughout the Group Each committee has its own terms of reference which set out the specific matters
for which delegated authorty has been given by the Board The mitial terms of reference for each of the
committees, which are fully compliant with the prowsions of the Code and which reflect bath best practice
and the recommendations ansing from the external evaluaton process undergone by the Board and its
committees in connection with the Group's ivitial public offering, were adopted by the Board dunng 2014
These were reviewed In January 2015, and will be reviewed annually on an ongoing basis and updated
where necessary All of these are available on request from the Company Secretary or within the Investors
section of the Group’s website at www.allledminds.com

Board Size and Composttion

Ag at 31 December 2014, there were five Directors on the Board the Executive Chairman, one Executive
Director and three Non-Executive Directors The biographies of all of these Directors are provided on
pages 43 and 44 Dunng the ysar, Peter Dolan and Jeffrey Rohr joined the Board pnor to the Group's initial
pubhc offering

The Company's policy relating to the terms of appointment and the remuneration of both Executive and
Non-Executive Directors s detalled in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 66 to 78

The size and composition of the Board 1s regutarly reviewed by the Board, and in particular the Nomination
Committee, to ensure there is an appropriate and diverse mix ¢f skills and expenence on the Board

The Company's Articles of Association require all Directors to submit themselves for re-election by the
shareholders at the Company’s AGM following therr first appointment and thereafter at sach AGM In
respect of which they have held office for the two preceding AGMs and did not retire at either of them In
addition, each director who has held office with the Company for a continuous period of nine years or more
must retre and offer themselves up for re-election at every AGM

However, because the Company is a FTSE 250 company, in accordance with the Code, all Dwectors will
submit themselves for annual re-election by shareholders at the AGM of the Company to be held on 28 May
2015 (2015 AGM) The Board recommends to shareholders the reappomtment of all Directors retinng at
the meeting and offering themselves for re-election on the basis that the ndependent performance reviews
demonstrated that they are all effective Directors of the Company and contmue to display the appropnate
level of commitrment in therr respective roles New directors may be appointed by the Board, but therr
appointment 1s subject to election by shareholders at the first opportunity after therr appointment
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Dwersity

The Board 1s commutted to a culture that attracts and retains talented people to deliver outstanding
performance and further enhance the success of the Company In that culture, dwversity across a range of
cntena s valued, pnmanly in relation to skills, knowledge and expensnce and also in other cntena such as
gender and ethnicity The Company will give careful consideration to issues of overall Board balance and
dwversity in making new appointments to the Board and, in identifying sutable candidates, the Nomination
Committee will seek candidates from a range of backgrounds, with the final decision being based on merit
against objective critena In addition, the terms of reference of the Nomination Committes which were
adopted dunng the year include a requirement for the Committea to consider diversity, Including gender, in
evaluating the composrtion of the Board and in identifying suitable candidates for Board appointments A
breakdown of ermnployes gender showing the number of persons who were Directors of the Company and
servor managers durng the penod covered by this Annuat Report can be found on page 62

Non-Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors provide a wide range of skills and experience to the Group They brng therr
own senior level of expertence in each of their own fields, robust opimons and an independent judgement
on issues of strategy, performance, nsk and people through ther contnbution and are well placed to
constructively challenge and scrutinise the performance of management at Board and Committee meetings
The Code sets out the circumstances that should be relevant to the Board in determining whether each
Non-Executive Director 1s independent The Board considered Non-Executive Drector independence
prior to the Company's imitial public ¢ffering dunng 2014, and will consider it on an annual basis as part
of each Non-Executive Director’'s performance evaluation Having undertaken this review and with due
regard to provision B 1 1 of the Code, the Board has concluded this year that all of the Non-Executive
Directors are considered by the Board to be independent of management and free of any relationshup or
crcurnstance which could materially influsnce or interfere with, or affect, or appear to affect, the exercise
of their independent judgement

Non-Executive Directors are required to obtain the approval of the Chairman before taking on any further
appointments and the Exscutve Chairman and Executive Director require the approval of the Board before
adding to therr commitments In all cases, the directors must ensure that their external appomntments do
not involve excessive time commutment or cause a conflict of interest

The Roles of Chairman and Chief Executive

Mark Pritchard 1s the Executve Chairman The dwvision of responsibilities between the Charman and the
Chief Executive Officer 15 clearly established, set cut in wnting and agreed by the Board The Chairman is
responsible for the leadership and conduct of the Board, the conduct of the Group's affars and strategy
and for ensunng effective commumication with shareholders The Charman facilitates the full and sffective
contribution of Non-Executive Directors at Board and Committee meetings, ensures that they are kept
well Informed and ensures a constructive relationship between the Executive Directors and Non-Executive
Drectors The Charrman also ensures that the membership of the Board 1s appropriate to the needs of the
business and that the Board committees carry cut ther duties, including reporting back to the Board erther
orally or in wnting following therr meetings at the next Board meeting, depending on its proxmity to the
meeting of the relevant committes
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The role of the Chusf Executive Officer, Chns Silva, is to lead the delivery of the strategy and the executive
management of the Group and its operating businesses He 1s responsible, amongst other things, for
the development and implementation of strategy and processes which enable the Group to meet the
requirements of shareholders, for delivenng the operating plans and budgets for the Group’s businesses,
monitenng business performance agamnst key performance indicators {KPIs) and reporting on these to the
Board and for providing the appropnate environmant to recruit, engage, retain and develop the high qualty
personnel needed to deliver the Group's strategy

Senior Independent Director

Peter Dolan 1s the Senior Independent Director A key responsibiity of the Senior Independent Director
15 0 be avalable to shareholders in the event that they may feel it inapprognate to relay views through
the Chairman or Chief Executive In addition, the Senior Independent Director serves as an intermediary
between ths rest of the Board and the Chairman where necessary and takes the lead when the Non-
Executive Directors assess the Charman’s performance and when the appointment of a new Chairman
1s considered Further, the Senior Independent Director will lead the Board in therr deliberations on any
matters on which the Charman i1s conficted

Board Support

The Company Secretary 1S responsible to the Board for ensuring Board procedures are followed, apphcable
rules and regulations are comphed with and that the Board 1s advised on governance matters and relevant
regulatory matters All Directors have access to the impartial advice and services of the Company Secretary
There is also an agreed procedure for directors to take indspendent professional advice at the Company’s
expense In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association and a contractual Deed of Indemnity,
directors have been granted an indemnity 1ssued by the Company to the extent permitted by faw in respect
of habilities incurred to third parties as a result of therr office The indemnity would not provide any coverage
where a director 1s proved to have acted fraudulently or with willful misconduct The Company has also
arranged appropnate (nsurance cover n respect of legal action against its directors and officers

Board Meetings and Decisions

The Board meets regularly during the year, as well as on an ad hoc basis as required by business need
The Board had eleven scheduled Board meetings in 2014 Messrs Pntchard and Silva were present at alt
meetings during the year, and Messrs Dawvis, Dolan and Rohr were present at all but one meeting during
therr term in 2014 The Senior Independent Director and Non-Executive Directors also met without the
presence of the Executive Directors once during the year

The schedule of Board and Committee meetings each year 1s, so far as 1s possible, determined before
the commencement of that year and all Directors or, if appropnate, all Committee members are expected
to attend each meeting Supplementary meetings of the Board and/or the Committees are held as and
when necessary Each member of the Board recewves in advance of each scheduled meeting detaied
Board packs, which include an agenda based upon the schedule of matters reserved for its approvai
and appropnate reports and bnefing papers If a director 1s unable to attend a meeting due to exceptional
circumstances, he will still receve the supporting papers and i1s expected {o discuss any matters he wishes
to rarse with the Charman in advance of the meetng The Charrman, Chief Executive Officer, Director of
Finance and Company Secretary work together to ensure that the Directors recewe relevant information
to enable them to discharge therr duties and that such information 1s accurate, timely and clear This
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information includes quarterly management accounts containing analysis of performance agamnst budget
and other forecasts Additional nformation s provided as appropnate or if requested At each mesting, the
Board receives information, reports and presentations from the Chief Executive Officer and, by inwtation,
other members of semor management as required This ensures that all Directors are aware of, and are In
a position to monitor effectively, the overall performance of the Group, its development and implementation
of strategy and its management of nsk

Any matter requinng a decision by the Board 1s supported by a paper analysing the refevant aspects of the
proposal including costs, benefits, potential nsks mvolved and proposed executive management action and
recommendations

The majonty of Board mestings are held at the Group's offices in Boston, Massachusetts, USA, which gives
members of the Company's senior management team, as well as the senior managers of the subsidianes,
the opportunity to formally present to the Board on business development and new investment opportunrties
This assists the Board in gaining a deeper understanding of the breadth, stage of development and
dwersity of the Group's subsidianes The Board may have at least one of its scheduled meetings at one of
the Company's subsidiary offices in Sikcon Valley, California, USA, which is the location of several of the
Company's subsidianes, i order to encourage further interaction with the senior management teams of
those subsidianes Meetings between the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors, both with and without
the presence of the Chief Executve Officer, are also held as the need ansas

Directors’ Conflicts of Interest

Each director has a statutory duty under the Companies Act 2006 {CA 2006) to avoid a situation in which he
has or can have a direct or indirect interast that conflicts or may potentrally confiict with the interests of the
Company This duty 1s in addition to the continuing duty that a director owes to the Company to disclose to
the Board any transaction or arrangement under consideration by the Company in which he 1s interested
The Company's Articles of Association permit the Board to authonse confiicts or potential conficts of
nterest The Board has established procedures for managing and, where appropnate, authonsing any
such conflicts or potential conflicts of nterest It 1s a recumng agenda item at all Board meetings and this
gives the directors the opportunity to raise at the beginning of every Board meeting any actual of potential
conflict of interests that they may have on the matters to be discussed, or to update the Beard on any
change to a previous conflict of interest already declared In deciding whether to authonse any conflict, the
directors must have regard to their general duties under the CA 2006 and their overnding obligation to act
in a way they consider, in good faith, will be most likely to promcte the Company's success [n addition,
the directors are able to impose mits or conditions when giving authornsation to a confict or potental
conflict of interest if they think this I1s appropriate The authonsation of any conflict matter, and the terms
of any authorisation, may be reviewed by the Board at any tme The Board believes that the procedures
established to deal with conflicts of interest are operating sffectively

Induction, Awareness and Development

A comprehensive induction process 1s In place for new directors The programme is talored to the needs
of each ndmdual director and agreed with him or her so that he or she can garn a better understanding
of the Group and its businesses This will generally include an overview of the Group and its businesses,
structure, functions and strategic aims, site visits to the Group’s head office in Boston, Massachusetts,
USA, and, upon request, site visits to a number of the Group’s subsidiary companies, which will Include
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meeting with such companies’ management and a presentation from them on therr businesses In addition,
the Company facilitates sessions as appropriate with the Group’s adwvisers, in particular its joint corporate
brokers, Jeffenes Hoare Govett and Numis Secunties Limited, as well as with approprate governance
specialists, to ensure that any new drrectors are fully aware of and understand thew responsibilites and
obligahons as a diractor of a FTSE 350 company and of the governance framework within which they must
operate

In order to ensure that the Directors continue to further therr understanding of the 1ssues facing the Group,
the Board 1s also exposed to the early-stage opporturities n which the Group has invested through
presentations at Board meetings by relevant members of the Group's staff It 1s also intended that, through
2015, other members of senor management will present to the Board to enhance the Board's awareness
of how the Group operates on a day-to-day basis and how such functions operate so as to assist in the
execution of the Group’s core strategy of systematically developing an innovation company that forms,
funds, manages and builds startups based on early-stage technology onginating from US universities and
federally funded research institutions

As a further aspect of ther ongong development, each Director will also receve feedback on his or
her performance following the Board's performance evaluation in each year and, through the Company
Secretary, access Is facilitated to relevant traning and development opportunities including those relevant
to the Non-Executive Directors’ membership on the Board’s committees

Board Effectiveness and Performance Evaluation

Due to the short penod of time since the Board was constituted in connection with the IPO, a performance
evaluation of the Board and its Committees was not undertaken n 2014 Beginning in 2015, a performance
evaluation of the Board and its Commitiees will be carned out annually to ensure that they continue to be
effective and that each of the Directors demonstrates commitment to his respective role and has sufficient
time to meet his commitment to the Company The Board will seek the assistance of an independent third
party prowvider at least once every three years in its evaluation in compliance with the Code, and otherwise
carry out an internally facilitated board evaluation led by the Chairman, assisted by the Company Secretary,
and covenng the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, its indwvidual Directors and its Committees Thus
review will iInclude each of the Board and Committee members completing a detailed and tailored online
survey and one-to-one discussions between the Chairman and each of the indmdual Directors A summary
of the results of the review, together with the Charrman and Company Secretary’'s observations and
recommendaticns, will be prepared and shared with members of the Board

In addtion to the above, the Non-Executive Directers, led by the Senior independent Director, will appraise
the Chairman’s performance, following which the Senior Independent Director will provide feedback to the
Charrman The performance of each of the Directors on the Board will be reviewed by the Charman and
the operational performance of the other Executive Directors will be reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer
as part of the annual appraisal process In addition to the aforementioned annual reviews, the performance
of Executive Dwectors will be reviewed by the Board on an ongoing basis, as deemed necessary, In the
absence of the Executive Director under review

Committees of the Board
The composition of the three committees of the Board and the attendance of the members throughout
the year 1s set out in the diagram on page 44 The terms of reference of each commitiee are I1s available
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Corporate Governance (continued)

on request from the Company Secretary or within the Investors section of the Group's websre at
liedmind

Remuneration and Audit Committees
Separate reports on the role, composition, responsibilimes and operation of the Remuneration Committee
and the Audit Committes are set out on pages 85 to 86 and pages 88 to 91 respectively

Nomination Commuttee

The Nomination Committee leads the process for Board appomtments, re-election and succession of
drectors and the Chairman Its key objectve s to ensurs that the Board compnses indwviduals with the
necassary skills, knowlsdge and expenence to ensure that 1t 1s effective in discharging its duties It 1s
responsible for making recommendations to the Board concerning the ¢composition and skilis of the Board
mcluding any changes considered necessary in the dentficaticn and nomination of new directors, the
reappontment of existing directors and the appointment of members to the Board's commuittees It also
assesses the roles of the existing directors in office to ensure there continues to be a balanced Board
in terms of skills, knowledge, experence and diversity The Nomination Committee reviews the senior
leadership needs of the Group to enable it to compete effectively in the marketplace The Nomination
Committee also adwvises the Board on succession planning for Executive Director appomtments, although
the Board itself 1s responsible for succession generally

The Committee I1s chaired by Peter Dolan and its other members as at 31 December 2014 werse Richard
Davis and Jeffrey Rohr, being a majonty of independent Non-Executive Directors as prescnbed by the
Code The Nomnation Committee meets as and when required or requested by the Board and met one
time during 2014 to review the structure, size and composition of the Board, following which 1t discussed
the conclusions with the Chuef Executive Officer Messrs Dolan, Davis and Rohr were present at all meetings
during the year

Before selecting new appointees to the Board, the Nomination Committee shall consider the balance,
skill, knowledge, iIndependence, diversity including gender) and expenence on the Board to ensure that a
suitable balance 1s mantained The Committee shall adopt a formal, ngorous and transparent procedure
for the appointment of new directors to the Board Consideration shall always be given as to whether
identified candidates have enough tme avalable to devote 10 the role When searching for appropnate
candidates, the Committee shall give consideration to using an external search company, but may also
consider candidates who are proposed by existing Board members or employees of the Group When the
Committee has found a suitable candidate, the Chairman of the Commitiee will make a proposal to the
whole Board and the appontment is the responsibility of the whole Board following recormmendation from
the Committes

In the year ahead, the Nomination Committee will continue to assess the Board’s size and composition and
how it may be enhanced

internal control

The Board fully recognises the mportance of the guidance contained in Internal Control Guidance for
Drrectors on the Code (Turnbull) The Group's internal controls, which are Groupwide, were in place dunng
the whole of 2014, were reviewed by the Board of Directors and were considered to be effective throughout
the year ended 31 December 2014
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Corporate Governance (continued)

The Board 1s responsible for establishing and monitonng intermnal contrel systems and for raviewng the
effectiveness of these systems The Board views the effective operation of a ngorous system of internal
control as ¢ntical to the success of the Group, however, it recognises that such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate nisk of falure and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance
against matenal misstatement or loss The key elements of the Group's internal control system, all of which
have been in place dunng the financial year and up to the date these financial statements were approved,
are as follows

Control environment and procedures

The Group has a clear organisational structure with defined responsibilities and accountabiliiss It adopts
the highest values surrounding qualty, integnty and ethics, and these values are documented and
communicated clearly throughout the whole organisation

Detailled wntten policies and procedures have been established covenng key operating and compliance
nsk areas These are reviewed and updated at least once a year The effectiveness of the systems of
internal control 1s reviewsd at least annually by the Board The Board considers that the controls have been
effective for the year ended 31 December 2014

Identfication and evaluation of nsks

The Board actively identifies and evaluates the risks inherent in the business, and ensures that appropnate
controls and procedures are in place to manage these nsks The Board obtans an update regarding the
subsidiary businesses cn a monthly basis, and reviews the performance of the Group and its subsidianes on
a quarterty basis, although performance of specific iInvestments may be reviewed more frequently if deemed
appropriate The Board also obtains a sk management report from members of senior management on a
quarterty basis The key nsks and uncertanties faced by the Group, as well as the relevant mitigations, are
set out on pages 38 to 42

Informatton and financial reporting systems

The Group evaluates and manages significant nsks associated with the process for prepanng consolidated
accounts by having in place systems and controls that ensure adequate accounting records are maintained
and transachons are recorded accurately and farly to permit the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with IFRS The Board approves the annual operating budgets and each gquarter receives
details of actual performance measured against the budget

Principal risks and uncertainties

The operations of the Group and the implementation of its objectives and strategy are subject to a number
of key nsks and uncertainties Risks are formally reviewed by the Board at Ieast annually and appropnate
procedures are put in place to monitor and, to the extent possible, mitigate these nsks Were more than
one of the nsks to occur together, the overall impact on the Group may be compeounded A summary of the
key nsks affecting the Group and the steps taken to manage these 1s set out on pages 38 to 42

Relations with stakeholders

The Company is committed to a contnuous dialogue with shargholders as it believes that it 1s essential to
ensure a greater understanding of and confidence amongst its shareholders in the medium and longer term
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Corporate Governance (continued)

strategy of the Group and in the Board's ability to oversee its implementation It 1s the responsibiity of the
Board as a whole to ensure that a satisfactory dialogue does take place

The Board's pnmary shareholder contact is through the Charrman and Chief Executive Officer The Senior
Iindependent Director and other Directors, as approprate, make themselves avaitable for contact with major
shareholders and other stakeholders in order to understand therr 1ssues and concems

The Company shall use the AGM as an opportunity to communicate with its sharsholders Notice of the
AGM, which will be held at 2 p m on 28 May 2015 at the offices of DLA Piper LLP, 3 Noble Street, London
EC2V 7EE, United Kingdom, 15 enclosed with this report In ine with the Code, the Notice of AGM 1s sent
to shareholders at least 20 working days before the meeting Detalls of the resolutions and the explanatory
notes thersto are included with the Notice To ensure compliance with the Code, the Board proposes
separate resolutions for each 1ssus and proxy forms allow shareholders who are unable to atiend the AGM
to vote for or against or to withhold ther vote on each resolution The results of all proxy voting shall be
published on the Group's website after the meeting and at the meeting itself to those shareholders who
attend Shareholders who attend the AGM will have the opportunity to ask questions and the Chairman and
the Executive Directors are expected to be avallable to take questions

The Group's website at www . alledminds com 1s the pnmary source of information on the Group The
website includes an overview of the actvmties of the Group, details of its subsichary companies and its key
unversity and federal government partnerships, and details of all recent Group and subsidiary business
announcements

Political expenditure
It 1s the Board's policy not to incur political expenditure or otherwise make cash contributions to political
parties and 1t has no itention of changing that policy

Going concern

The Directors confirm that they have a reasonable expectation that the Group will have adequate resources
to continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future and accordingly they continue to adopt the
going concern basis in prepanng the financial staterments

Peter Dolan

Chairman of the Nomination Committee
28 April 2015
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Sustainability

Policy Statement
Allled Minds aims to conduct its business in a socially responsible manner, to contnbute to the communities
in which it operates and to respect the needs of its employees and all of its stakeholders

The Group 1s commutted to growing the business while ensuring a safe environment for employess as wall
as minimising the overall impact on the environment

Alled Minds endeavours to conduct its business in accordance with aestablished best practice, to be a
rasponsible smployer and to adopt values and standards designed to help guide staff in therr conduct and
business relationships

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Given the overall size of the Group, we consider the direct environmental impact of the Group as
relatively low However, we firmly recognise our rasponsibility to ensure that our business operates.in an
environmentally responsible and sustainable manner The Group comples with all current regulations on
emissions Including greenhousa gas emissions, where such regulation exists In our markets

Though the Group's day-to-day operational activities have a relatively imited impact on the environment,
we do recognise that the more significant impact occurs indirectly through the nature and operations of the
companies that we choose to support with human and financial capital

The Group therefore considers it important to establish and nurture businesses that comply with existing
applicable environmental, ethucal and social legislation It 1s also important that these businesses can
demonstrate that an appropnate strategy 1s in place to meet future applicable legislative and regulatory
requrements and that these businesses can operate to specific industry standards, strving for best
practice

We are establishing detailed processes and controls to enable regular and routine reporting of greenhouse
gas emissions on a consistent basis It has therefore not been practicable to provide data conceming the
annual quantity of emissions from activities for which the Group 1s responsible (including the combustion
of fue! and the operation of any faciity), nor has it been practicable to disclose the annual quantity of
emissions resufting fror the purchase of electnaity, heat, steam, or cooling by the Group for cur cwn use
We fully anticipate complying in full, in future years, with the required reporting requirements

Our Business Ethics and Social Responsibility
The Group seeks to conduct all of its operating and business activiies in an honest, ethical and socially
responsible manner We are committed to acting professionally, fairty and with integnty in alt our business
dealngs and relationships wherever we operate, and for its drectors and staff to have due regard to
the interest of all of its stakeholders ncluding investors, university and government partners, employees,
supplers and the businesses in which the Group invests

We take a zero tolerance approach to bribery and corruption and implement and enforce effective systems
to counter bribery The Group 1s bound by the laws of the UK, including the Bribery Act 2010, and has
implemented pclicies and procedures based on such laws

The Group's management and employees are fundamental {0 our success and as a result we are
committed to encouraging the ongoing development of our staff with the aim of maximising the Group's
overall performance Emphasis 1s placed on staff development through work-based learning, with senior
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Sustainability (continued)

members of staff acting as coaches and mentors Alled Minds has continued to employ regular all-staff
update mestings as the main source of employee communication

Employee Diversity and Employment Policies

The Group seeks to operate as a responsible employer and has adopted standards which promote
corporate values designed to help and guide employees in their conduct and business relationships The
Group seeks to comply with all laws, regulattons and rules applicable to its business and to conduct the
busmess in ine with applicable established best practice The Group’s policy 1s one of equal opportunity in
the selection, traming, career development and promotion of employees, regardiess of age, gender, sexual
onentation, ethric ongin, religion and whether disabled or otherwise The Group has 298 employees and
consultants of whom 180 hald advanced degrees and 87 have PhDs {as at 31 March 2015} A breakdown
off staff by gender can be seen In the iliustrations below Alled Minds supports the nghts of all psople as
set out in the UN Universal Declaration of Human Rights and ensures that all transactons the Group enters
into uphold these pnnciples

Total Employees Senior Management Directors

mFemale wmMale
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Statement by Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
| am pleased to present, on behalf of the Board, the first remuneration report of the Remuneration Committee
following the inimal public offenng (IPO) on 25 June 2014

The Work of the Remuneration Committee

The year ended 31 December 2014 was a major milestone in the history of Alled Minds The Committee
was formally constituted at IPO, but a significant amount of its work took place pror to that event with a
full review of the Company’s Remuneration Policy undertaken by the Non-Executive Directors who now
constitute the membership of the Remuneration Committee The Committee met on twe occasions durng
the year subsequent to the IPC Messrs Daws, Dolan and Rohr were prasent at all meetings dunng the
year

A key objective of this review was to ensure an appropnate Remuneration Policy was in place for a UK listed
company, whilst also ensuning that it was designed to continue to attract and retain US-based management
and employees of the highest caliber The programme 15 weighted toward rawarding entrepraneunal
achieverment and the creation of shareholder value over tme

Addtionally, since its formation, the Commuittee has adopted a UK Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) and
made nitial awards under the LTIP, reviewed the cash incentive bonus awards and progress against LTIP
performance targets for the iast financial year, and established base salanes and LTIP performancs targets
for the current financial year The Commitiee receved professional advice from the Hay Group where
appropnate

Objectives of the Remuneration Policy
In setting the Remuneration Policy, the Commitiee focused on simple and transparent market competitive
remuneration and incentive schemes The proposed Remuneration Policy 1s designed to

= attract, retan and motivate high calber US-based senior management, and tc focus them on the
delivery of the Company’s long-term strategic and business objectives,

+ promote a strong and sustamnable performance culture,
* incentivise growth and the achieverment of rmilestones,

» align the interests of Executive Directors and members of the sentor management tearm with those of
shareholders through eguity ownership, and

* be simple and designed taking mnto account best practice gudelines for UK listed companies

The key components of remuneration are set out in detal within the Remuneration Policy, which will be
subject to a binding vote at our AGM

Performance and Reward for 2014

As outlined earlier in this Annual Report, the Group's performance has been strong, with progress across
many of the Group’s portfolic businesses contnbuting to a significant increase in the Group Subsidiary
Ownership Adjusted Value to $488 0 million as of 31 December 2014, compared to $367 3 million at 31
Decemnber 2013, an increase of $120 7 million, or 32 9% in addition, the Group share pnce of 367p at 31
December 2014, was an ncrease of 93 2% over the inittal public offering pnce of 190p at 25 June 2014
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

As detailed in thrs Directors’ Remuneration Report, the Committee determined to provide cash incentive
bonus awards to the Executive Directars that reflected the level of performance and achievement in 2014
In addition, upon PO, the Executive Directors received therr first awards under the Company's new LTIP,
which was adopted at IPO These awards will vast after three years, and be paid out over the two years
following vesting, provided that stretching performance targets are met The Commuttee intends to make
annual awards under the LTIP Prior to the IPO, the Executive Directors had recewved awards under the
Company's US Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan (US Stock Plan) All outstanding options Issued to the
Executive Directors have already vested and become exercisable in accordance with the terms upon which
they were granted and/or as a consequence of the IPO The Committee does not intend to make any
further grants under the US Stock Plan

Shareholder Feedback

The Committes recognises that building a close relationship with shareholders ¢an complement the work
of the Committee In developing the Remuneration Policy Prior to the publication of our first Directors'
Remuneration Report we consulted with a number of our major shareholders One of our overarching ams
has been to develop a Remuneration Policy which closely aligns the mterests of our senior executives and
our shareholders, and with this In mind we have adopted the LTIP to encourage share ownership and
included malus and clawback provisions in LTIP

As this 15 the first time we are reporting to you, and the first time we will be asking you to approve the
Remuneration Policy, we appreciate any feedback you may have

Richard Davis
Charrman of the Remuneration Committee

28 Apnl 2015

What 1s in this report?

The Directors’ Remuneration Report sets out the Remuneration Policy for the Company on pages 66 to
78, descnbes the implementation of that Remuneration Policy and discloses the amounts paid relating to
the year ended 31 December 2014 }t has been prepared in accordance with the Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports) Regulattons 2008, as amended The Remuneration Policy
has baen developed taking into account the principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2013, the
Listing Rules and sharsholders' executive remuneration guidsiines

The Remuneration Policy for the Executive and Non-Executive Directors on pages 66 to 78, will be put to
a binding shareholder vote at the AGM on 28 May 2015 The Remuneration Policy will take formal effect
from that date

The Statement by Charman of the Remuneration Committee on pages 63 to 64, and the Annual
Remuneration Report on pages 79 to 87, will be subject to an advisory vote at the AGM

As explained in the basis of consohdation accounting policy, the Group's financral staternents reflect the
continuation of the preexisting Group headed by Allied Minds, Inc {now Allled Minds, LLC) In keeping with
that accounting, the Company has chosen to include the remuneration of these directors when they were
drrectors of Alhed Minds, In¢c (now Alhed Minds, LLC) or any of #s subsidiaries
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Remuneration Policy Overview

The Remuneration Committee has responsibility for determining remuneration for the Executive Directors,
and monitonng the level and structure of remuneration for semor management The Committee's terms of
reference are avallable on the Company’s website

The Committee designed this Remuneration Policy with close regard to markst practice in other UK listed
companies so as to ensure that the arrangements are apprepriately competitive and structured in line with
best practice Howsver, the Remuneratton Policy also retains some of the key elements which helped to
dnve the Group'’s success prior o IPO, and other customary service arrangements and incentive elements
for US-based management and employees

Alled Minds’ success depends in part on the talent of its management and employeas Alled Minds has
a highly skiled workiorce, with significant expertise throughout the Group across a range of science and
technology disciplines, as well as a highly expenenced management team Alied Minds seeks to ensure that
its management team and its employees and consultants working wittin the Group's indwvidual businesses
are farly and appropriately rewarded and ncentvised Alled Minds seeks to achieve this through a
combination of compettive levels of remuneration that 1s approprate to the scale of responsibility and
performance of the employee or consultant, and mncentives tied directly to increasing shareholder value

The Group operates in the highly competitive US market, and attraction and retention of individual talent is
important to success of the Group's businesses Alled Minds deploys a careful and considered approach
to remuneration with the cbjective of attracting, motivating and retaining indmduals of the necessary caliber
It is important to note that each national market for talent 1s different malung cross-border comparisons
very difficult n addiion to general standard of Iiving costs, there are large differences with respect to taxes,
pensions, provision of cars, and medical plans and costs, among many others

The Company believes that it 1s important that remuneration 1s weighted toward rewarding entrepreneurnal
achievement and the creation of sharehclder value over tme as its employees work toward the
commercialisation of the scientific and technological iInnovations Accordingly, Alied Minds has established
share incentive plans with the am of incentwvising and rewarding employees and Directors to achieve long
term shareholder value The Drrectors believe the share incentive arrangsements at the level of the subsidiary
businesses, as well as the overall Group, are an important factor in the promotion of shareholder value
creation

The aim of the Remuneration Policy 1s to attract, retain and motivate high caliber senior management and
employees, and to focus them on the delivery of the Company's long-term strategic and business objectives,
to promote a strong and sustanable performance culture, incentvise growth and the achievement of
milestones, and to align the interests of Executive Directors and semor management team with those
of Shareholders through equity ownership In promoting these objectives the Remuneration Policy airns
to be simple i design, transparent and understandable both to participants and Shareholders, and has
been structured so as to adhere to the prninciples of good corporate governance and appropriate nsk
management
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (contnued)

Remuneration Policy (pages 66 to 78)
The Remuneration Policy for the Executive and Non-Executive Directors will be put to a brinding shareholder
vote at tha AGM on 28 May 2015 The Remuneration Policy will take formal effect from that date

How the views of Shareholders and employees are taken nto account

The Committee does not formally consult directly with employees on executive pay but does receive periodic
updates in relation to salary and bonus reviews across the Company As set out i the Rermuneration Policy
table below, mn setting remuneration for the Executive Diractors, the Committee takes note of the overall
appreach to reward for employees in the Company and salary increases will ordinarly be considered in
light of those of the wider workforce Thus, the Committee 1s satisfied that the decisions made in relation to
Executive Directors’ pay are made with an appropnate understanding of the wider workforce

The Commuttee 1S conscious that this i1s the first time that shareholders will vete on the Remuneration Policy
since the Company's IPO and with this in mind we offered our largest shareholders the opportunity to
discuss our Remuneration Policy in advance of publication In addition, we will consider any shareholder
feedback receved n relation to the AGM

This, plus any additional feedback receved from time to time, will be considered as part of the Committee’s
annual review of the Remuneration Policy

The Committee will seek to engage with shareholders and therr representative bodies when 1t I1s proposed
that any matenal changes are to be made to the Remuneration Policy As Alled Minds has not held an AGM
since histing, no voling outcomes are available and we will publish detalls of remuneration related voling
outcomes in next year's Directors’ Remuneration Report
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The Future Remuneration Policy Table for Executive Directors
The tctal remuneration package s structured so that vanable elements (annual bonus and long-term
incentives) make up a significant proportion of the package, with the emphasis on vanable pay focused on
long-term incentives The tables below summarnse the key aspects of the Company’s Remuneration Policy
for Executive Directors

part of this Remuneration
Policy and to achieve this
objective The Comparry

18 requirad to provide a
basic salary at this level

In order to be competitve
and to mantan its abilty to
recrut and retan Executve
Drrectors

For the purpose of
benchmarking salaries and
other remuneration, the
principal peer groupng
used by the Company
consists of companies
wathin similar industry
sectors which are esther
US or UK fisted with a
rango of captalisabons
The Committes wishes

to ensure that fixed costs
ars minimised and that
total actual payments to
executves will only exceed
the median level within the
Company's peer groups
through the operation of
the performance retated
element of the package
As dascnbed in this
Remuneration Policy, the
performance elsments of
total reward are directly
linked to the achievement
of the Company's strategy

ayear or when there s
a significant change to
rola or responsibility
When making a
deterrmination as
to the appropnate
rermuneration the
Comrratteo where it 1s
relevant, benchmarks
the remuneration
aganst the Company s
peer groups
The results of

wil,
however only be one
of a number factors
taken into account
by the Remuneration
Committes and whuch
wil mctude

« gcale, scope and
responsibiity of the
role,

= skills and experience
of the indmdual,

+ retention nsk,

* basa salary of other
employees, and

* BCONOMIC
environment

+ on promotion up to the mecian salary
for the new role

The current salaries for the Executive
Directors are

2015 2014 Review
$'000 $'000 Date

Christopher Siva $500 $400 1 Jan

Mark Pritchard ~~ $425  $350 1 Jan

There 1s no prescribed maximum annual
salary The Committes is satisfied that
the salenes conform to s strategy, whilst
rermanmng compatitve aganst similar roles
wittun the refevant peer groups

Element of How 1t supports the Qperation Opportunity Performance

Remuneration | Campany's Short and Metrics
Long-Term Strategic
Objectives

Salary The Committee’s overall An Exacutive The Remuneration Commities palicy in Thera are no performance
policy 18 to set a total on Drector’s basic retation to salary Is condibons atteched to the
target reward of up to salary is considered salan, BppoINt payment of salary although
median level compared by the Committee * :m;ga:n the a,g;dmcama:?:m there are a number of
with the Company s peer on appointrment and background of tha new Executrve performance based factors both
groups Salanes are set as | nomally reviewed once Owractor &t the individual end Company

lovel that influence the level of
salanes provided to Executive
Directors
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peer group and [n ing with
US employment markat
practice

The Company is required
to provida thus benefits
package in order to

be competitive and to
maintan its ability to recnut
and retain Executive
Directors

= lifa assurance,
« gisability insurance

= madical benefts and
dantal care,

* acar alowance

* an annual payrment
1o cover personal
legal and tax achce

Executive Drectors

may also participate in

any all-ernployee share
plans that may be
operated by the Group
from timo to time on
the same terms as
other employses

Additonal benefits,
which may include
relocation expenses,
housing allowance or
othér benefits-in-knd,
may be prowded In
certan circumstancas if
considered appropnate
and reasonable by the
Commuttee, Including
as may be required on
recrutment

Benaefits

Cost

$'000
Christopher Siva $40
Mark Pritchard 87

The cost of benefits provided changes In
accordance with market condtions and
will, thareiore, datermine the maxmum
armount that would be paid in the form

of benefits under the policy There 1s
therefora no overall maximum opportunity
undex thus thus component of the
Remuneration Policy

Element of How it supports the Operation Opportynity Performance
Remuneration | Company's Short and Metncs
Long-Term Strategic
Objectives
Benefits The Committee s policy The Executve Directors | This 1s the cost of providing those benefits | There are no performance
is to provids a beneafits may be entitled to the detailed above which in 2014 was as condihons attached to the
package with a value up following benafits follows payment of benefits
to medkan lavel within the
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Elament of How it supports the Operation Opportunity Performance
Remuneration | Company's Short and Metrics
Long-Term Strategic
Objectives
Cash The Committee s overall An Exacuttve Dinector's | There are no caps on the amount of As noted i “Cperation”,
Incentive pokcy 15 to set a total on cash incentive bonus bonus which may be paid This cash dacision to provida any cash
Bonus target reward of up to award is considerad by { micentive bonus awards in 2014 wera as Incentve bonus award and
Awards median level compared the Cormmittee upon follows the amount and terms of any
with the Company's peer completion of each such award, shalt be in the sola
groups Cash incentve financial year The Cash Incentive and absohute discretion of the
bonus awards are set as decision to provide Bonus Award Committee Any award 1S based
part of this Remuneration any cash incentive $'000 on performance aganst cntena
Pobicy and to achieve bonus award and the and subject to such condiions
‘ this objective The t;azh amount and terms of | Chnistopher Siva $500 as the Committee may impose
| ncentive bonus award, such award, shalt onsich
i taken together with satary ?:gym the sole and Mark Pritchard $450 B:arcznaT lgzsx:m crmteria
Is required in order to absolute discration of

be cormpetitive end to
rmiauntgn the ability to
recrurt and retain Executive
Directors

For the purpose of
benchmartang cash
ncentive bonus awards
the pnncipal peer grouping
used by the Company
consists of companies
within similar mdustry
sectors which are ether
US or UK isted with a
range of capiahsations

As descnbed below, the
parfonmance elernents of
total reward are directly
linked to the achievemnent
oi the Company's strategy
In addition, given the
absolute discretionary
nature of the cash
incentve bonus awerds,
the Commuttee s able to
support the Compary's
strategic objectves
because (i) there Is a risk
adjustment macharusm

in that awards neod

not be granted, (i) the
interests of shareholders
are served by having a
substantial amount of cash
remuneration subyect to
annual discration, and (i)
the Commutiee can tallor
the awards 1o recognise
expected and unexpected
performance outcomes

the Committee Ay
award |s based on
performance agamnst
crtera and subject
to such condtions as
the Committee may
impose

When exercising thig
discration to provide
an award, and making
a determination as

to the appropriate

where 1t Is relevant,
baenchmarks the

remuneration against
the Company s peer
groups The results
of benchmarking will,
howaver only be one
of a number factors
taken into account
by the Remuneration
Committee and which
will include those set
forth in "Parformance
Metrics®

n making its determination to
provide an award, and may
genarally consider

the mdmdual performance of
the Executive Director;

the ganeral performance of
the Comparny, and

KPis, the achigvernent of
company rmilestones, and
other company ard indmdual
objectives
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (continuea)

its abiity to recruit and
ratain Executive Directors

refirement or simiar
benefits The Group
doas not contribute

to any personal
penston schemes for
empicyees

Howaver, the Company
offers a retirement plan
n accordance with
subsection 401k of
the intemal Revenue
Coda (401(k) Plan)

In which Exacutrve
Dwrectors may make
voluntary pre-tax
contributions toward
their own retirement
The Company does not
make any payments or
contnbutions to such
401(%) Plan

Element of How it supports the Operation Oppoertunity Parformance
Remuneration | Company's Short and Metncs
Long-Term Strategic
Objectives
Pensiocn it Is the Commuttee’s poicy | No element of the Nore Nong
to provide pension benefits | Executive Directors
n Ina with US employment | remunerabon is
market practice m 'I'I:e
Company roup nol
g:imd to p‘o?idr? parsion | OPerate any pension
benefits in arder o be schome or other
competitive and to ensure | SCheme providing
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strategue objectives and

* shgn the interests of
ranagerment and
shareholders

financial performance
targets are set at or
around the start of
each financial year

Awards under the LTIP
to Executive Direclors
will normally take the
form of restricted

shara units [(RSUs) (a
form of condibional
sharg award) in
respect of shares in
Alllad Minds (although
instruments with swvalar
aconormic effact may
be used ¢ considered
appropnata }
Calculations of the
achievement of the
vesting targets are
reviewed and approved
by the Connittes

Awards are subject
to cancellation or
clawback provisions
under which in the
avent of a material
comection of any
accounts of the
Comparny used to
assess satisfaction
of any performance
conditions, or in the
avertt of a particrpant’s
gross misconduct,
awards may be
reduced, adjusted
or cancefied as
detarmined by the
Committes Clawback
applies for the two
year penod following
vesting

circumstances such as where there was a
nead to do 50 to attract & new executnve

Awards were made under the LTIP

to the Chief Exacutive Officer at the

IPO In respoact of a total of 1,398,341
Ordinary Shares This was conaderad

an appropriate level of awand by the
Committee after gnving due consideration
to the fect that the Chief Executive Officer
would have no unvested equity following
tha IPO

Element of How it supports the Operation Opportunity Performance
Remuneration | Company's Short and Metrics
Long-Term Strategic
Objectives
Allled The LTIP provides a The LTIP is reviewed Save in relation to the awards granted In respect of the Inial awards
Minds pic competitive, performance- | annually at or around at IPO, the madmum valua of Ordinary which wera mads at the IPO,
Long Term linked long-tarm incentve | the start of cach Shares over which awards under the LTIP | vasting s dependent upon
Incentve Plan | mecharusm that wil financial year to may be granted to a participant in any perfommance metncs measured
(LTIP) + attract, retain and ensura the detalled ﬁnancual'yyaar of tha Comri:abrg'sgway not' as follows
motvate mdividuals with | Performanca measures | generally exceed 300% o salary lor 14 go% of each award wil
the required personal and weightings are that financial year, unless circumstances be subject to performance
aftributes, skils and appropriata and ansa which the Committee befieve justity conditions basad on the
axpenence contnue to support the | granting an award outside this imit Compary's total shareholder
business strategy The Committes would only envisage retum (TSR perfarmance n
* provdearedincentive | o avemding the 300% in mit n exceptional of
1o achieve our long-term O non- respect of the peried from

tha date of the IPC until
31 December 2016, and

= 40% of each award will
be subject to parformance
condtions based on a basket
of sharsholder valus meincs,
inchucng but not limitad to
(i) the ncrease n qualty of
pipedine intellectual property

level performance (assessed
by referonce 1o such matters
as external funding raised
corporate collaborations,
procuct co-deveiopment and
proof of princpal commercal
pilots and ravenues)
Pertormance will be assassad
on these measures on a
scorecard basis over a threa
year penod

At tha end of the three year

calculatad to determing the
number of Ordinary Shares
capable of vesting 50% of the
award will then vest at that trme
The remamning 50% wall vest in
two equal tranches in years 4
and 5 subject to the relevant
parhcipant stil bang exmployed
within the Group at the relevant
vesting date

The level of vesting for threshold
perfomancs s 33 33% of the
maamum The level of vesting
for target performance 19

66 67% of the maxmum

The Committes expects to
make annual awards under the
LTIP with similar vesting criteria,
inciuding as to the percentage
leveis of vesting for threshoid
and target performance, and
as to the weghting of the
performance cntena batwean
TSR and other condibons, as
applied 1o these IPO awards,
wath such vasting ordinarly
occumng on or about three
years from grant
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a successful subskdiary
company lquiity event.
The Committea recogrises
that successful subsichary
company liquidity avents
are a key strategic
objective of the Group
and its shareholders,

and belleves that the
Phantom Plan is desgned
1o align the interasts of
the Executive Drectors
and managemenit of Allad
Minds with such objective

cash gettled borwis
plan for Alied Minds'
Exscutve Drectors
and rmanagement The
Plan is triggered by a
successiul subsiiary
liguidity event, ncluding
) a subsidiary IPOQ,

(i) the sale of all or
substantially all of a
subsidiary company's
assets, (i) the sale of at
least two-thirds of the
outstanding shares of &
subsichary compary’s
voling equity, (v} the
merger or consolidation
of a subsidiary
¢ompany with or Into
another entity, or (V) a
subsicdiary company's
Iqudation Upon a
Rquidity avent, Alled
Minds will deduct the
amount it mvested

n such subsidiary
company and deduct
the accrued mterest

n respect of such
nvestment, and wil
then allccate 10%

of tha remainng

nat proceeds to the
Phantom Plan account
for allocation among
the participants
Participation m the
Phantom Plan is
evidenced by “units

Vestng of units 15
determined at the trme
of grant of the urits
Current policy is for a
proportion of the units
to vest at grant and the
remander on an annfual
basss over a two year
panod

Plan 1s 200,000 urits The maximum
number of units which will be awarded in
aggregate to any Executve Director will
not exceed 20,000 units

Upon a liquidity event Allled Minds walt
distribute 80% of the Phantom Ptan
account to the partcipants based on
thew pro rata share of all vested units

on the date of the apphcable quidation
evont, and the remalning 20% of the
Phantom Plan account will ba distnbuted
to participants at the dis¢retion of the
Committee

Element of How It supports the Operation Opportunity Performance
Remuneration | Company's Shert and Moetrics
Long-Term Strategic
Objectives
Allled Minds The Committee policy Is The Phantom Plan is The maxmum aggregate rnumber of unts | No amounts accrue under the
Phantom Plan | to reward participants for a perfomanca based that may be awarded under the Phantom | Phantorn Plan, and no amounts

are distnbuted to participants,
until and unless a successfut
subsiciary company fiquidity
event occurs and the cash
generated n such bquidity
avent exceeds the amount
Alied Minds invested in such
subslidiary company plus
accruad Interest and expenses
n respect of such vestrnent
No other performance metrics
apply
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The Future Remuneration Pohcy Table for the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors

The Company Charrman’s fee 1s determined by the Commuttee (other than the Company Charman himsetf)
The fees for the Non-Executive Directors are reviewed by the Board, excluding the Non-Executive Directors
The table summarnses the kay aspects of the Remuneration Pohcy for the Charman and Non-Executive

Directors

rasponsibiities of the
rolas

An additonal fee 1s pard
for Chasrmanshup of a

Drroctors are reviewed
annually and fixed for
the fiscal year The

Non Executive Directors

The faes for the Non Executive Daectors wers rewewed
in December 2014 and the decsion taken to set the fees
for 2015, for any Non-Exacutive Directors serving in tha

Board Commttesand | 8@ 2ppounted for a followang capacities, as follows

to the Chairman of the three year term, subect

Board to annual ra election by 2015 2014
the sharehclders at the $'000 £'000
Comparty s AGM
Non Executve Directors | Cash Component
do not racave any cash
Incentve bonus and Non-Exacutive Dvector $75 $75
do not partcipate in Annual Fee
any Sompany penslon | it Gommittes Chair $25 $25

Annual F
The Non-Executve ual Fes
g BRC;’;S are ehgible Remuneration Commities 310 $10
awards under Char Annual Fee

tha LTIP Awards to
the Non-Executive Nommation Commuttee $10 $10
Directors wik be subject | Charr Annual Fee
16 trne-based vesting
provisions, and wil Charman of the Board $75 -
not be subject ta Annual Fes
performance metncs
Each Non-Executve Equrty Component
Director 13 aiso entitted
to remioursemeant of Non-Executive Director $50 -
reasonable and property | LTIP Award Value
documentad expensas
incurred in performing | Chaurman of the Board $75 -
tho dutes of their office | LTIP Award Value

The fees proposed to be pad to the Chairman shall

only ba payable whera the Chairman s a Non Exgcutive
Crrector Given the US-based natura of the Group's
business, and the nead 1o attract and retan ndependent
directors with significant US business and leadership
expenence, the proposad fees abova include an eguity
component based upon a recommendation from

the Hay Group The Comumittea s sabisfied that the

level of fees conform to its strategy, whist remaning
competitve against symiar rolas within the relevant peer
groups Careful consideration has been gven as to
whether Including an equity component would affect the
indgpandence of the Non-Executve Directors, and the
conclusion was reached that It would not given the level
of the awards and the fact that they are not performance-
refated

Element of How 1t supports the Operation Opportunity Performance
Remuneration Company's Short and Metrics
Long-Term Strategic
Objectves
Non-Executive The Company's poficy Non-Executive The Company's polcy is 10 set fess at up to median There are no
Directors Fees 13 to set fees at up Diractors have specific on appointment depending on the axpanence and performance
to median level and terms of engagement background of tha new Non-Executive Drrector conditions
at a level necessary prowdad i formal payable -Exacutive Drect aftached to the
to attract and retain letters of appontment. x; g:r;;e:sww In égé:ecaNso;\ the feas pard takeors payment of fees or
expenenced end skilod | Ther remuneration account of responsbiities 1 acting as Charman of a the vesting under
Non-Exacutve Directors | 8 determned by the Board Committea of as Senor independent Director the awards
with the necessary Board within the Ermits under the LTIP
eertos o ocsn and | Assonabon and baser 2016 2013 Review
58 ¥ 4
- o on  roios 11 $'000 $'000 Date
and montonng the FTSE 250 companies Richard Davis $30 $50  1Jan
sirategc objectives of and the peer groups
the Company Fees used for Executive Pater Dolan $55 - 1Jan
also reflect the tme Dxractors The fees
commitment and for Non Executive Jeffrey Robr $65 - tJdan
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

The Committee reserves the nght to make any remuneration payments and payments for loss of office,
notwithstanding that they are not In ine with the Remuneration Policy set out in the tables on the previous
pages, where the terms of the payment were agreed either (1) befora the policy came into effect, or (W at a
time when the relevant individual was not a director of the Company and, in the opinion of the Committes,
the payment was not in consideration for the individual becoming a Director of the Company For these
purposes “payments” include the Committee satisfying awards of vanable remuneration and, in refation to
an award over shares, the terms of the payment are “agreed” at the time the award 1s granted Detalls of
any such payments will be set cut In the Annual Remuneration Report as they anse

Differences between the Remuneration Policy and that applied to employees generally

The components of reruneration set out on the previous pages for Executive Directors are also applied
to the Group’s senior management team and differ only in values and award maxima The basic benefits
package Is typically avalable to all US emgloyees at the Group level following completion of a probationary
penod Qverall there 1s more emphasis on vaniable pay for the Executive Directors and senior management,
but all US employees at the Group level are eligible for discretionary cash incentve bonus awards In
addition, the Company 13 committed to fostening alignment with shareholders through widespread share
ownership, and thus all US employees at the Group level are eligible to participate in the LTIP The Group
has also implemented equity incentive plans within its subsidianes in order to incentvise employess wathin
the subsidiary businesses The employees of the subsidiary businesses do not participate in any of the
Group level Incéntve plans

Schemes or arrangements under which allocations or awards are no longer being made

in addition to the Executive Directors’ remuneration arrangements set forth in the Remuneration Policy,
the Group previously maintained the Alied Minds Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan (US Stock Plan)
The Company does not intend to make any further grants under the US Stock Plan The interests of
the Executive Directors in outstanding options under the US Stock Plan are shown in the statement of
directors’ shareholding and share interest on page 81 of this Annual Report

The exercise price of the ophons 1s equivalent to the fair market value of Common Stock of Allied Minds,
Inc as at the date of grant of the options and all outstanding options have already vested and become
exercisable
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llustration of the Application of the Remuneration Policy
The valus and composition ¢f the Executive Directors’ remuneration packages for the year ending
31 December 2015 at minimum, threshold and maximum scenanos under the Remuneration Policy are set
out in the charts below The charts depict an estimate of the remuneration that could be receved by each
executve director under the Remuneration Policy set out in this report

Each bar 1s broken down to show how the total under each scenano compnses fixed remuneration (salary
and benefits), the annual cash incentive bonus award and the LTIP

CEO

President

Notes

Maximum

Threshold

Minimum

Maximum

Threshold

Minimum

$500 $1,000 $1,500 $2,000

HBase EBonus LTIP

$2,500

3500 $1,000 $1,500 $2,000

mBase HBonus

$2,500

Fixed remuneration reflects base salary as in effect as of 1 January 2015, and expected cost of benefits
Cash incentve bonus award s not capped, but for the purposes of this dlustration 1s assumed to be 100% of base salary at
maximum, 25% of base salary at threshold, and nit below threshold

Awards are capped at 300% of base salary at maximum, 100% of base salary at threshold, and ml below threshold Awards of
rastnctad share units under the LTIP are made based on a percentage of the participant’s salary in face valus terms and therefore
the above amounts relating to the LTIP companerit reflect this Changes in the value of those shares over the vesting penod ara

therefore ignored

The current Presidant, Mark Pritchard, 1$ eligible to participate in the LTIP, but has currently elected to wave such remuneration
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (contnueq)

Approach to Recruitrnent Remuneration

The Committee will apply the Remuneration Policy for any new Executive Director recruted to the Board
in raspect of all elements of forward-looking remuneration The maximum level of vanable remuneration
under the cash incentive bonus awards and LTIP that may be awarded will be within the usual maximums
set out in the Remuneration Policy {l @ no cap under the cash incentive bonus awards, and 300% of salary
under the LTIP, subject to the exceptions permitted under the LTIP) The Committee retains fiexibiity to
provide bengfits in kind, pensions and other allowances, such as relocation, education and tax equalisation,
required n order to recruit the intended candidate

The Committee may make awards on hinng an external candidate to buy out remuneration arrangements
forfeited on leaving a previous employer [n doing so the Gommittes will seek to structure buyout awards
on a comparable basis to awards forfeited, taking into account relevant factors inciuding any performance
conditions attached to these awards, the form in which they were granted {8 g cash or shares) and the
timeframe of awards It 1s intended that the value awarded would be no higher than the expected valus of
the forfeited awards The Committee would seek as far as possible to make such buyout awards under the
Company's existing share plans but, if necessary, may rely on the Listing Rules exemption which allows for
the grant of awards to faciitate, in exceptional circumstances, the recruitment of a Director

Simitarty, the Remuneration Policy for a new Chairman or new Non-executive Directors would be to apply
the same remuneration elements as apply to existing Non-Executive Directors under the Remuneration
Policy

in addition to the above pnnciples, the following addiional considerations may be apphed as appropnate
depending on the circumstances

* In the case of internal promotion, any existing paerformance-related elements ansing from an indvidual’s
previous role will continue to be honored under the Rermuneration Folicy, even if they may not otherwise
be consistent with the Remuneration Policy prevaling when the commitment is fulfiled

* In the case of promotion to executive director following an acquisition or other business combmation,
the Committee may permit equity-based incentive arrangements to continue in force if they can be
“rolled-up™ into awards over Allled Minds’ shares provided the performance and vesting cenditions are
considered appropnate

* In the case of the recrutment of an executive at a time of the year when it would be inappropriate or
not possible to prowide an LTIP award for that year (for instance due to pnice sensitive information or
if there 1s insufficient tme to assess performance}, the quantum m respect of the months employed
during the year may be transferred to and amalgamated with the subsequent year's award If considered
reasonable to do so by the Committee

The Committee will include detalls of the implementation of the Remuneration Policy in respect of any such
recrutment to the Board in its future Annual Remuneration Reports

Service Contracts and Letters of Appontment

The Executive Directors (Chnistopher Silva and Mark Pntchard) each have a service contract that commenced
i May 2014 and has an initial term of employment that expires in May 2016 Beginning in May 2016, and
at each anniversary thereafter, the service contracts shall be deemed to be automatically extended for
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successive penods of one year unless etther party provides at least ninsty (80) days” wntten notice prior to
the applicable renewal date of its intention not to extend the term of the service contract

None of the Executive Directors’ contracts provide for extended notice penods or compensation in the
event of a change of control However, as noted below, the rules of the LTIP providse that, in the event of
a change of control, awards would vest to the extent determined by the Committee where the Committee
considers that the performance conditions are satisfied at the date of such event

if an Executive Director’s employment is terminated by Allied Minds for “Cause”, he shall only be entitled to
amounts that are accrued or owing but not yet paid and reimbursement of any properly incurred business
expenses but excluding any bonus payments or other compensation prowvided pursuant to Alhed Minds’
incentive compensation plan (such amounts, the “Standard Benefit")

it the Executive Director terminates the service contract for “Good Reason” or Alled Minds terrminates the
service contract without Cause ar followming delivery by Allied Minds of a Nen-Renewal Notice, the Executive
Oirector shall be entitled to

* payment of twenty four (24) months' base salary in accordance with regular payroil,

¢ an annual ncentive award equal to the product of (A) the Executive Director’s average bonus for the
pror thres (3) years {the “Average Bonus™), and (B) a fraction based on the number of days in which the
Executve Director was employed dunng that year,

* pro-rated payments equal to the Executive Director’'s average bonus dunng any transiion penod whilst
the Executive continues te receve base salary, and

e payment of the Standard Benefit

Mr Siva will also be entitled to () continued participation under medical msurance plans for a penod of
six {6) months for him and each of hus eligible dependents, and (1) continuation of Ife and disability insurance
coverage for six (6) months

In the event of death or disability, stmilar payments will be mads as those payable as a termination for Good
Reason save that the payment of base salary shall only continue for 90 days after the death of tha Executive
Director and/ar until the commencement of long term disability payments in the case of termination due to
disability

The Executive Directors may terminate therr service contract without Good Reason at any time dunng
the term of the employment, provided they give at least ninety (S0) days’ advance wrtten notice If an
Executive Director terminates his employment with Allied Minds without Goed Reason {and not because of
his death or due to disability) or if such Executive Director delivers to Alled Minds a Nen-Renewal Notice,
the Executive Director shall be entitled solely to payment of the Standard Benefit

Each of the Non-Executive Directors {Richard Dawvis, Peter Dolan and Jeffrey Rohr) have lefters of
appointment that commenced May 2014, are for an initial fixed term of three years, which are rewiewed and
may be extended, and are terminable on one months’ notice by either party The letters of appaintment for
the Non-Executive Directors do not provide for any compensation on termination

The service contracts and letters of appointment are available for inspection at the Company's registered
office In accordance with the Code, all Directors submit themselves for annual re-election by shareholders
at each AGM
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Remuneration Policy on Payment for Loss of Office
The Directors beleve the payments owed upon loss of office detalled below are customary and appropnate
to attract and retain US-based senior management of the highest calber

The Committee reserves the nght to make payments where they are made in good faith in discharge of
an existing obligation (or by way of damages for breach of such an obligation) or by way of settlement or
compromise of any clam ansing in connection with the termination of a Director's office or employment
where they are in the best interest of Alled Minds and its shareholders and reflecting the directors’
contractual and legal nghts

Impact of Loss of Office on Awards under LTIP
Participants who cease {0 be employees, directors or service providers to the Group will normally forfert
any unvested awards

However, if a participant leaves as a result of death, disability, dismissal other than for cause or any other
reason determined by the Commuittee, awards will vest on the normal vesting date on a pro-rata basis
taking into account performance and the penod of time since the grant of the award and the date on which
the participant ceased to provide services The Committee may in its discretion determine that there are
axceptional circumstances Justifying vesting to a greater or lesser extent

Impact of Change of Control on Awards under LTiP

H there 1s a change of control of the Company, the number of Ordinary Shares over which awards will vest
will be calculated on the basis of the extent to which the performance cntena applicable to those awards
have been satisfied as at the date of the change of control The resulting number of shares will then be
reduced on a pro rata basis to reflect the reduced pernod betwsen the date the award was made and the
date of the change of control, unless the Committee decides otherwise In exceptional circumstances, the
Committee may recommend full vesting This discretion to accelerate vasting upen a change of control 1s
included in the LTIP to meet the expectations of a US-based workforce

Statement of Consideration of Employment Conditions Elsewhere in the Company

In considenng changes to the remuneration of the Executive Directors the Commuttes 1s mindful of pay and
conditions in the wider Group Whilst the Group operates a range of bonus plans appropriate to its various
businesses the main dnvers of these plans, in common with the cash incentive bonus awards to Executive
Directors, are the achievement of company milestones, and other company and indmdual objectives
The Committee has not expressly sought the views of employees and no remuneration companson
measurements were used when drawing up the Remuneration Policy Through the Board, however, the
Committee is updated as to employees’ views on remuneration generally

In the event that an employee 1s promoted to the Board that indvidual would be allowed to retain any pre-
existing incentive entitlement that had not vested at that ime
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Annual Remuneration Report (pages 79 to 87)
The Annual Remuneration Report will be subjact to an advisory vote at the AGM

Single Total Figure of Remuneration for Each Director (audited)
The following table sets out the single total figure for remuneration for Directors for the financral years ended
31 December 2014 and 2013

Base salary/
feesM Benefits® Pension Annual Bonus EBP® Total

in $'000 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Executive Directors
Chnstopher Siva 400 a35 40 34 - - 500 220 15,002 647 15,942 1,236
Mark Pntchard 350 294 7 2 - - 450 210 - - 807 506
Non-Executive Directors
Rick Dawvis® 80 50 - - - - - - - - 80 50
Peter Dolan 85 - - - - - - - - - 55 -
Jeffrey Robr 65 - - - - - - - - - 65 -
Notes

(1) Actual Non-Exacutrva Directors' fees, prorated for the portion of the year they served on the board

(2) Includes, where applicabls, Company contnbution to medical and dental insurance premiums, car allowance, and reimbursement
for personal legal and tax adwice

(3) Equity-based payments include awards under the US Stock Plan  All equity awards, inciuding stock options and restncted stock,
under the US Stock Plan became vested and fully exercisable, or vested and fully transferable, in connection with the IPO No
equity-based awards vested under the LTIP dunng 2014 or 2013 In addition, no equity-based awards are expected to vest under
the LTIP in 2015 or 2016

{4) Includes fees of $50,000 per year as director of Alied Minds, Inc (now Alled Minds, LLC) before becoming director of Allied Minds
plemn 2014

{5) In adchbion, N connection with the IPO, Chnstopher Silva and Richard Davis axercised stock options under the US Stock Plan,
resutting in pre-tax gan of $6 0 mithon and $1 7 milon, respectively

Individual Elements of Remuneration

Base Salary and Gash Incentive Bonus Awards during 2014

In January 2014, prior to the IPO, the independent member of the Board engaged the Hay Group to
conduct a compensation benchmarking study for the Company’s senior management in conjunction with
the Company’'s 2013 year-end compensation process, including an analysis of the traditionat elements
of executive pay (base salary, annual cash incentive bonus, long-term equity incentives and total direct
compensation) The Hay Group utihsed a vanety of mformation sources to evaluate the market for executive
compensation, including an analysis of nine US publicly-traded ¢companes and three UK publicly-traded
companies For the purpose of benchmarking salanes and other remuneration the pnncipal peer grouping
used by the Company censisted of companies within similar industry sectors which are either US or UK
listed with a range of capitalisations

Based upon the results of the benchmarking study, the independent director concluded that based upon
the modest cash incentive bonus awards that had been paid in the previous financial year, each of the
Executive Directors total direct compensation was below the 25th percentile of the peer group Given the
strong company performance in 2013, and the achievement of company and individual goals, the Board
recommended an increase n the level of cash incentive bonus awards, and an increase in base salary to
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

move the Executive Director total direct compensation above the 25th percentile of the peer group The
increase n base salary 1s reflected in the table above

In December 2014, the Remuneration Committee engaged the Hay Group to conduct a compensation
benchmarking study for the Company's senior management in conunction with the Company's 2014 year-
end compensation process, including an analysis of the traditional elements of executive pay (base salary,
annual cash incentive bonus, long-term equity incentives and total direct compensation) The Hay Group
utiised a vanety of information sources to evaluate the market for executive compensation, including an
analysis of eight US publicly-traded companies and three UK publicly-traded companies For the purpose of
benchmarking salanes and other reruneration the principal peer grouping used by the Company consists
of companies within simifar industry sectors which are either US or UK Iisted with a range of capitalisations

Based upon the results of the benchmarking study, the Remuneration Committee concluded that based
upon the continued modest cash incentive bonus awards that had been paid in the previous financial year,
each of the Executive Directors total direct compaensation was still at or below the 25th percentile of the peer
group Gven the strong company performance in 2014, and the achievement of company and indwvidual
goals, the Board recommended an increase In the level of cash incentive bonus awards, and an ncrease
in base salary to move the Exacutive Director total direct compensation above the 25th percentile of the
peer group, and towards tha 50th percentile of the peer group The Remuneration Committes designed the
increases to reflect its policy of moving the Executive Director compensation, 1in connection with superor
performance, towards the 50th percentile of the peer group The Remuneration Committee also designed
the mcreasss to emphasise the varable corponent of compensation, by allocating more of the increase to
the cash incentive bonus award and not base salary Notwithstanding the increasas, the Executive Director
total drect compensation remamned below the median for the peer group duning 2014 The increase in base
salary 15 set forth in the Remunsration Policy tables above Tha increase n cash incentive bonus award 13
reflected i the table above

LTiP Awards made during 2014 (audited)

Face value % of value % of value
Basis of Numberof ofaward tovestat tovestat
Type award shares {5'000) threshold target Vesting conditions

Executive Directors

Christopher Siva RSU  Seebelow 1,398,341 $ 4,500 33% 67%  Basad on performance
achievernent, 50% end of 2016,
25% end of 2017, 25% end of
2018

On the date of the IPQ, the LTIP award above was granted to the Chief Executive Officer The total value
of the award has been calculated using the IPO price of 190p The level of award was determined by
the Committee after gving due consideration to the fact that the Chuef Executive Officer would have no
unvested equity following the IPO

Vesting of the LTIP award 1s dependent upon performance metnics measured over the three years to
31 December 2016, details of which are set out in the Remuneration Policy table on page 71 of the Report

The level of vesting for threshold performance 1s 33 33% of the maximum The level of vesting for target
performance I1s 66 67% of the maximum
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (continueq)

Long Term Incentive Plan Vesting during 2014 (audited information)
As descnbed above, the Company did not make any awards under the LTIP pner to the IPO Therefore, no
awards vested under the LTIP in 2014, or are expected to vast in 2015

US Stock Plan Awards made during 2014 {audited)

Face vatue % of value 9% of value
Basis of Numberof ofaward tovestat tovestat

Type award shares {$'000) threshold target Vesting conditions
Executive Directors
Chnstopher Sitva Option Pre-IPO 634,326 $1,576 na n/a Fully vested at IPOQ
Non-Executive Directors
Rick Dawis Shares Pre-IPO 39,600 $98 n‘a n/a Three years to June 2017
Peter Dolan Shares Pre-IPO 39,600 $98 n/a n/a Three years 1o June 2017
Jeffrey Rohr Shares Pre-IPO 39,600 $98 na n/a Three years to Juna 2017

Payments to Past Directors {audited information)
No payments to past Directors were made dunng the last financial year

Loss of Office Payments (audited information)
No payments for loss of office were made to past Directors dunng the last financial year

Total Pension Entitlements (audited information)

No payments for pension entitlements were made to Directors dunng the last financial year The Company
offers a retirement plan in accordance with subsection 401{k) of the Internal Revenue Code (401(k} Plan)
in which Executive Directars may make voluntary pre-tax contnbutions toward therr own retirement The
Company does not make any payments or contnbutions to such 401(k} Plan

Statement of Directors’ Shareholding and Share Interests (audited)

Share ownership plays a key role in the alignment of our executives with the interests of shareholders While
we have not imposed mimimum requirement for our Executive Directors, each of them has a very significant
shareholding and would exceed and reasonabls imit that we would impose The table below sets out the
number of shares held ocutnght by Crectors as at 28 Apr 2015

Shares Options to

Shares held conditional on purchase

outright performance shares Total
Executive Directors
Mark Prtchard! 22,407,704 - 550,000 22,957,704
Chnistopher Silva 2,844,402 1,398,341 3,105,498 7,348,241
Non-Executive Directors
Rick Davis 259,600 - - 259,600
Peter Dolan 39,600 - - 39,600
Jeffrey Rohr 39,600 - - 39,600
Notes

{1) Includes shares held through connacted persons
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (contnued)

Performance Graph

The graph below ilustrates the Company's Total Shareholder Return (TSR) performance relative to the
constituents of the FTSE 250 index excluding investment companies and the FTSE All Share index of which
the Company is a constituent, from the start of conditionat share dealing on 25 June 2014 The graph
shows performance of a hypothetical £100 invested and s performance over that penod

250

i /
150 /
100 r——= == =T — ok
50
0 \
25-06 31-12
2014 2014
=4=AtM =@-FTSE250 -  FTSE AliShare

Change in remuneration of Chief Executive compared to US Group employees
The table below sets out the increase m total remuneration of the Chisf Executive and that of our US Group
employees (excluding Directors) from 2013 to 2014

% change in % change n % change In

base salary  cash bonus benefits
CEQ 19.5% 127 3% 15 4%
US Group Employees 55% 93% 13 6%

Historical CEO remuneration outcomes

The table below summanses the Chief Executive single total figure for total remuneration, annual cash
incentive bonus award, and share award (US Stock Plan) as a percentage of maximum opportunity for the
last financial year As the company listed in 2014, the comparative for 2013 only 1s provided

2014 2013
CEO single tota! figure for remuneration $15,942 $1,236
Annua! cash incentive bonus award pay-out (% of maximum)™ nfa n/a
Share award vesting (US Stock Plan) (% of maximum)? 100% 100%

Notes

(1} The percentage of maximum 1s not applicable because the company did not have any ¢ap on cash incentrve bonus award
payments in those financial years As a percentage of base salary, the award was 65 7% in 2013, and 125 0% in 2014

(2) Equity-based payments inciude awards under the US Stock Plan  All equity awards, including stock options and restncted stock,
under the US Stock Plan became vested and fully exercisable, or vested and fully transtferable, in connection wath the IPO No
equity-based awards vested under the LTIP dunng 2013 or 2014 In addttion, no equity-based awards are expected to vest under
the LTIP in 2015 or 2016
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Relative importance of spend on pay
The chart below shows the total employee costs, change in Group Subsidiary Ownership Adjusted Value,
and change in share price from 2013 to 2014

The information shown in this chart 1s based on the following

+ Total employee pay Total US Group employee staff costs from note 5 on page 115, including wages
and salanes, sccial secunty and healthcare costs, and share-based payments

+ Change Iin Group Subsidiary Ownership Adjusted Value (GSQOAV) taken from page 20

* Returns to shareholders since the Group does not currently pay a dvidend, returns to sharsholders
are represented by the change in the Group’'s share pnce over the penod from 25 June 2014 to
31 December 2014 (annualised)

Tolal empicyss costs (Sm) GSOAV (8m) Shara Prica (Ep)
{+48 B%) (+32 8%} (+33 2%)

®m2014 = 2013

*Share price al IPO

Statement of implementation of remuneration policy in the following financial year
Base Salary and Benefits
Effective from 1 January 2015, the base salanes of the Executive Directors will be

Base Salary Increase % Increase
Chnstopher Silva $500,000 $100,000 25 0%
Mark Pritchard $425,000 $75,000 214%

As noted above, based upon the results of the benchmarking study, the Remuneration Committes
concluded that based upon the continued modest cash incentive bonus awards that had been pad in the
previous financial year, each of the Executive Directors total direct compensation was still at or below the
25th percentile of the peer group Given the strong company performance in 2014, and the achvevement
of company and indvidual goals, the Beard recommended an increase in the level of cash incentive bonus
awards, and an increase in base salary to move the Executive Director total direct compensation above the
25th percentile of the peer group, and towards the 50th percentile of the peer group The Remuneration
Committee designed the increases to reflect its policy of mowing the Executive Directar compensation, in
connection with supenor performance, towards the 50th percentile of the peer group
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (contnued)

Cash Incentive Bonus Awards

The Remuneration Committee does not expect to implement any changes to the cash incentive bonus
awards The Executive Director’s cash incentive bonus awards shall be considerad by the Committes upon
completion of the financial year The decision to provide any cash incentive bonus award and the amount
and terms of any such award, shall be in the sole and absolute discretion of the Committee Any award shall
be based on performance against cntena and subject to such conditions as the Committes may impose

When exercising this discretion to prowde an award, and making a determunation as to the appropniate
remuneration, the Committes where it is relevant, shall benchmark the remuneration against the Company’s
peer groups Tha results of benchmarking will, however only be one of a number factors taken into account
by the Remuneration Committee and which will include those set forth below

The Committee may consider any and all performance critena in making its determmation to provide an
award, and may generally consider

= the ndwidual performance of the Executive Director,
» the general performance of the Company, and
» KPlIs, the achievement of company milestones, and other company and individual objectives

Long Term Incentive Plan

The Remuneration Commuttee expects to make LTIP awards subsequent to the release of this Annual
Report The number of awards 1s expected to be at a reduced level as compared to the awards made at
the time of the IPO Whilst the maximum value of Ordinary Shares over which awards under the LTIP may
be granted to a participant in any financial year of the Company may not generally exceed 300% of base
salary for that financial year, the Committee expects that any grant to Executive Directors will not exceed
200% of base salary per financial year

In respact of the 2015 awards, the Committee expects vesting to be dependent upon performance metncs
as follows

*  60% of sach award will be subject to performance conditions based on the Company’s total shareholder
return performance in respect of the penod from the date of the IPO until 31 December 2018, and

* 40% of each award will be subject to paerformance conditions hased on a basket of shareholder value
metnes, including but not imited to ) the increase in quality of pipeline ntellectual property reviewed,
{ii} the increase in quality of the partnership pipeline, and {in) subsidiary level performance (assessed by
reference to such matters as external funding raised, corporate collaborations, product co-development
and proof of pnncipal commercial pilots and revenues) Performance will be assesssd on these measures
on a scorecard basis over a three year period

Inrespect of the 2015 awards, at the end of the three year penod, performance against the relevant measures
will be calculated to determine the number of Orcinary Shares capable of vesting The level of vesting for
threshold performance will be 33 33% of the maximum The leve! of vesting for target performance will be
66 67% of the maximum
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Chairman and Non-Executive Directors
Effectve from 1 January 2015, the base salanes of the Charman and Non-Executive Directors will be

2015
Cash Component
Non-Executive Director Annual Fee $75,000
Audit Committee Charr Annual Fee $25,000
Remuneration Committee Char Annual Fee $10,000
Nomination Committee Chair Annual Fee $10,000
Chairman of the Board Annual Fee 375,000
Equity Component
Non-Executive Director LTIP Award Value $50,000
Charman of the Board LTIP Award Value $75,000

The Non-Executive Director annual fees, and Committee Charr annual fees set forth in the table above
remain unchanged from 2014 The fees proposed to be paid to the Charrman shall only be payable where
the Charman is a Non-Executive Director Given the US-based nature of the Group's business, and the
need to attract and retain independent directors with significant US business and {eadership expanence,
the proposed fees above include an equity component, which will have a time-based vesting schedule
Chnstopher Sitva and Mark Priichard, as Executive Directors, will not be entitled to any Board fees

Outside Appointments for Executive Directors

Any proposed external directorships are considered and approved by the Board to ensure they do not
cause a confiict of interest but, subject to this, Executive Directors may accept outside non-executive
appointments

Limits on the number of shares used to satisfy share awards (dilution limits)

All of the Group's incentive schemes that contain an element that may be satisfied in Alied Minds plc shares
incorporate prowisions that in any ten-year period {(ending on the relevant date of grant), the maamum
number of the Shares that may be issued or 1ssuable under all such schemes shall not exceed 10% of
the 1ssued ordinary share capttal of the Company from time to time (excluding shares 1ssued pursuant to
awards granted pnor to IPO under the US Stock Plan)

The Commuttee regularly monitors the position and pnor to the making of any share-based award considers
the effect of potental vesting of outstanding awards to ensure that the Company remains within these
limits Any awards which are required o be satisfied by market purchased shares are excluded from such
calculations No treasury shares were held or utdised n the year ended 31 December 2014

Consideration by the Directors of matters relating to Directors’ remuneration

The full terms of reference of the Committee, which are reviewed annually, are avaslable on the Group's
website at www alliedminds com in summary, the Remuneration Committee has specific responsibihty
for advising the Group’s Board on the remuneration and other benefits of executive directors, an overall
policy in respect of remuneration of other employees of the Group and establishing the Group's policy with
respect to employee incentivisation schemes
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (contnuead)

The Remuneration Committes compnses the following independent non-executive directors, all of whom
served from the IPO through the end of the financial year, and whose backgrounds and expenence are
summansed on pages 43 to 44

¢ Richard Dawis (Chair)
+ Peter Dolan
¢ Jeffrey Rohr

Committes meetings are admmistered and minuted by the Company Secretary In addition, the Commuttee
received assistance from the Chief Executive Officer, President and Director of Finance, each of who attend
meetings by inwvitation, except when matters relating to their own remuneration are being discussed

Dunng the year, the key actvities carned out by the Committee were

* Reviewed and approved an appropriate Remuneration Policy for a UK histed cornpany, whilst also
ansunng that it was designed to continue to attract and retain US-based management and employees
of the highest caliber,

* Designed and adopted a UK LTIP to advance the Committee's policy to prowide a competitive,
performance-linked long-term incentive mechanism that will (i) attract, retan and motivate indviduals
with the required personal attributes, skilis and expenence, (i) provide a real incentive to achieve our
long-term strategic objectives, and (i) and align the interests of management and shareholders,

= Considered (j) the indmdual performance of the Executive Directors, (i) the general performance of the
Company, and () KPIs, the achievement of company milestones, and other company and indivdual
objectives, and carned cut benchmarking, in order to determine the cash incentive bonus awards for
the Executive Cfficers for the last financial year,

» Considered the (i) scale, scope and responsibility of the role, (i) skills and expenence of the indmdual,
{i) retention nsk, {iv) base salary of other employees, {v) and economic envircnment, and carned out
benchmarking, in order to determine base salanes of the Executive Directors, for the penod starting 1
January 2015,

* Issued the initial LTIP awards at the time of the IPO,

* Rewviewed progress aganst LTIP performance targets for the last financial year,

s Established LTIP performance targets for the current financial year, and

* Reviewed of the remuneration reporting regulations in connection with the development of the Group's

Remuneration Policy and preparation of the Directors' Remuneration Report

External advisers

The Remuneration Commuttee is authonsed, If it wishes, to seek independent specialist services to provide
information and adwice on remuneration at the Company’s expense, including attendance at Commuittee
mestings

During the year the Remuneration Committee continued 1ts review of executive remuneration and took nto
consideration professional advice from Hay Group carmed out in in January 2014, in the months leading
up 1o the IPO in June 2014, and in December 2014 Hay Group performed peer benchmarking 1o assist
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued)

the Committee with determinations regarding base salary and cash incentive bonus awards, and assisted
in the design of the LTIP adopted at the IPO Fees paid to Hay Group in connection with advice to the
Committee in 2014 were $83,000 (2013 nil} Hay Group did not provide any other services or advice to the
Group dunng the year They are a member of the Remuneration Consuitants Group and adhere to its Code
of Conduct in refation to executive remuneration consulting in the UK

Statement of voting at general meeting

As mentioned previously, Alled Minds has not held an AGM since listing and therefore no voting outcomes
are avallable We will publish detals of remuneration related voting outcomes In next year's Directors'
Remuneration Report

Remuneration disclosure

This report complies with the requirements of the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
Regulations 2008 as amended in 2013, the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code (September
2012) and the Listing Rules

Approval
This Directors’ Remuneration Report, including both the Remuneration Policy and Annual Remuneration
Report has been approved by the Board of Directors

Richard Davis
Chairman of the Remuneration Commitiee

28 Apnl 2015
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Audit Committee Report

The Committee plays an integral role in assisting the Board fuffil its oversight responsibilities In performing
its duties, the Committee strives to maintain effective working relaticnships with the Board, the Company’s
management and the external auditors The Committee reviews the integnty of the financial statements of
the Group, reviews all proposed half-yearly and annual results, and advises the Board whether it believes
the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, farrly present the Company’s financial posiion and
providse the necessary information to the shareholders of the Company to assess the Group performance,
business model, and strategy

Membership

The Committee compnses three iIndependent Non-executive Directors Members of the Committes are
apponted by the Board The CEO, COQ, Directer of Finance, General Counsel and external auditors also
participate iIn Committee meetings by invitation As Char of the Committee, Mr Jeffrey Rohr has the relevant
financial expensence being a Certified Public Accountant with over thirty years of senior management and
executive expenence In 2014, Mr Peter Dolan and Mr Rich Davis served as the other two mndependent
members of the Committee

Being the first year since incorporation of the Company, the Committee met four trmes 1n 2014, of which
the external auditors participated in three of the meetings Messrs Rohr, Davis and Dolan were present at
all mestings dunng the year

Duties

The Commuittee’s main responsibilities are to monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the Company,
including its annual and half-yearly reports and accounts and any other formal announcement relating to
its financial performance, reviewing and reporting to the Board on significant financial reporting 1ssues and
judgements which they contain having regard to matters commurucated to it by the auditor The roles and
responsibilities of the Audit Committee additionally include

s Review the Company's intemal financial controls and the Company's nternal control and nsk
management systems,

* Adwvise on the need and monitor and review the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit funchion,

* Make recommendations to the board, for it to put to the shareholders for ther approval in general
meeting, in relation to the appointment of the external auditor and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external audrtor,

s Review and monitor the external auditor’'s independence and objectivty and the effectiveness of the
audit process, taking into consideration relevant UK professional and regulatory requirements,

* Develop and mplement policy on the engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit services,
taking into account relevant ethical guidance regarding the provision of non-audit services by the
external audit firm, and to report to the board, identfying any matters in respect of which it considers
that action or improvement I1s needed, and making recommendations as to the steps to be taken, and

* Report to the board on how 1t has discharged its responsibilities

The Committee carries out these duties for the Company, major subsidiary undertakings and the Group as
a whole, as appropnate
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Audit Committee Report (continued)

Activities during the year
The Committee's actmvities for the year ended 31 December 2014, are set out below

Financial reporting
* Reviewed and approved the appropnate audit plan, before the start of the annual audit cycle,

» Reviewed and provided comments and recommendations in respect of the financial statements in the
half-yearly report for the penod endead 30 June 2014, the financial information included in the short form
of the prospectus prepared in connection with the Company's inital public offenng, covenng the three
yaar perod ended 31 December 2013, and the financial statements in the annual report and accounts
for the year ended 31 December 2014,

* Reviewed the Company's approach and methedology for determining the far value of investments,
including review of the far value reports on the individual investments Considered and recommended
the involvement of external vatuation specialist firm to assist management and the Board in derving the
far value of the subsidiary undertakings,

* Considered significant matters, nisk areas, and areas of judgement in relation to the Group’s financial
statements taking into account the areas hightighted by the external auditors in ther presentations to
the commuittee, and challenged where necessary

The Committee 15 satisfied with the integnty of the financial statements of the Company in all matenal
aspects, ncluding the apphcation of significant accounting policies, the methods used to account for
significant transactions, use of judgements and estimates made by management, including those made in
denving the farr value of the subsidiary undertakings, and the qualty and completeness of the disclosures
in the financial statements of the Company

Internal controls and nsk management systems

+« Reviewed the principal elements of the Company's nsk management framework as set out on pages
38 to 42 of this annual report The Committee gives consideration and provides guidance on enhancing
the internal controls and nsk management framework, as needed,

* Reviewed the established procedures, which provide a reascnable basis for the Board to make proper
judgements on an ongoing basis as to the financial position and prospects {FPP) procedures of the
Company following the adopted nsk approach,

+ Aformal whistleblower policy was established and approved by the Board, which has been communicated
to employees The Audit Committee 1s satisfied that the policy has been designed to encourage staff to
report suspected wrongdoing as soon as possible, prowide staff with guidance on how to raise those
concerns, and ensure staff that they should be able to raise genuine concerns without fear of reprisals,
even If they turn out to be mistaken

Significant areas reported to the Board

Valuation of Group subsicianes

Al the close of each annual financial penod, the Directors formally approve the value of all subsidiary
businesses in the Group, which 1s used to derve the Group Subsidiary Ownership Adjusted Value (GSOAV)
This Group Subsidiary Ownership Adjusted Value 15 a sum-of-the-parts (“SOTP') valuation of all the
subsidianes that make up the Group
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Audit Committee Report (continued)

The Audit Committee discusses with management and the auditors the approprateness of the adopted
methodology and approach in dermving the GSOAV Further details of the Group valughon methodology are
outhned in note 11 on pages 127 to 131 Although the farr values of the Group's Investments in subsidianes
are not included in the Group’s Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, additional disclosures ars
provided in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements This s a significant performance metnc for
the Group and an important part of the annual audst

Share-based incentives

In 2014, the Group adopted the UK Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) and made awards under the LTIP upon
the Company’s admission to the LSE in respect of a total of 4,618,842 Ordinary Shares The respective
share-based payment charge to the financial statements 1s determined by reference to the far value of
the award and based on key judgements The cheice of valuation methodology and the mnputs used to
calculate the imitial far value and number of shares expected to be issued 1s one of the key areas of the audit
based on the matenality of the awards

Capitahisation of development cost

Gwven the nature of our business, the Group incurs significant research and development costs Due to the
early stage of development of most of our subsidianes, there 1s a limited history of achieving both technical
feasibility and commercial viabilty that can be used as a base for assessing and determining whether
the developmeant costs have met the critena for capitalisation As such, as key judgements are made n
determining whether the capitalisation critena are met and there 1s therefore a nsk of development cost not
being appropnately capitalised, which 1s a significant nsk for the financial statements and an important part
of the annua! audit

External audit

¢ Reviewed and approved the scope of the external audit procedures over the hatf-yearty report for the
period ended 30 June 2014, and the annual report and accounts for the year ended 31 Decermber
2014,

* Discussed with management and agreed the terms of the engagement of the external auditors and
the auditors’ remuneration for audit and non-audit services In assessing independence, the Audit
Committee receved the auditor's presentation and confirmation that in ther professional judgment,
KPMG 1s iIndependent within the meaning of regulatory and professional requirements and the objectivity
of the partner and audit staff is not i/mpared The Cormmittee was satisfied that throughout the year that
the objectivity and independence of KPMG was not in any way imparred by the non-audit services they
provided to the Group dunng the year, by the amounts of nen-audit fees, or by any other factors,

* Assessed the ndependence, objectmity and qualfications of KPMG as the external auditor and evaluated
the quality and effectiveness of the audrt procedures In doing so, the Committee reviewed the audit plan
and monitored performance against the plan, reviewed the penodic reports of KPMG to the Committee
that highlighted hey areas of focus dunng the audt and the apphed audit approach, obtamned feedback
from the finance department in respect to quality and status of KPMG work in the course of the audit
The Committee concluded that the audit process dunng the year was effective,

* Rewviewed and discussed the principal areas of financial reporting nsk, as highlighted abovs, and report
to the Board
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Audit Committee Report (continued)

KPMG has been the extermal auditor of the Group since the first audt of the consolidated financial
statements in 2008 The total fees to KPMG for the year ended 31 Decembaer 2014 were $2 3 milion, of
which $1 9 milion were for non-audit services pnmanly related to the listing on the LSE in June 2014 (ses
note 5 of the consolidated financial statements)

The Audit Committse currently intends to recommend to the Board a resolution to shareholders to appoint
KPMG LLP as the external audit firm at the AGM to be held on 28 May 2015

Internal audit

Given the size and composition of the Group, taking into account retevant significant matters, nsk areas,
areas of judgement in relation to the Group’s financial statements, and the centralised mternal controls
system in respect to the Group’s financial reporting process, the Board did not consider it necessary to
have an internal audit function dunng the year

Jeffrey Rohr
Chairman of the Audit Committee

28 Apnl 2015
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ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014 ALLIED MIND

Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of Allied Minds plc only

Opinions and conclusions arising from our audit

1. Our opinion on the financial statements is unmodified
We have audited the financial statements of Alled Minds plc for the year ended 31 December 2014 set out
on pages 97 to 151 In our opinion

+ the financial statements give a true and farr view of the state of the Group's and of the parent company's
affars as at 31 December 2014 and of the Group’s loss for the year then ended,

s the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU),

* the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Accounting
Standards, and

+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006 and, as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the |1AS Regulation

2. Our assessment of risks of material misstatement
In arnving at our audit opinion above on the financial statements the nsks of matenal misstatement that had
the greatest effect on cur audit were as follows

Group Subsidiary Ownership Adjusted Value ($488 0 mithon}
Refer to page 89 (Audit Committee Report) and pages 127 to 131 (financial disclosures)

The Group owns 25 subsidianes in which it has ownership stakes of between 48% and 100% The results
and financial position of the subsidianes are consolidated in the group accounts Although the far values
of the Group’s holdings in subsidianes are not Included In the Group’s Statement of Financial Position,
the financial statements do include additional disclosure in relation to the Group Subsichary Ownership
Adjusted Value of the subsichanes, as, in the Directors’ view, the far value ¢f the subsidiares s very
pertinent to the shareholders and other users of the financial staternents The valuation methodologies
are based primanly on net present value or nsk-adjusted net present value from discounted cash flows A
small minonty of the valuations are based on recent third party investment or asset-based methodologies
(see note x for more details) The Group's subsidiaries are, for the most part, still at the development stage
and the majonty do not yet generate revenues Due to the nherent uncertainty involved i forecasting
the trading of such companies and the relevance of the Group Subsidiary Ownership Adjusted Value
disclosures in the Group accounts, this has been determined to be a significant nsk

Our response - In this area our audit procedures included, among others,

* Assessing the appropnateness of the valuaton model used for each subsidiary, obtaning an
understanding of how the forecasts are compiled and assessing for consistency with the approach
taken in the pror year

+ Woe obtaned and analysed the valuations prepared by an external expert on behalf of the company

+ We used our own valuation specialst to assist us in evaluating the assumptions and methodologies
used n the valuations
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of Allied Minds plc only (contnued)

s We critically assessed the appropriateness of the assumptions underiying the forecasts, including
assumptions over projected revenue and operating costs and the discount rates applied, assessing
also for consistency with the assumptions used in the prior year In doing this we used our knowledge of
each subsidiary and its industry with reference to both internal management information and externally
derved data and benchmarks, including market size data, royalty rates and competitor analyses based
on mnformation from pubhc matenal

+ Where valuations are based on the implied value from the most recent thrd party investment we
assessed the accuracy of the data used and the reascnableness of the conclusion in the context of the
wider value of the entity

* We also assessed whether the Group's disclosures were consistent with the valuations performed and
whether the group’s disclosures adequately highlight the uncertainty mherent in the valuations

Share based incentives - Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) {31 3 million)
Refer to page 90 {Audit Committee Report), page 108 {(accounting policy} and pages 117 to 118 (financial
disclosures)

The nsk — During 2014 the group made equity-settled awards over 4,619,842 ordinary shares under a L.ong
Term tncentive Plan (L.TIP) made to employees, officers and directors of, and other indmiduals providing
services to the Company and its subsidianes which has resulted in a share based payments charge in the
Group's financial statements The respective share based payments charges are principally determined
by reference to the farr value of the equity instruments awarded and the number of shares expected to
be 1ssued The choice of valuaton methodology and the inputs used to calculate the intial farr value and
number of shares expected to be 1ssued 1s one of the key judgemental areas of our audit This 1s deemed
to be an arsa of significant nisk in view of the matenalty of the amounts involved, the sensitivity of these
amounts to a change in the assumgptions used and the techrical complexity (for example, in order to value
the total shareholder return element the Group utiises the Monte Carlo simulation analysis)

Qur response ~ In this area our audit procedures included, among others,

+ Assessing the appropnateness of the valuation model used and evaluating the assumptions and
methodologies used by the Group to value awards and estimate the number of shares that will eventually
be 1issued

s We agreed key inputs in the models to internally and externally dernved sources

*« We used our own valuaton specialists to assist us In cntically assessing the key mputs which reguire
significant estimation and judgement in their selection and can have a significant impact on the denved
far value and estimate of the number of shares that will be 1ssued, specifically the rnsk free rate,
share volatiity, leaver assumptions and performance conditions These key nputs were assessed for
reasonableness by reference to external data or internal information such as past history in the case of
leaver assumptions, along with reports from the group’s external consultants

* We also considered the adequacy of the Group's disclosures in relation to the key assumptions related
to the scheme
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of Allied Minds plc only (continued)

Capitalisation of development costs ($0 2 milion)
Refer to page 90 {Audit Committee Report), page 106 (accounting policy) and pages 123 to 124 {financial
disclosures)

Thensk - The Group incurs significant research and development costs Due to the early stage of development
of most of the Group's subsidianes, management has mited history on which to base its assessment of
both technical feasibility and commercial viabiity in order to ascertain whether the development costs
have met the cntena for capitalisation There I1s therefore a nsk that development costs which have met the
requirements of the relevant accounting standards have not been capitalised, and this 1s therefore one of
the key judgemental areas of our audit

Our response —~ In this area our audit procedures included, among others,

+ Cnheally assessing on a product by product basis the Group's assessment of whether technical and
commercial feasibility had been achieved The assessment of techrical viabiity included reviewing
whether successful product testing had been performed and whether regulatory approval had been
achieved In relation to commercial viabilty we challenged the assumptions made as to whether the
current market proposition, sales recorded or orders received in relation to specific products were
indicative of commercial feasibility, using our knowledge of each subsidiary and of the industry In which
it operates

* We have also considered the adequacy of the Group's disclosures and related judgerments in relation to
the capitalisaticn of development costs

3. Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit

The matenality for the Group financial statements as a whole was set at 30 9m This has been determined
with reference to a benchmark of total expenses (of which it represents 1 5%), which we consider to be
one of the principal considerations for the members of the company in assessing the financial perfermance
of the group, since the Group's activities are currently pnncipally in relation to expenditure on developing
forms of intellectual property which can be exploited commercially to generate income and growth in the
future

We agreed with the audit committee to report to it all corrected and uncorrected misstaterments we dentifisd
through our audt with a value In excess of $45,000, in addition to other audit misstaterments below that
threshold that we beheve warranted repcrting on gualitative grounds

All subsichanes in the Group are located in the US and are centrally administered and therefore we performed
the audt as if it was a single aggregated set of financial Information usng the matenalty fevel set out above
The audit covered 100% of total Group revenue, Group profit before tax, and total Group assets The audit
15 performed by the UK Group team assisted by a US component auditor The UK Group audit team 1ssued
detatled audit instructions to the component auditor These instructions covered the significant audit areas
that should be coverad by the audit {(which included the relevant nsks of matenal misstatement detailed
above) and set out the information required to be reported back to the Group audt team

The Group audit team maintained close communication with the component audit team throughout the
engagement including but not imited to discussions and meetings i relation to nsks identified, the audit
approach to be adopted, the results of procedures performed and significant findings
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of Allied Minds plc only (contnued)

4. Our opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 is unmodified
In cur opinion

+ the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006, and

= theinformation given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared 15 consistent with the financial statements, and

5. We have nothing to report in respect of the matters on which we are required to
report by exception

Under ISAs (UK and Ireland) we are required to report to you if, based on the knowledge we acquired dunng

our audit, we have identified other information in the annual report that contains a matenal inconsistency

with either that knowledge or the financial statements, a matenal misstatement of fact, or that 1s otherwise

misleading

In particular, we are required to report to you If

* we have identified matenal inconsistencies between the knowledge we acquired dunng our audit and
the directors’ statement that they consider that the annual report and financial statements taken as a
whole 1s farr, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders to
assess the Group’s performance, business model and strategy, or

+ the Audit Committee Report does not appropriately address matters communicated by us to the audit
committee

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, n our opmion

= adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

* the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited are not In agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

+ certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

+ we have not received all the information and explanatiens we require for our audit
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

+ the Directors’ statement, set out on page 60, in relation to going concern, and

» the part of the Corporate Governance Statement on page 51 refating to the company’s complance wath
the ten provisions of the 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review

We have nothing to report in respect of the above responsibilitres
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ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014

Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of Allied Minds plc only (continueq)

Scope of report and responsibilities

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Respensibiiies Statement set out on page 49, the Directors are
responsible for the praparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
farr view A descnption of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at wyww frc.org uk/auditscopeukprivate This report 1s made solely to the company's
members as a body and I1s subject to important explanations and disclaimers regarding our responsibilities,
published on our wabsite at www.knma.com/uk/auditscopeukco?014a, which are incorporated into this
raport as if set out i full and should be read to provide an understanding of the purpose of this report, the
work we have undertaken and the basis of our opinions

Charles ie Strange Meakin (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants
15 Canada Square
Canary Wharf

London

E14 5GL

28 Aprl 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Loss

For the year ended 31 December Note 2014 2013
$'000 $000
Revenue 3 7,715 2,936
Operating expenses
Cost of revenue 4.5 (5,416) {2,342)
Selling, general and administrative expenses 4,5 (38,032) (27,472)
Research and development expenses 4.5 (22,195) {(15,689)
Operating loss (57,928) (42,567)
Finance income/{cost), net 7 222 (140)
Loss before taxation (57,706) (42,707)
Taxation — —
Loss for the year (57,706) {42,707)
Other comprehensive {loss)/income:
ltems that may be reclassified subsequentty to profit or loss (159) 35
Foreign currency translation differences
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, net of taxation {159) 35
Total comprehensive loss (57,865) (42,672)
Loss attnbutable to- '
Equity holders of the parent {45,478} (34,501)
Non-contraling interests 17 {12,228) {8,206)
{57,706) (42,707) !
Total comprehensive loss attnbutable to- P
Equity holders of the parent (45,637) (34,466) 3
Non-controling interests (12,228) (8.206) )
(57,865) (42,672) gB
o]
Loss per share $ $ g
Basic 8 (0 24) (O 24) p=
Diluted 8 (0.24) (0 24) @

See accompanying notes to consokdated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

As of 31 December Note 2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Non-current assets
Property and equipment 9 16,330 18,001
Intangible assets 10 3,409 4,504
Investment In equity accounted investeas " 1,560 -
Other nvestmeants 12 22176 —
Other financial assets 21 118 484
Other non-current assets 146 38
Total non-current assets 44,039 23,027
GCurrent assets
Cash and cash equivalents 13 224,075 104,551
Other investments 12 15,231 -
Inventorles 14 2,918’ 1,045
Trade and othar recevables 15 6,305 2,870
Othar financial assets 21 481 312
Total currant assets 248,91 108,778
Total assets 293,030 131,805
Equity
Share capital 16 3,411 2,445
Share premium 16 153,442 —
Merger raserve 16 185,544 185,544
Other reserve 16 28,753 19,814
Translatlon reseive 15 (61) 98
Accumulated deficit 16 {123,186) (90,648)
Equity attributable to owners of the Gompany 247,903 ' 117,253
Non-controlling interasts 186,17 31,911 2,606
Total equity 279,814 119,859
Non-current habilities
Loans 18 338 2,744
Deferred rovenue 3 197 188
Other non-cumrent fiabilities 19 182 278
Total non-current liabilities 7 3,210
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 11,339 5,038
Defermed revenue 3 947 2,642
Loans 18 213 1,066
Total current habilihes 12,499 8,736
Total habilities 13,216 11,946
Total equity and habllities 293,030 131,805

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
Registered number 8998697

The financial statements on pages 97 to 147 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for
1ssue on 28 Aprit 2015 and signed on its behalf by

Chnstopher Silva ( : 4 by
Chief Executive Officer

Page 98 of 152




ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014

ALLIED MINDS”

Consolidated Statements of Changes in

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Equity

Accumue Non-
Note Share capital Share Merger Other  Translation lated Total parent controlling Total
Shares Amount  premium reserve reserve maarve deficit squity intanasts squity
$000 $000 $ 000 $'000 $ 000 $'000 $'000 $ 000 $000

Balance at 31 Dacember 2012 122923 418 1922 - 86 957 14,839 83 (55 142) 48,639 9 675 58314
Total comprehensive loss for
the year

Loss from continuing

operabons - - - - - -~ (34501) {34 501) 8208  (42700)

Forsgn carrency transtabon - - - - - 35 - 35 - 35
Total comprehensive loss for
the year 35 (34 601) (34 468) (8 208} 42 672)
Issuance of ordinary shares 1817 34 468 742 522 - 98 612 - - - 96134 - 99134
New funds nta non-controling
interast 1817 - - - - - - - - 52 52
Gan/foss) arisng from change
i non-controting nterest 1817 - - - - - - 2212) {2213 2212 -
Deconsolidation of subsidhares 17 - - - 80) - - 1207 1127 {,12m -
Exercige of stock ophons 8 71632 1 - 55 - - - 56 - 56
Equity-settied share based
payments 1 - - - - 4975 - - 4975 - 4975
Balance at 31 December 2013 157 463,790 2445 - 185 544 19814 o8 (90 B48) 117 253 2 608 119 850
Total comprehensive loss for
the year

Loss from contirung 1

oparations - - - - - - {45,478) {45,478) 2,228) {57,706} |

Foregn cumency ransiation - - - - - (156) - (159) - {159},
Total comprehensive loss tor | M
the yaar (159) (45478) (45,637) (12.228)  {57,868)! =
|ssuance of ordinary shares 1817 | 48,184 365 818 142,243 - -~ - - 143,081 - 143 061 1 %
New funds nto non-controling O |
miterest 1817 - - - - - - - - 54473 54473 o |
Ganfioss) artsing from change “ o
N non-controling nterest 1817 - - - - - - 12,940 12,840 12,8404 - -

|
Exertise of stock optons 8! ag17.424 148 11,199 - - - - e - 1147 =)
Equty settiod sharo basod 4 ®
payments a8 - - - - 8,939 - - 8,439 - 8,939 ('BD
Balance at 31 December 2014 1214,445,570 3411 153442 185544 28,753 (61) (123,186) 247,903 3911 279814 =3
w

See accompanying notegs to consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December Note 2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Net operating loss {57,928) (42,567)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in
operating activities
Depreciation Q 2,312 1,352
Amortisation 10 580 532
Imparrment losses on property and equipment g 416 S
Imparment losses on intangible assets 10 1,063 884
Share-based compensation expense 56 8,939 4975
Changes in working capital
Increase i mventory 14 (1,874) (402)
Increase in trade and other recevables 15 (3,626) {2,540)
Increass in trade and other payables 19 6,301 951
Decrease n other non-current habihties 19 (96) (51)
{Decrease)/increase n deferred revenue 3 {1,686) 1,923
Interest received 7 545 324
Interest paid 7 {320) (3086)
Other finance cost 7 {3) (158)
Net cash used in operating activities (45,377) (35,078)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment, net of disposals a {1,217) (10,527)
Purchases of intangible assets, net of disposals 10 (547) (148)
Purchases of Investment in equity accounted investees 1 {1,560) -
Purchases of other investments 12 {(37,407) —
Net cash used in investing actwities {40,731) (10,675)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 16 11,347 55
(Repayment)fissuance of notes payable 18 {3,249) 2,865
Proceeds from issuance of share capital 16 143,061 99,135
Proceeds from issuance of share capital in subsidiaries 17 54,473 14,500
Net cash provided by financing actvities 205,632 116,555
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 119,524 70,802
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 104,551 33,749
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 224,075 104,551

See accompanying notes to consclidated financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(1) Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation
Alled Minds plc ("Alhed Minds” or the “Company”) 1s a company incorporated and domiciled in the
UK The Annual Report and Accounts of Alled Minds and its subsidiares (together referred to as
the “Group”) are presented for the year ended 31 December 2014 The group financial statements
consoldate those of the Company and its subsidianes and the Group's interest In associates The
Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the directors in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards, international Accounting Standards, and Interpretations
(collectively “IFRS™) 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") as adopted by
the European Union {*adopted IFRSs") The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise
stated, been applied consistently to all penods presented in these consolidated financial statements

Bass of Measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis

Use of Judgements and Estimates

In prepanng these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of the Group's accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, iIncome and expenses Actual results may differ from these estimates
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis Rewvisions to estimates are
recogrused prospectively

Significant estimates made by the Group include those used In calculating share-based payment
expense and related valuations, in particular when using Black Scholes or Monte Carlo models to
determine the value of the equity based awards, the judgements nvolved in determiruing the point
of capitalisation of development costs, the judgements used in considenng any imparment required
in relation to ntangible assets, and the judgements made in determiming control over subsidianes
Significant estimates are also made when determining the approprate valuation methodology and
derving the farr estimated far value of subsidiary undertakings These judgements include making
certain estimates of the future earmings potentia! of the subsidiary businesses, approprate discount
rate and earnings muitiple to be appled, marketability and other industry and company specific nsk
factors Information about these cntical judgements and estimates 1s included in the following notes

Changes in Accounting Policies
In these financial statements the Group has changed its accounting policies in the following areas

IFRS 10 Consohdated Financial Statements As a resuit of IFRS 10 (2011), the Group has changed its
accounting palicy for determining whether it has control over and consequently whether it consolidates
its investees IFRS 10 mtroduces a new control model that focuses on whether the Group has power
over an investee, exposure or nghts to vanable returns from its Involvernent with the investee and ability
to use its power to affect those returns
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In accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS 10, the Group reassessed the control conclusion
for its investess at 1 January 2014 No medifications of previous conclusions about control regarding
the Group's investees were required

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interest in COther Entibtes As a resull of IFRS 12, the Group has expanded
disclosures about its interests in subsidiaries and equity-accounted investees
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

Going Concern

The Directors have prepared trading and cash flow forecasts for the Group covering the penod to
31 December 2016 Despite the fact that the Group s currently l1o0ss making and 1s hkely to continue
to be so, at lsast in the short term, after making enquines and considenng the impact of nsks and
opportunities on expected cashflows, and given the fact that the Group has in excess of $250 million of
available funds in the form of cash and fixed income secunties as at 31 December 2014, the Dirrectors
have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate cash to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future For this reason, they have adopted the going concern basis in prepanng the
financial statements

Basis of Consaolidation

Alliled Minds plc was formed on 15 Apnl 2014 and on 19 June 2014 acguired Alled Minds Inc {now
Adlred Minds, LLC) by share exchange Each i1ssued and outstanding common stock of Alled Minds
Inc held by stockholders of Alled Minds, Inc {now Alled Minds, LLC) was cenverted into the nght to
receve twenty two ordinary shares of Alled Minds plc This has been accounted for as a common
control transaction under IFRS 3 B1 (see note 16), therefore the consolidated financial statements for
sach of the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 compnses the financial statements of Allied
Minds pic and the consclidated financial statements of Alted Minds, Inc {now Alled Minds, LLC) and
its subsichanes

Subsichanes

The financia! information of the subsidianes 1s prepared for the same reporting pericd as the parent
Company, using consistent accounting policies Subsidiares are entihes controlled by the Group The
Group controls an entity when it 1s exposed to, or has nghts to, vanabie retums from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power cver the entity The financial
statements of subsidianes are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests
in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controliing interests even if doing so causes the non-controfing
interests to have a defioit balance

Changes in the group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions Where the group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and liabilties are
derecognised along with any refated NCI and cther components of equity  Any resulting gain or loss
15 recognised in profit or loss Any interest retained in the former subsidiary 1s measured at far value
when control 1s lost

Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the
financial and operating policies Significant influence 1s presumed to exist when the Group holds
between 20 and 50 percent of the voting power of another entity

Associates are accounted for using the equity method (equity accounted investees) and are inihally
recogrised at cost The Group’s mvestment includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any
accumulated impairment losses The consolidated financial statements include the Group's share of
the total comprehensive income and equity movements of equity accounted investees, from the date
that signfficant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases When the Group's
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continueq)

share of losses exceeds s interest In an equity accounted investee, the Group’s carrying amount 18
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses 1s discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of an investee

Transactions elminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses ansing from intra-
group transactions, are elmmated Unreahsed gans ansing from transachons with equity-accounted
Investees are eliminated aganst the investment to the extent of the Group's interest in the nvestee
Unreahsed losses are ehminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there
1S no evidence of impairment

Acquisitions and disposals of non-controling interests

Non-conirolling interests {'‘NCI") are measured at ther proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets at the acquisition date Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions

Acquisitions and disposals of non-controlling interests that do not result n a change of control are
accounted for as transactions with owners in therr capacity as owners and therefore no goodwill 1s
recognised as a result of such transactions The adjustments to non-controlling interests are based on
a proportionate amount of the net assets of the subsidiary Any difference between the price pad or
recerved and the amount by which non-controlling interests are adjusted 1s recognised directly in equity
and attributed to the owners of the parent

Functional and Presentation Currency
This cansclidated financial statements are presented in US dollars, whitch is the functional currency of
most of the entities in the Group

Foreign Currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group
entities at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and habilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are retranslated to the functional currency
at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date Foreign exchange differences arising on translation
are recognised in the income statement Non-monetary assets and habiities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a fareign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction Non-monetary assets and labiliies denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at
far value are retranslated to the functional currency at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the
far value was determined

The assets and kabiliies of foreign operations, including goodwill and far value adjustments ansing on
consclidation, are translated to the Group's presentational currency U 'S dollar at foreign exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated
at an average rate for the year where this rate approximates to the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions Exchange differences ansing from this translation of foreign operations are
reported as an item of other comprehensive income and accumulated in the translation reserve or non-
controlling interest, as the case may be When a foreign operation 1s disposed of, such that contrat,
joint control or signficant influence (as the case may be) 1s lost, the entire accumulated amount in the

Page 103 of 152

n
3
Q
3
o
=
w
—
jav)
—4
(]
3
@
3
—
7]




ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014 ALLIED MINDS" /

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

Translation reserve, net of amounts previously attnbuted to non-controling interests, 1s reclassified to
profit or loss as part of the gan or loss on disposal When the Group disposes of only part of its interest
in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while still retaining control, the relevant proportion of
the accumulated amount is reattnbuted to non-controling interests When the Group disposes of only
part of its nvestment in an associate or joint venture that ncludes a foreign operation while still retaining
significant influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount 1s reciassified to
profit or loss

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include all highly kquid instruments with onginal maturities of three months
or less

Inventones

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value The cost of iInventones is based
on the specific identification or weighted-average method The cost of nventories ncludes expenditure
incurred 10 acquinng the nventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred N
bringing them to their existing location and condition in the case of manufactured inventones and work
In progress, cost includes an appropnate share of production overheads based on nermal operating
capactty

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses

Financial Instruments

Financial Assets

The Group initrally recogmises loans and recevables and deposits on the date that they are onginated
All other financial assets are recognised initially on the trade date at which the Group becomes a party
to the contractual prowssions of the instrument

The Group derecogrnises a financial assst when the contractual nghts to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers the nghts to receve the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in
a transaction in which substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership of tha financial asset are
transferred

Financial assets and llabities are offset and the net amount presented in the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position when, and only when, the Group has a legal nght to offset the amounts and
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the lizbility simultaneously

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following categories cash and cash equvalents,
trade and other receivables, secunty and other deposits, other investments Such financial assets are
recogrised at far value

Other investments comprise fixed income debt securities, ncluding govarnment agency and corporate
bonds, are stated at amortised cost less imparment It is the Group policy to hold these investments
till maximum matunity of three years
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Financial Lrabiltties

The Group initially recognises debt secunties 1ssued and subordinated habiites on the date that they
are oniginated All other financial labilties are recognised inttially on the trade date at which the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

The Group derecognises a financial iability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled
or expire

The Group classifies non-dervative financial llabilities into the following categenes trade and other
payables and loans Such financial labiities are recogrised initially at far value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs Subsequent to nitial recognition these financial iabilihes are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Warrants are accounted for as equity instruments and recorded at far value

Share Capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity The Group considers its capital to compnse share capital,
share premium, merger reserve, other reserve, translation reserve, and accumulated deficit

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment I1s stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses Cost includes expenditure that 1s directly atinbutable to the acquisiion of the
asset - Assets under construction represent machinery and eguipment to be used in operations, R&D
actvities, or to be leased to customers once completed

When parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful ives, thay are accounted for as
separate tems (major components) of property and equipment Depreciation 1s calculated using the
straight-ine method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets

Computers and electronics 3 vears

Furmiture and fixtures 5 years

Machinery and equipment 5 -20 years

Under construction Not depreciated until transferred nto use

Leasehold improvements Shorter of the lease term or estimated useful ife of the asset

Depreciation methods, useful ives and residual values are reviewed at least annually and adjusted f
approprate

Intangible Assets

Licences and Purchased In Process Research & Developrment

Licences reprasent licences provided by universittes and scientists 1n exchange for an equity cwnership
in the entites Purchased in process research & development (“IPR&D") represents time and expertise
already invested by the scientist and provided in exchange for an equity interest in the entity Licences
and purchased IPR&D are valued based on the amount of cash contributed by Alled Minds, at nception
of the subsidiary, and the proportionate amount of equity ascribed to Allled Minds  The licences and
IPR&D are capitalised only when they mest the criteria for capitalisation, namely separately identifiable
and measurable and it Is probable that economic bengfit will flow to the entity
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

Capitalised Development Costs

Research and development costs include charges from universities based on sponsored raesearch
agreements (SRAs) that the subsidanes of Alled Minds enter intc with universities Under these
agreements, the universiies perform research on the technology that i1s being hcenced to the
subsidianes Research and development costs also include charges from independent research and
development contractors, contract research organisations (CROs), and other research nstitutions

Expendrture on research activities 1s recognised in profit or loss as incurred Development expenditure
18 capitahised only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process 1s technically and
commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, the Group intends to and has sufficient
resourceas to complete development and to use or sell the asset, and if the Group can measure reliably
the expenditure attnbutable to the intangible asset durng its development The point at which technical
feasibiity 1s determined to have been reached 1s when regulatory approval has been raceived, where
apphcable Management determines that commercial viability has been reached when a clear market
and prcing pomnt have been identified, which may coincide with achieving recumng sales Development
activities involve a plan or design for the production of new or substantally mproved products or
processes The expenditure considered for capitalsation includes the cost of matenals, direct
labour and an appropnate proportion of overhead costs Ctherwise, the development expenditure 1s
recogrised m profit or 08§ as incurred Subsequent to initial recognition, development expenditure 1s
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated imparment losses

Software
Software intangible assets that ars acquired by the Group and have finite useful ives are measured at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses

Firnte-lived intangible assets are amortised on a straght-line basis over therr estimated useful lives,
from the date that they are avallable for use Intangible assets which are not yet available for use (and
therefore not amortised) are tested for mpairment at least annually

Amartisation

Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight-itne basis over the estimated useful lives
of intangble assets unless such ives are indefinite Intangible assets with an indefinite useful ife and
goodwill are systematically tested for imparment at each balance shest date Other intangible assets
are amortised from the date they are avallable for use Amortisation methods, usefut ives and residual
values are reviewed at least annually and adjusted If appropnate

The estimated useful ives of the Group's intangible assets are as follows

Licences Over the remaining iife of the underlying patents

Purchased IPR&D Over the remaining life of the underlying patents, once commercial
viability has been achieved

Development cost Over the remairing Ife of the underlying technology

Software 2 years

Page 106 of 152




ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014 ALLIED MINDS’

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year compnses current and deferred tax Tax 15 recogrised in the
income statement except to the extent that it relates to Hems recognised directly m equity, in which
case it 1s recognised in equity

Current Income Tax

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable or recevable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years

Deferred income Tax

Deferred tax s recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and habiliies for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes Deferred tax
assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be avalable aganst which they can be
used Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that 1t 1s
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised

Deferred tax 18 measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date

Deferred tax assets and habtlities are offset If there 15 a legally enforceable nght to offset current tax
kabilities and assets, and they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authonty on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities where the Group intends to settle current tax habilities and assets on
a net basis or ther tax assets and habilities will be realised smultaneously

Deferred taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to tems recogrised
directly in equity or in cther comprehensive income

impairment

Impawrment of Non-Financial Assets

Non-financial assets consist of property and equipment and intangible assets, including licences,
purchased IPR&D, capitalised development cost, with finite Ives and such intangible assets which are
not yet available for use
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The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property and equipment and finite-lived intangibles at
each reporting date to determine whether there 1s any indication of impairment  If any such indication
exists, then the asset's recoverable amount 1s estimated Intangible assets which are not yet avallable
for use are tested annually for imparment

For mparment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash nflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
cash-generating units ("CGUs")

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU 1s the greater of its value in use and its farr value less costs
to sell Value m use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to ther present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
nsks specific to the asset or CGU
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An impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds
its recoverable amount Impairment losses are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of assets in a
CGU on a pro rata basis

Impairment of Financial Assets
Financial assets not classified as at fair value through profit or loss are assessed at each reporting date
to determine whether there 15 objective evidence of imparment

Cbjective evidence that financiat assets are impaired includes

* default or delinquency by a debtor,

* restructunng of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise,
* indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy,

* aciverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or 1ssuers,

s the disappearance of an active market for a secunty, or

* observable data indicating that there 1s measurable decrease in expected cash flows from a group
of financial assets

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

The Group considers evidence of imparrment for these assets at both an individual asset and a
collective level All ndmdually significant assets are indwidually assessed for impairment Those found
not to be impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet
individually identified Assets that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for imparrment
Collective assessment 1s camed out by grouping together assets with smilar nsk charactenstics

In assessing collective imparrment, the Group uses histoncal information on the timing of recovenes
and the amount of loss incurred, and makes an adjustment if current economic and credit conditions
are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or lesser than suggested by histoncal trends

An impairment loss Is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of tha estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's onginal effective interest rate Losses
are recognised i profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account When the Group considers that
there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the assst, the relevant amounts are wntten off If the
amount of imparment oss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, then the previcusly recogrised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss

Share-based Payments

Share-based payment arrangements in which the Group receives goods or services as consideration
for its own equity nstruments are accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment transactions,
regardless of how the equity instruments are obtained by the Group

The grant date far value of share-based payment awards granted to employees 15 recognised as
an employee expense, with a corresponding increase 1IN equity, over the penod that the employees
becorme unconditionally entitied to the awards The fair value of the options granted 1s measured using
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an option valuation model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of awards for
which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the
amount ultmately recognised as an expense 1s based on the number of awards that do meet the related
service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date For share-based payment awards
with non-vesting conditions, the grant date far value of the share-based payment 1s measured to
reflect such conditions and there i1s no true-up for differences between expected and actual outcomes

Employee Benefits

Short-term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service 1s provided A liability 1s recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Group
has a prasent legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by
the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably

Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contnbution plan 18 a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contnbutions into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts
Obligations for contrbutions to defined contnbution plans are recognised as an employge benefit
expense In the penods during which related services are rendered by employees Prepaid contnbutions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments 1s
avallable

Phantom Plan
The Phantom Plan 1s a cash settled bonus plan Expense s accrued when it 1s determined that it 15
probable that a payment will be made and when the amount can be reasonably estimated

Provisions

A provision 1S recognised In the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, that can be rehably measured and 1t 1s probable that an outflow
of eccnomic benefits will be required 1o settle the obligation Prowvisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects nsks specific to the liability

Revenue Recognition

Sale of Goods

Revenue 1s recognised when the significant nsks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the customer, recovery of the consideration 1S probable, the associated costs and possible return of
goods can be estimated rehably, there is nc continuing management involvement with the goods and
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably

The transfer of significant nsks and rewards of ownership usually occurs when products are shipped
and the customer takes ownership and assumes nsk of icss

Rendering of Services
The Group recognises revenue from rendernng of services at the time services are provided to the
customer and the Group has no additional performance obigation to the customer
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Government Grants
Grants recewved are recogrmsed as revenue when the related work 15 performed and the qualfying
research and development costs are incurred

Finance Income and Finance Costs

Finance income mainly compnses interest ncome on funds nvested and foreign exchange gains
Finance costs mainly comprse loan interest expense and foraign exchange losses interest ncome
and interest payable are recogrised as they accrue in profit or loss, using the effective interest method

Fair Value Measurements
A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of far values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and labilities

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market observable data as far
as possible Farr values are categonsed into different levels in a far value hverarchy based on the inputs
used in the valuation techruques as follows

* Level 1 quoted pnces (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labiities

* Lavel 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included In Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
hability, either directly (1 @ as prices) or indirectly {| e dernved from prices)

s Level 3 inputs for the asseat or llability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
Inputs)

it the inputs used to measure the far value of an asset or a liabiity might be categonsed 1n different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same
level of the far value hierarchy as the lowest level input that 1s sigruficant to the entire measurement

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the far value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
penod dunng which the change has occurred

The carrying amount of cash and cash eguivalents, accounts receivable, depasits, accounts payable,
accrued expenses and other current liabilities In the Group's Consclidated Statements of Financial
Pasition approximates therr far value because of the short matunties of these instruments

Operating Leases

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease Lease incentives receved are recognised as an integral part of the total lease
expense, over the term of the lease

Operating Segments

Alked Minds determines and presents operating segments based on tha information that intemally 1s
provided to the executive management team, the body which 1s considered to be Alled Minds' Chief
Operating Decision Maker (' CODM™)

An operating segment 1s a compoenent of Alled Minds that engages in businass activiies from which
it may sarn revenues and ncur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Allied Minds' other components The operating segment’s operating results are reviewed
regularly by the CODM to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment, to assess
its perforrmance, and for which discrete financial information is available
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(2)

(3)

New Standards and Interpretations not yet Adopted

A number of new standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards are sffective for
annual penods begnning after 1 January 2015, and have not therefore been applied in prepanng
this consolidated financial information Management has yet to complete an analysis of these new
standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards on the results of its operations,
financial position, and disclosures The Group ntends to adopt these standards on ther respective
effective dates

The following are amended or new standards and interpretations that may mpact the Group Therr
adoption s not expected to have a matenal effect on the financial statements unless otherwise indicated

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (effective 1 January 2018)
IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers' (effective 1 January 2017)

Amendment to IFRS 11,'Joint arrangements on acquisition of an interest in a joint operation’, {effective
1 January 2016}

Amendment to IAS 16 ,'Property, plant and equipment’ and 1AS 38, 'Intangible assets’, on depreciation
and amortisation (effective 1 January 2016}

Amendment to IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, on general hedge accounting (effective date 1 Jan
2018}

Amendments to IAS 27, 'Separate financial statements’ on equity accounting (effective 1 January
2016)

Amendments to IFRS 10, 'Consolidated financial statements’ and 1AS 28,'Investments in associates
and joint ventures’ on sale or contnibution of assets (effective 1 January 2016}

Amendments to IFRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial statements’ and 1AS 28,’Investments In associates
and joint ventures' on applying the consolidation exemption (effective 1 January 2016)

Annual mprovements (2014) effective 1 January 2016

Amendments to |AS 1,'Presentation of financial statements’ disclosure intiative (effective 1 January
2018)

Revenue
Revenue recorded In the statement of comprehensive loss consists of the following

2014 2013
For the year ended 31 December. $'000 $'000
Product revenue 7,396 2,396
Service revenug 230 387
Grant revenue 89° 153
Total revenue In consolidated statement of loss 7,715 2,936
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(4}

Deferred revenue recorded in the statement of financial postion consists of the following

2014 2013
As of 31 December $'000 $'000
Customer deposits 526 2,253
Other deferred revenua, current 421 389
Deferred revenue, current 947 2,642
Ceferred revenua, non-current 197 188
Total deferred revenue in statement of financial position 1,144 2,830

Operating Segments

Basis for Segmentation

For management purposes, the Group's principal operations are currently organised in two reportable
segments

{) Early stage companies - subsidiary businesses that are in tha early stage of ther Ifecycle
charactensed by incubation, research and development actvties, and

fi) Commercial stage companies - subsidiary businesses that have substantially complsted their
research and development actviies and that have developed one or more products that are
actively marketed

Due to ther size and nature Spin Transfer Technologies, Inc {or “*STT", an early stage company) and
RF Biocidics, Inc {or ‘RFB'", a commercial stage company) are not aggregated and presented as two
additional separate reportable segments The Group's principal operations are therefore presented as
four reportable segments being early stage company - STT, early stage companies - other, commercial
stage company — RFB, and commercial stage companies — other

The Group's CODM reviews internal management reports on these segments at least quarterly in ordar
to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance

Other operations nclude the management function of the head office at the parent leve! of Alled Minds
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Information about Reportable Segments

The following provides detailed information of the Group's reportable segments as of and for the years

ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, respectively
As of and for the year ended 31 December

Early stage Commercial Other
STT Other RFB Other operations Consolidated
Statement of Coemprehensive Loss

Ravenue - 444 8,457 814 - 7,715
Cost of revenue - - {4,898) (518) - (5,416)
$efling, general and administrative expensas {5,722) {7.347) (5,854) (3,888) {15,221} (38,032
Rasearch and development expenses (7,350) (13,682) (184) {969) - {22,195)
Finance income/(cost), net (268) - 3 (51 538 222,

Loss for tha year {13,340) (20,595) (4,476) (4.612) {14,683) (57,706)
Other comprehensive income/oss - - (34) - (125) {159)

Total comprehensive loss {13,340) (20,595) {4,510) 4.612 {14,808) (57,865)
Total cornprehensive loss atinbutable to

Equity hoiders of the parent (7,057) (17,275) (2,542) {3,954} (14,808) (45,636)

Non-controfing interests (6,283) (3,320) 1,968) {658} - (12,229)

Statement of Financial Posthien

Non-current assats 14,354 3,852 2912 829 22,092 44,039
Current assets 68,750 16,051 8,523 2,093 153,574 248,991

Total Assets 83,104 19,903 11,435 2,922 175,666 293,030
Non-curmant fabwites (33} (291) - {3d4) {59) raks)
Current liabvibies (3,420) (2,755) (2.888) {6686) (2,750) (12,499)

Total Liabilties {3,453} (3,036} {2,888) (1,030) (2,809) (13,216)

Net Assets 79,651 16,867 8,547 1,882 172,857 273,814
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As of and for the year ended 31 December

2013
$'000
Earty stage Commercial Other
STT Other AFB Other operations Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Loss

Raverwe - 476 1,429 1,031 - 2,936
Cost of revenue - - 1,476) (866) - 2,342}
Saling, general and administrative expenses (4,201) (5.8786) (4,566) (4,767) (8,062} 27 472
Research and developrnent expenses {4,471 (9,345) 86} (4,783 - (15 689}
Finance income/icost) net {224) - (158) (68) 310 {140}
Loss {or the year (8 896) {14 749) 4 857) (6 453) 7 752) 42,707
Other comprehensive income - - 27 - a a5
Total comprehensive loss (8 896) (14 749) {4 830) {6,453) (7 744) 42,672)

Total cormprehensiva loss attributable to
Equity hoiders of the parent (4,783) {13 592} (2,838} (5,509) {f 784) (34 466)
Non-controfling interests 4,113 (1157) (1992} (944) - (8 206)

Statement of Financial Pesition

Nor-cument assets 11,967 3.977 6.132 794 157 23 027
Current assets 15,108 3677 2,333 1,871 85,791 108778
Total Assets 27073 7654 8 465 2 665 865 948 131,805
Non-cumant habilities (2 241) (310 {18 (562) 79 3.210)
Current liabiitles (2,337} (1,422) (2,839) 821) (1.317) (8,736)
Total Liabtlities (4,578) (1732 (2,857) {1 383) {1,396) {11 946)
Net Assets 22495 5922 5,608 1,282 B4 552 119,859

The proportion of net assets shown above that 1s attnbutable to non-controlling interest 1s disclosed

further in notes 11 and 17

Geographic Information

Whilst the Group includes RF Biocidics {UK) Limited, which 1s a UK company, the revenues and net
operating losses of that subsidiary are not considered matenal to the Group, and therefore the Group
revenues and net operating losses for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 are considered
to be entirely denved from its operations within the United States and accordingly no additional

geographical discloses are provided
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{(5) Operating Expenses

The average number of persons employed by the Group {including Directors} dunng the year, analysed
by category, was as follows
For the year ending 31 December. 2014 2013
Seling, general and adrmiristrative 58 65
Research and development 50 33
Total 108 98
The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as foliows

2014 2013
For the year ending 31 December: $'000 $'000
Seling, general and administrative 19,751 14,870
Research and development 9,865 5,033
Total 29,616 19,903
Total operating expenses were as follows

2014 2013
For the year ending 31 December: $'000 $'000
Salanes and wages 17,128 12,714
Payroll taxes 1,496 845
Healthcare benefits 1,473 31
Other payroll cost 580 438
Share-based payments 8,939 4,975
Contnbutions to defined contnbution plans - -
Total 29,616 19,903
Cost of revenue 5,416 2,342
Other SG&A expenses 18,281 12,602
Cther R&D expenses 12,330 10,656
Total Operating expenses 65,643 45,503

2014 2013

$'000 $'000
Auditor's remuneration
Audit of these financial statements 261 440
Audit of the financial statements of subsidianes 20 -
Audit-related assurance services 89 -
QOther assurance services 1,848 -
Taxation compliance services 36 -

2,254 440
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In 2014, auditor's remuneration included $1,796,000 of other assurance services provided in relation
to the Group's isting on the London Stock Exchange, which were offset against equity

See note 6 for further disclosures refated i{o share-based payments and note 23 for managemsnt’s
remuneration disclosures

{6) Share-Based Payments

U S Stock Option/Stock issuance Plan

The U S Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan (the “U S Stock Plan”) was onginally adopted by Allied
Minds, Inc in 2008 The U S Stock Plan provides for the grant of share option awards, restncted share
awards, and other awards to acquire common stock of Alled Minds, Inc {now Alled Minds, LLC) All
stock options granted to employees under this plan are equity settled, for a ten-year term Pursuant to
the recrganisation discussed above, Alled Minds plc adopted and assumed the nghts and obligations
of Alled Minds, tnc under this plan except that the obligaticn to iIssue Common Stock is replaced with
an cbligation to 1ssue ordinary shares to satisfy awards granted under the U S Stock Plan

Measurernent of Fair Values

The farr value of the stock option grants awarded in 2014 and 2013 under the Alled Minds 2008 Plan
was estimated as of the date of grant using a Black-Scholes-Merton option valuation model that uses
the following weighted average assumptions, respectively

2014 2013
Expected option ife (in years) 5.51 560
Expected stock price volatility 37.40% 48 85%
Risk-free interest rate 1.85% 1 89%
Expected dividend yield - —
Grant date option farr value $0.93 3121
Share price at grant date $2.49 %260
Exercise price $249 $260

Grant date option far value, share pnce at grant date, and exercise pnce disclosed above take into
account the reorganisation descnbed above in note 1 Expected volatility has been based on an
evaluation of the histoncal volatiity of the share price of publicly traded companies comparable to Aled
Minds, particularly over the histoncal penod comrnensurate with the expected term The expected term
of the instruments has been based on histoncal expenence and general option holder behaviour
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Reconciation of Outstanding Share Options
A summary of stock option actmty in the U S Stock Plan is presented in the following table, taking into
account the recrganisation descnbed above in note 1

Weighted Weighted

average average

Number of exercise Number of exercise

options pnce options price

2014 2014 2013 2013

QOutstanding as of 1 January 17,505,268 $1.61 15,607,768 $14

Granted during the year 1,708,652 $2.49 3,415,500 $260

Exerctsed dunng the year (8,817,424) $1.28 (71,632} 3077

Forfeited duning the year - — . {1,448,368) $180

Outstanding as of 31 December 10,396,496 $2.09 17,505,268 $161

Exercisable as of 31 December 10,396,496 $2.09 13,502,368 $148
Intnnsic value of Exercisable $ 37.5 million $ 13 5 milion

The options outstanding as of 31 December 2014 and 31 Decermber 2013 had an exercise pnce in the
range of $0 68 to $2 60

As of 19 June 2014, the maximum nurmber of options reserved under the plan were 1ssued and
outstanding and as a result of the reorgamisation discussed in note 16, all 1Issued and outstanding
options vested on 19 June 2014 and some options were exercised, resulting in the accelerated share-
based payment charge of additional $2 4 million for the penod The Company does not intend to make
any further grants under the U S Stock Plan

Restricted share awards are outstanding over 118,800 ordinary shares, which were granted under the
U S Stock Plan to the non-exacutive Directors These ordinary shares vest in three equal tranches on
each of the first three anniversaries of Admission provided that the non-executive Director In question
15 still providing services to the Group on the relevant vesting date

UK Long Term Incentive Plan

On 19 June 2014, Alled Minds pic established the UK Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP") Under the
LTIP, awards over Ordinary Shares may be made to employees, officers and Directors, and other
indwiduals providing services to the Company and its subsidianes Awards may be granted in the
form of share cptions, share appreciation nghts, restncted or unrestricted share awards, performance
share awards, restncted share units, phantom-share awards and other share-based awards Awards
have bean made under the LTIP upon the Company’'s admission to the LSE in respect of a total of
4,618,842 Ordinary Shares It 1s intended that awards will normally vest only after a mirimum penod of
three years from the date of grant Vesting will normally be subject to the achievemment of performance
conditions and continued services of the participant In respect of the initial awards, which have been
made conditionally on Admission, vesting i1s dependent upon performance metncs as follows
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*  B0% of each award will be subject to performance condiions based on the Company's total
shareholder return {(“TSR") performance In respect of the penod from Admission untid 31 December
2016, and
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¢ 40% of each award will be subject to performance conditions based on a basket of shareholder
value metncs {“SVM"), including but not Imited to ()} the increase in quality of pipeline intellectual
property reviewed, (1} the increase n quabty of the partnership pipeline, and (i) subsidiary level
performance {assessed by reference to such matters as external funding raised, corporate
collaborations, product co-development and proof of pnncipal commercial pilots and revenues)
Performance will be assessed on these measures ¢n a scorecard basis over a three year period

In respect of the inttiat awards, at the end of the three year penod, performance against the relevant
measures will be calculated to determine the number of Ordinary Shares which have satisfied the
vesting cntena and 50% of the award will then vest at that tme Ths remaining 50% will vest in two
equal tranches In years 4 and 5 subject tc the relevant participant still being employed within {or being
a director of a company within) the Group at the relevant vesting date (or being an earlier good leaver
as descnbed further in the LTIP)

A summary of stock option activity under the UK LTIP for the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013,
respectively, 1s shown below

2014 2013
For the year ended 31 December: TSR SVM TSR SVM
Number of shares granted
at maximum (000} 2,771 1,848 - -
Waeighted average far value (Ep) 114 190 - -
Farr value measurment basis Monte Carlo Market Value n/a n/a

The share grants that vest upon the occurrence of a market condition ( @ the TSR performance) and
service condition were adjusted to current market price at the date of the grant to reflect the effect of
the market condition on the non-vested shares’ value The Company used a Monte Carlo smulation
analysts utiising a Geometne Browman Motion process with 50,000 simulations to value those shares
The model takes into account share price volatilthies, nsk-free rate and other covanance of comparable
UK public companies and other market data to predict distribution of relative share performance This
1s applied to the reward cntena to amve at expected value of the TSR awards

The share grants that vests only upon the occurrence of a performance condition (1 @ the SVM grants)
and service condition were valued at the far value of the shares on the dalte of the grants

Accounting charge does not necessarly represent the ntended value of share-based payments made
to recipients, which are deterrmined by the Remuneration Cormmittee according to established cntena
The share-basad payment charge for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2014 related to the UK LTIP
was $1,255,000 (2013 nif)

Other Plans

Spin Transfer Technologies

Stock compensation expense was approximately $1,435,000 and $1,315,000 and for the year ended
31 December 2014 and 2013, respectively Deferred stock compensation expense under these grants
was approximately $1,623,000 and $1,853,000 as of 31 December 2014 and 2013, respectively

Page 118 of 152




ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014 ALLIED MINDS /

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

The fair value of the stock option grants awarded in 2014 and 2013 under the 2011 and 2012 Plans
was estimated as of the date of grant using a Black-Scholes- Merton option valuation model that uses
the following weighted average assumptions

2014 2013
Expected option Iife (in years) 5.99 610
Expected stock price volatility 44.45 51 33%
Risk-free interest rate 1.91 174%
Expected dwvidend yield - —
Grant date option farr valug $3.47 $376
Share price at grant date $7.77 $750
Exercise price $717 $750

Expected volatiity has been based on an evaluation of the histoncal volatiity of the share price of
publicly traded companies comparable to STT, particularly over the historical penod commensurate
with the expected term The expected term of the instruments has been based on histoncal expenence
and genaral option holder behavior

A summary of stock option actmity in the STT plans 1s presented In the following table

Weighted Weighted

average average

Number of exercise Number of exercise

options pnce options pnce

2014 2014 2013 2013
- Ly
Outstanding as of 1 January 1,044,260 $7.00 808,109 $677 B
Granted durnng the year 447,680 $777 281,924 $750 8
Exercised dunng the year - - - — o
Forfeited during the year (51,546) $540 (45,773) $609 9]
Outstanding as of 31 December 1,440,394 $729 1,044,260 $7 00 =
Exercisable as of 31 December 529,972 $764 257,574 $650 g
Intrinsic value of Exercisable $ 41 milion $ 2 3million 5-—

The options outstanding as of 31 December 2014 had an exercise price in the range of $5 40to §7 77
(2013 $5 40 to $7 50) and a weighted-average contractual Ife of approximately 9 3 years (2013
9 6 years)

Plans Under Other Subsichanes

The stock compensation expense under other subsidiaries of the Company, which adopted stock
option incentive plans in 2014 and pnor was $2,047,000 and $1,137,000 for the year ended 31
December 2014 and 2013, respectively Deferred stock compensation expense under these grants
was approximately $2,496,000 and $1,221,000 as of 31 December 2014 and 2013, respectively
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(7

Allied Minds Phantom Plan

In 2007, Alked Minds established a cash settled bonus plan for Alled Minds employees, also known as
its Phantom Plan In 2012, the board of directors adopted the Amended and Restated 2007 Phantom
Ptan Under the terms of the Amended and Restated Plan, upon a lguidity event Alled Minds will
allocate 10% of the value (after deduction of the amount invested by Alled Minds and accrued interest
at a rate not exceeding 5% per annum) of the nvested capital owned by Allled Minds of each cperating
company to the plan account Upon a hquidity event, plan participants holding units will receve ther
propartionate share of the plan account The allocated shares at ali times rermain the sole and exclusive
property of Alled Minds and holders of units have no nghts or nterests in Alled Minds  No amount has
been pad out to employees under the Phantom Stock Plan through 31 December 2014

Alled Minds has not accrued any expense relating to the Phantorm Plan as of 31 Decermber 2014 or
2013 Management will record an expense relating to this plan when it 1s prabable that a subsichary will
be sold and the amourit of the payout Is reascnably estmable

Share-based Payment Expense

The Group recorded shars-based payment expense related to stock options of approximately
$8,939,000 and $4,975,000 for the years ended 31 Decermnber 2014 and 2013, respectively There
was no Income tax benefit recogrised for share- based payment arrangements for the years ended 31
Decermnber 2014 and 2013, respactively, due to operating losses Shared-based payment expenses
are included in sellng, general and administrative expenses and research and development expenses
in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Finance Cost, Net
The following table shows the breakdown of fimnance income and cost

2014 2013
For the year ended 31 December- $'000 $°000
Interest iIncome on
- Bank deposits 545 324
Foreign exchange gain — 51
Finance income - 545 375
Interest expense on
- Financial habiities at amortised cost (320) {(306)
Foreign exchange loss {3) {209)
Finance cost {(323) (515)
Finance income/{cost), net 222 (140)
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(8) Loss Per Share
The calculation of basic and diuted loss per share as of 31 December 2014 was based on the loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders of $45 4 milion (2013 $34 5 milhon) and a weighted average
nurmber of ordinary shares outstanding of 186,389,605 (2013 142,949,814}, calculated as follows

Loss attnbutable to ordinary shareholders

2014 2013
$°000 $'000
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

Loss for the year attnbuted to the |
owners of the Company (45,478) {45,478) (34,501) {34,501)
Loss for the year attributed to the
ordinary shareholders (45,478) (45,478) (34,501} {34,501)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

2014 2013

Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

Issued ordinary shares on 1 January 157,463,790 157,463,790 122,923,416 122,923,416
Effect of share capital rssued 28,786,582 28,786,582 19,973,677 18,973,677
Effect of share ophons exercised 139,233 139,233 52,722 52,722

Weighted average ordinary shares 186,389,605 186,389,605 142,949,815 142,949,815

Loss per share
2014 2013
3 5
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
Loss per share (0.24) (0 24) (0 24) {0 24)

Page 121 of 152

ul
o |
Q
L3
0.
)
w
4
4]
—4
[0]
3
]
-
.
L]




ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014 ALLIED MINDS™ /

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

(9) Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, net, consists of the following at

Machinery  Furmiture Leasehold Computers

Cost and and Improve- and Under

in $'000 Equipment Fixtures ments Electronics Construction Total

Balance as of 31 December 2012 2,055 222 725 257 6,405 9,664
Additions, net of transfers 10,267 71 1.097 118 {1.026) 10,527
Disposals {13) (13) - (8 (107} {141)

Balance as of 31 December 2013 12,309 280 1,822 367 5,272 20,0580
Additions, net of transfers 2,115 171 254 234 (1,717 1,057
Disposals {62) (48) (540) - (24) (674)

Balance as of 31 December 2014 14,362 403 1,538 601 3,531 20,433

Accumulated Deproeciation Machinery  Furniture Leasehold Computers

and impairment loss and and improve- and Under

in $'000 Equipment Fixtures ments Electronics Construction Total

Balance as of 31 December 2012 {692) (86} (160} (116) 186 (868}
Depreciation (892) (54} (322) (84) — {1.352)
Impairment loss — - - (&) - (5)
Disposals 60 6 — 8 102 176

Balance as of 31 December 2013 {1,524) (134) {482) (197) 288 {2,049)
Depreciation {1,709) (58} (428) {119) — (2.312)
Imparment loss i2)] 5 {402) [(8)] — {416)
Disposals 62 48 540 — 24 674

Balance as of 31 December 2014 (3,180) (149) (770) (316) 312 {4,103)

Machinery  Furniture Leaseheld Computers

Property and equ:pment, net and and Improve- and Under

n $'000 Equipment Fuixtures ments Electrorucs Construction Total

Balance as of 31 December 2013 10,785 146 1,340 170 5,560 18,001

Balance as of 31 December 2014 11,182 254 766 285 3,843 16,330

Impairment of property and equipment 1s included in seling, general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income

As of 31 December 2013, properties with a carrying amount of $11 8 millon were subject o a
registered debenture that formed secunty for a bank loan with net carmying amount of $3 0 million as of
31 December 2013 and total aggregate advanced amount of $4 0 millon The loan was repaid in 2014
and those debentures were removed (see note 18}

Property and eguipment under constructions represents assets that are in the process of bemng buift
and not placed n service as of the reporting date Dunng the year, certain of those assets with carrying
amount of $1 2 millon were moved to nventory with the intent to be sold and others with carrying
amount of $0 5 milion were moved to the machinery and equipment category
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(10) Intangible Assets

Information regarding the cost and accumulated amortisation of Intangible assets i1s as follows

Cost Purchased Development

i $'000 Licences IPR&D Software cost Total

Balance as of 31 December 2012 4,884 2,139 14 42 7,079
Additions — Acquired separately 84 — 65 — 1489
Additions - Internally developed - - — 83 83
Disposals (425) (590) - - (1,015)

Balance as of 31 December 2013 4,543 1,549 79 125 6,296
Additions - Acquired separately 192 — 178 — 370
Additions — Internally developed — — - 178 178
Disposals (350) (781) — - (1,131)

Balance as of 31 December 2014 4,385 768 257 303 5713

Accumulated amortisation and

Impairment loss Purchased Development

n $°000 Licences IPRAD Software cost Total

Balance as of December 31, 2012 {1,316) (34} (5) (4) (1,359)
Amortisation {485) (23} (21) 3) (532)
Impairment loss {325) (559) - — (884)
Disposals 424 559 — - 982

Balance as of December 31, 2013 (1,702) (57) (26) {7) (1,793)
Amortisation (469) (22) (72) (17 (580)
Impairment loss (282) (781} — - {1,063)
Disposals 350 781 — — 1,131

Balance as of December 31, 2014 (2,103) 79 98) (24) (2,304)

Intangible assests, net Purchased Development

n $°000 Licences IPR&D Software cost Tota!

Balance as of 31 December 2013 2,841 1,492 53 118 4,504

Balance as of 31 December 2014 2,282 689 159 279 3,409

Amortisation expense 18 included in seling, general and administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive loss Amortisation expense, recorded using the straight-ine method, was
approximately $580,000 and $532,000 for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, respectively

Impairment of ntangible assets of $1,063,000 and $884 000 for the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013, respectively, 1s manly attributed to the abandonment of the nghts to certain intellectual property
per the licensing agreement with a partner university and to the closing of subsidiary companies, which
resulted in the associated intangible assets being imparred to zero Impairment expense 1s included in
seling, general and admimistrative expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income
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At sach reporting penod, management considers qualitative and quantitative factors that define the
future prospects of the respective investment and assesses whether it supports the value of the
undertying intangible

(11) Investment 1n Subsidianes and Associates
Group Subsidianes
Allied Minds has 25 active oparating subsidianes as of 31 December 2014 As of and for the two years
anded 31 December 2014 the capitalisation of all subsidrary companes in the Group portfolio 1s in the
form of ordinary shares only, except for Spin Transfer Technologies where Series A preferred shares
were 1ssued n the October 2014 round to both the parent company and third parties, see further
discussion below
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The following cutiines the formation of each subsidiary and evolution of Allied Minds’ equity ownarship

tnterest over the two year penod ended 31 December 2014

Active subsidiaries
Early stage companies
Alled-Bnstol Life Sciences, LLC
ABLS |, LLC
ABLS I, LLC
Alled Minds Federal Innovations, Inc
Federated Wireless, inc
Foreland Technologies, Inc
Biotectix, LLC
Cephalogics, LLC
LuxCath, LLC
Optio Labs, Inc
Percipient Networks, LLC
Precision Biopsy, LLC
ProGDarm, Inc
SciFluor Life Sciences, ULC
Seamless Devices, Inc
SIEnergy Systems, LLC
Spin Transfer Technologies, Inc
Tinritus Treatment Solutions, LLC
Whitewood Encryption Systemns, Inc
Commercial stage comparnies
CryoXtract Instrurments, LLC
RF Biocidics, Inc
RF Biocidics (UK) Ltd
SoundCure, Inc
Closed subsidianes
Allied Minds Devices, LLC
Broadcast Routing Fountains, LLG

Inception

Date

31/07/14
24/08/14
24/09/14
08/03/12
08/08/12
23/01/13
16/01/07
29/11/06
29/05/12
28/02/12
29/01/14
17/06/08
19/00/08
14/12/10
14/10/14
21/09/07
03/12/07
26/02/13
21/07/14

23/05/08
12/06/08
10/08/10
04/06/09

25/0711
28/06/12

Number of active subsidiaries as 31 December

In Qctaber 2014, Spin Transfer Technologies {“STT") completed a Senes A financing round as a result
of which the Alled Minds' ownership percentage in STT decreased from 56 13% to 48 40%, see
note 17 for further detal Whilst Alled Minds owns less than 50 00% of the voting share capital after
the transaction and as of 31 December 2014, the company remains the largest single shareholder
at 48 40% of the voting share caprital, and retains control over the majonty of the voting nghts on the
board of directors of STT Under the terms of the STT orgarusational documents, the board of directors
effectively controls the policies and management of STT, and n all nstances, the board acts by majonty
vote In addition, all matenal shareholder voting provisions of the STT orgamsational documents require
a simple majonty for approval, gving the Company substantial nfluence over the outcome of afl actions

Location

Boston, MA
Boston, MA
Boston, MA
Boston, MA
Artington, VA
Boston, MA
Ann Arbor, MI
Cambndge, MA
Boston, MA
Baltimars, MD
Wakefield, MA
Denver, CO
Boston, MA
Cambndge, MA
San Jose, CA
Cambndge, MA
Fremont, CA
San Jose, CA
Boston, MA

Wobum, MA
Vacavlle, CA
United Kingdom
San Jose, CA

Boston, MA
Boston, MA
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Ownership percentage at

31 December

2014 2013

80 00% —
80 00% -
80 00% -
100 00% 100 00%
90 88% 90 00%
100 00% 100 00%
64 35% 64 35%
95.00% 95 00%
98 00% 98 00%
79 86% 85 00%
100 00% -
80 35% 80 35%
90 38% 90 38%
79 00% 79 00%
80 00% -
100 00% 100 00%
48 40% 56 13%
100 00% 100 00%
100 00% -
93 24% 93 24%
67 14% 67 14%
100 00% 100 0C%
84 62% 84 62%
100 00% 100 00%
100 00% 100 00%
25 19
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which require a shareholder vote As a result, following the transaction, Alled Minds continues to
exercise effective control over STT and as such will continue to be fully consolidated within the group's

financial statements

The following tables summanse the financial information related to the Group's subsidianes wath
materal non-controlling interests, aggregated for interests in smilar entities, and before intra-group

eliminations

As of and for the year ended 31 December

2014
$’000
Early stage Commercial
STT Other RFB Other
Statement of Comprehensive Loss
Revenue - 355 6,457 785
Loss for the year (13,340) (16,711) {4,476) (4,621)
Other comprehensive loss - - {34) -
Total comprehensive loss {13,340) (16,711) (4,510) (4,621}
Comprehensive loss attnbuted to NCI (6,283) (3,320) (1,968) (658)
Statement of Financial Position
Non-current assets 14,354 3,381 2912 829
Current assets 68,750 14,733 8,523 2,049
Total Assets 83,104 18,114 11,435 2,878
Non-current llabilities (33) (280) - (344)
Current habilities (3,420) (2,261) (2,888) (685)
Total Liabilities (3,453) (2,541) (2,888) (1,029)
Net Assets 79,651 15,573 8,547 1,849
Carrying amount of NC! 41101 (2,752) (4,064) (2,374}
Statement of Cash Flows
Cash flows from operating activities (8,948} (16,764) (9,539) (5,888}
Cash flows from mvesting activities (3,932) (714) 1,983 (328)
Cash flows from financing actvities 66,443 29,524 8,657 6,444
53,563 12,046 1,001 228
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2013
$'000
Early stage Commercial
sSTT Other RFB Other
Statement of Comprehensive Loss
Revenue - 476 1,429 1,025
Loss for the year {8.896) (14,063) (4,857) {6,451)
Other comprehensive income - - 27 -
Total comprehensive loss (8,896) (14,083) 4,830} {6,451)
Comprehenswve loss attributed to NCI 4,113) (1,110) (1,992) (944)
Statement of Financial Position
Non-current assets 11,967 2,492 6,132 663
Current assets 15,108 3,024 2,333 1,994
Total Assets 27,073 5516 8,465 2,657
Non-current habilittes (2.241) (310) (18 (562)
Current llabilties (2,337) (1,247) (2,839 817)
Total Liabiities (4,578) (1,557) (2,857) (1,379)
Net Assets 22,495 3,959 5,608 1,278
Carrying amount of NCI 9,860 (3,258) (2,270) (1,726)
Statement of Cash Flows
Cash flows from operating activities {6,455) (11,0086) {5,399} (8,835}
Cash flows from investing actmties (8.074) 334 (1,951} (252)
Cash flows from financing actmties 19,235 12,367 7,522 9,350
4,706 1,695 172 263

Portfolio Valuation

At the close of each annual financial pericd, the Directors formally approve the value of all subsidiary
businesseas in the Group, which 1s used to denve the ''Group Subsidiary Ownership Adjusted Value™
The Group Subsidiary Ownership Adjusted Value ("GSOAV") was $488 0 milhon {2013 $367 3m) as
at 31 December 2014, as set out in the table below This Group Subsidiary Ownership Adjusted Value
15 a sum-of-the-parts ("SOTP"') valuation of all the subsidianes that make up the Group The increase
in the Group Subsidiary Cwnership Adjusted Value dunng the year principally reflects the increase in
value at Spin Transfer Technologies and SciFluor Life Sciences supported by their valuations at recent
fund raising transactions

Page 127 of 152

5
o
o
o
b
12
—
o
—
o
3
B




ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014 ALLIED MINDS"

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

The methodology for Group's subsidiary company valuations, extracts of which are set out below, I1s
based on the Amencan institute of Certified Public Accountants’ Valuation of Prvately-Held-Company
Equity Secuntes Issued as Gompensation (“AICPA Guidelines’) The AICPA Guidelnes do not
represent, but are consistent with valuation pnnciples adopted under, International Financial Reporting
Standards

As of 31 December 2014, the Group's estimated Group Subsiciary Ownership Adjusted Value was
distnbuted across the Group's operating segments as follows

2014 2013
Operating Segment Sm % of GSOAV $m % of GSOAV
Early stage 3891 79.7% 2737 74 5%
Commarcial stage 98.9 20.3% 936 25 5%
Totat Group Subsidiary
Valuation 4880 100 0% 367 3 100 0%

Ownership adjusted value represents Alled Minds' interest in the equity value of sach subsidiary

= (Business Enterpnise Value — Long Term Debt + Cash) x Alled Minds percentage ownership plus the
value of debt prowided by Alled Minds pl¢ to each subsidiary business Allied Minds commits post-
seed funding to its subsidianes in the form of loans

The Group Subsidiary Ownership Adusted Value includes cash balances held by Alied Minds
subsidianes at 31 December 2014 amounting to $86 1 million, on an ownership-adjusted basis {2013
$18 9m, of which $15 1m in STT), including those subsicdianes valued based on recent financing
rounds, of which $68 6 million was held by STT As at 31 December 2014, the Group reported total
consohdated cash and other investments balances of $261 5 mithon including cash, cash equivalents
and investments (2013 $104 6my), the balance being cash and investments of $175 4 million (2013
$85 7rm) held at the parent level and avallable for investment in the Group

The Group Subsichary Ownership Adjusted Value has been calculated on the basis of Alled Minds'
percentage ownership as at 31 December 2014 Where subsidianes have raised financing from external
parties since 31 December 2014, the ownership adjusted value in the table above has been updated
to reflect the current percentage ownership and the valuation implied by that external Investment on a
post new money basis SciFluor completed a funding round of $30 millon in Apnl 2015, see note 25
on page 146 for further detall
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Early stage
2014 2013

% of % of % of % of
Company $m Total GSOAV $m Total GSOAV
Cephalogics, LLC 223 5.7% 4.6% 225 82% 6 1%
Optio Labs, LLC 328 84% 67% 330 12 0% 9 0%
Precision Biopsy, LLC 16.2 4.2% 33% 159 5 B% 4 3%
ProGDerm, inc 16.7 4 3% 34% 156 57% 4 2%
SciFluor Life Sciences, LLC 91.4 23 5% 187% 308 11 3% 8 4%
SiEnergy Systems, LLC 15.3 3.9% 31% 227 8 3% 6 2%
Spin Transfer Technologes, inc 1210 31.1% 24 8% 769 281% 21 0%
Other companies 734 18.9% 151% 563 20 6% 15 3%
Total Early stage 3891 1000% 79.7% 2737 1000% 74 5%
Commercial stage

2014 2013

% of % of % of % of
Company $m Total GSOAV $m Total GSOAV
CryoXtract Instruments, LLC 178 18 0% 36% 165 17 6% 4 5%
SoundCure, Inc 11.5 11 6% 23% 143 15 3% 39%
RF Biocidics, Inc 69.6 70 4% 14 3% 62 8 67 1% 17 1%
Total Commercial stage 98.9 100.0% 20 3% 9368 1000% 25 5%

The Group Subsidary Ownership Adjusted Value above excludes cash balances held by at the parent
level At 31 December 2014, the date at which the Group Subsidiary Ownership Adjusted Value has
been presented, the Group's consclidated cash and other investments balance was $261 5 million
(2013 $104 6my) of which cash balance held at the parent level was $175 4 milion (2013 $85 7m)

Valuation Methodology

Each subsidiary company 1s regularly evaluated based on a range of inputs, including company
performance and progress towards development milestones, market and competitor analyses based
on information from databases and public matenal, and intervisws with scientists and physicians
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The Group Subsidiary Ownership Adjusted Value represents the sum-of-the-parts (*'SOTP') of,
principally, net present value ("NPV") or nsk-adjusted net present valus (''rNPV"") from discounted
cash flow {"DCF"} valuations, valuations based on recent third party investment at the subsidiary
level DCF valuation 1s used for the majonty of Alled Minds subsidiaries If a transaction occurred close
to valuation date, then that will generally form the basis for the valuation In imited instances other
techniques such as based on asset values are utihsed
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Set out below are the two prncipal methodologres applied to value each Group company to denve the
Group Subsidiary Ownership Adjusted Value as at 31 December 2014

Third party funding

Discounted cash flow transaction

Biotectix, LLC Precision Biopsy, LLC Alled Bnstol Life Sciences, LLC
BrndgeSat, Inc ProGDem, Inc dba Novare Optio Labs, Inc

Cephalogics, LLC RF Biocidics, Inc SciFluor Life Sciences, LLC
CryoXtract Instruments, LLC Seamless Devices, Inc Spin Transfer Technologes, Inc

Federated Wireless, Inc SiEnergy Systems, LLC

Foreland Technologies, LLC  SoundCure, Inc

LuxCath, LLC Whitewood Encryption Systemns, Inc
Percipient Networks, LLC

As per cent of GSOAV 44 9% (2013 86 3%) 51 9% (2013 9 0%)

As at 31 December 2013, only Optio Labs, Inc was valued based on a third party funding transaction

In addition to the two principal valuation methodologies, the Directors have valued using alternative
valuation methodologtes Allied Minds Federal Innovations, Inc (“AMFI”), representing 3 2% of the
group Subsidiary Ownership Adjusted Value (2013 4 7%, ncluding Broadcast Routing Fountains)
AMFI was valued using an assst-based methodology that reflects the intellectual property to which it
has access as at 31 December 2014 and 2013

Net Present Valuation (* NPV"} method

NPV 15 a standard technique used in valuation and can be defined as the difference between the
present value of the future cash flows from an investment and the amount of investment Present value
of the estimated cash flows 1s computed by discounting them at the required rate of return which
includes an adjustment for nsk

The following are important factors when determining far value based on NPV

« Estimated income generally consists of sales, co-development revenues, one-time payments and
royalty payments on sales depending on the company, its business model and industry These are
estimated based on a vanety of factors including, inter alia total addressable market, competitive
factars, barners to competition, pncing, typical standards for contract value, royalty rates, and
kelhood of development of a product that 1s commercially viable

* Costs and capital expenditures are estmated for each phase of development based on the
companies’ nformation or according to industry standards Costs are typically forecasted for
cost of gocds, SG&A (selling, general and admirmstrative), research and development as well as a
variety of other expenses These are typically developed ‘‘from the ground up™ for earlier years and
for later years depicted as a factor or percentage of sales

» The terminal or exit value represents the aggregate value of an entity at the end of the discrete
forecast penod Terminal value may be estimated using the terminal multiple method, which
inherently assumes that the business will be valued at the end of the projection period based on
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reference valuations Under this methodology, the terminal value 1s typically calculated by applying
one of two commonly accepted methodologies

— Multiple base terminal value Use of an appropnate multiple tG the relevant financial metnc
forecasted for the tast projected year taking into consideration the ongoing growth potential
of the business in the terminal year Exit values included in the analysis are typically projected
as a multiple of EBIT, EBITDA or Sales based on the final year results for the forecast penod
Where avalable, a set of guideline public companies that are similar to the company to be
used for comparative purposes and the multiple 1s derived from this set,

— Gordon growth model based terminal value Use of a formula that calculates the present value
of cash flow n the terminal year growing into infinity at an ascnbed terminal growth rate The
terminal growth rate i1s denved by estimating the long-term annual growth potential of the
business at the terminal year

NPV 15 a techmique typically used when valuing pharmaceutical or biological companies and has
been used in estimating the value of ProGDerm When using rNPV, it 1s the same process as
daveloping an NPV analysis though costs and revenues are probabiity adjusted downward based
on the phase of development

Selection of discount rates 1s based on part utihsing Amencan Institute of Certified Public
Accountants {AICPA) practice standards varying by stage of development of the subsidiary as
well as other nsk factors and typically range from 20-45% When utifising rNPV, discount rates are
typically lower reflecting the probability adjustment of the cash flows already made

Significant events occurnng after the date of valuation according to the previous paragraph have
been taken into account in the valuation to the extent that such events would have affected the

value on the closing date

Where avalable NPV results are compared against peer companies and to valuations for similar
companies

Due to the early stage nature of the Group's subsidiary companies, projections are particularly sensitive
to certain key assumptions namely

Oiscount rate and in particular nsk prermium,
The ability to predict the cost and timing of achieving technical and commercial viability,

Projected revenue and operating costs in the post-product development phase of each company,
and

The size and share of addressable market for intellectual property, products and services developed

Whilst the Board constders the methodologies and assumptions adopted in valuation are supportable,
reasonable and robust, because of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, those estimated values may
differ significantly from the vatues that would have been used had a ready market for the investment
existed and the differences could be significant

Page 131 of 152

L |
5
o
5
Q.
o
[¢p]
—r
o
®
3
o
=
=
- »




ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014 ALLIED MINDS //

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)
Associates
Ownership percentage
Registered 31 December

Location number 2014 2013

Stalam Sp A Vicenza, ltaly 2083930244 28.5% -

2014 2013

$°000 $'000

StalamSp A 1,560 -

Carrying amount for equity accounted investees 1,560 -

In Decernber 2013, RF Biocidics {“RFB") entered into a manufactunng agreement with the strategic
partner Stalam S p A (“Stalam”) in Italy, which made Stalam an exclusive manufacturer of the Apex
product ine seres, as well as any new generatton RF Systems that incorporates both Stalam and
RFB technologies which the parties develop jointly as part of the agreement Following this transaction
in March 2014, RF Bwocidhics acquired ordinary shares representing 28 5% of the capital of that
manufacturer in exchange for 1 1 milion Euro ($1 5 milkon)

The Group's Interest in Stalam IS presented in the below table as of 31 December

2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Carrying amount of interest In assocates
Share of
Profit from continuing operations 39 —
Total comprehensive income 39 -
(12) Other Investments
2014 2013
As of 31 December $'000 $'000
Fixed income secunties
Government agencies 2,745 -
Corporate bonds 12,486 -
Cther investments, current 15,23 —
Fixed income secunties
Corporate bonds 22,176 -
Other investments, tong-term 22,176 -
Other investments 37,407 -

Other nvestments represent investments in fixed iIncome securities 1ssued by government agencies
and US and non-US corporations As of 31 December 2014, the investments had a credit rating of
BE8 {0 A, matunties of up to 3 years and onginal coupon rate from 0 875% 10 5 750%
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{13) Cash and Cash Equivalents

2014 2013

As of 31 December $'000 $'000
Bank balances 224,206 104,682

Restncted cash (131) {131)
Cash and cash equivalents 224,075 104,551

Restncted cash represents cash reserved as collateral aganst a letter of credit with a bank 1ssued for
the bensfit of a landlord in leu of a secunty deposit to an office space lease for one of the Group's
subsidianes The amount 1s classified as other financral assets, non-current in the statement of financial

position
(14) Inventories
2014 2013
As of 31 December: $'000 $'000
Finished units 1,725 722
Work in progress 1,033 114
Raw matenals 160 209
Total inventories - 2,919 1,045
(15) Trade and Other Receivables
2014 2013
As of 31 December: $'000 $'000
Trade recewvables 1,608 2,385
Prapayments and other current assets 4,697 485
Total trade and other receivables 6,305 2.870

(16) Equity

On 19 June 2014 Alied Minds plc acquired the entire 1ssued share capital of Alled Minds, Inc (now
Aled Minds, LLC) at a rate of twenty two £0 (1 Ordinary Shares n Alled Minds plc for every $0 01 of
commeon stock in Allied Minds Inc This has been accounted as a common control transaction and the
comparative histonical financials have been presented as if the transachon had already taken place It
has therefore been deemed that the share capital was 1ssued in ine with movements in share capital as
shown prior to the transaction taking place In addibon the merger reserve records amounts previously
recorded as share premium net of differences ansing between share capital on the restructured basis
and the former basis

On 25 June 2014 the Company’s entire 1ssued ordinary share capital of 208,499,425 ordinary shares
of one pence each were admitted to the premium listing segment of the Official List of the UK Listing
Authority and to trading on the LSE's Main Market for listed secunties The IPO was for 61,685,208
shares at 190 pence per ordinary share, of which 44,254 411 were new ordinary shares 1ssued by the
Company and 17,440,797 were sold by seling shareholders

This resulted in approximately $131 8 milhion of net proceeds from the PO (net of 1ssue cost of $11 0
milion) reflected in the share premiumn balance as of 30 June 2014 The IPO also included an over-
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allotment option equivalent to 15% of the total number of new ordinary shares, or 6,638,161 The over-
allotmant penod expired on 19 July 2014 and the stabilisation manager exercised in part ther over-
allotment option As a result, the Company 1ssued 3,791,154 Shares at the offer pnce of 190 pence per
share achieving further gross proceeds for the Company of £7 2 milion, or approxamately $12 3 milion
The total number of shares and voting nghts in the Company after 1ssuing the over-allctment shares
was 213,280,579 Addmionally, vancus option holders in the U S Stock Plan exercised ther options,
resulting in additional share premium of $10 5 milton

In Novemnber 2014, an existing sharsholder exercised options to purchase 1,155,000 shares of the
Company under the U S Stock Plan, resulting in additional share premium of $780,000

Movements below explain the movements in share capital taking into account the reorganisation
descnbed above in note 1 Each movement in share capital reflects the number of shares and nominal
value of the shares as If the recrganisation had been in place at that date and the shares were thoss
of Alled Minds plc

2014 2013
As of 31 December $'000 $'000
Equity
Share capital, £0 01 par value, 1ssued and fully paid 3411 2,445
214,445,579 and 157,463,790, respectively
Share premium 153,442 —
Merger reserve 185,544 185,544
Cther resarve 28,753 19,814
Translation reserve 61) 98
Accumulated deficit (123,186) {90,648}
Equity attnbutable to owners of the Company 247,903 117,253
Non-controlling interests 31,911 2,606
Total equity 279,814 119,859

Holders of Ordinary Shares are entifled to vote, on all matters submitted to shareholders for a vote
Each Ordinary Share 1s entitled to one vote Each ordinary share 1s entitled to receve dividends when
and if declared by the Company's board of directors The Company has not declared any dwvidends
in the past

On 31 May 2013, Alled Minds 1ssued 34,468,742 Ordinary Shares (ongminally 1,566,761 shares In
Alled Minds, Inc {now Alled Minds, LLC), prior to the reorganisation), of which 14,926,362 sharaes
{ongmally 678,471 shares in Alied Minds, Inc {now Alied Minds, LLC), prior to the reorganisation) were
1ssued to its existing shareholders and 19,542,380 shares (onginally 888,290 shares in Alled Minds,
Inc (now Alled Minds, LLC), pnor to the reorganisation) to new shareholders for total net proceeds of
approximately $39 1 milion The tnvestors provided the full amount of the capital contnbution to Alled
Minds in June 2013 to fulfill ther obligation under the subscrniption agreement

Other reserves comprise the cumulative credit to reserves corresponding to IFRS 2 share-based
payment charges charged through the income statement

Page 134 of 152




ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014 ALLIED MINDS /

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

Transtation reserve compnses all foreign exchange differences ansing from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations

(17) Acquisition of Non-Controlling Interest (“NCI")
For the two years ended 31 December 2014, the Group recognised the following changes in ownership
In subsidranes

2014

Federated Wireless closed an nternal round of financing of $5 milllion eguity investment from
Alled Minds As a result of the transaction, after coverng the ant-dilutive protection of certain
shareholders, Alled Minds' interest In Federated Wireless increased from 90 0% to 90 9%,

Optio Labs closad a round of financing of $10 mullion in March 2014 with existing and new
shareholders of the Group, of which Alled Minds subscrbed to contnbute $7 7 milion by January
2015 should no other investors opt to participate by July 2014 New and existing shareholders of
the Group exercised that option in the amount of $150 thousand and Alled Minds completed its
obligation for the balance 1n January 2015,

Alled-Bnstol Life Sciences, LLC (“ABLS") was formed in July 2014 as a partnership between Allied
Minds and Bnstol-Myers Squibb Company ("BMY") to identify and foster research and pre-clinical
development of biopharmaceutical innovations Alled Minds and BMY have jointly funded ABLS
with $10 O mithon of imitial capital, of which $8 0 million were contributed by Alled Minds ABLS
will form and fund new companies to conduct feasibilty studies and where appropnate, full-phase
discovery programs,

Spin Transfer Technologies completed a $70 million round of Series A financing N October 2014
Of the $70 O mulion ratsed in this financing, Alied Minds contnbuted approximately $20 0 million
for the purchase of 1,686,340 preferred shares, and other existing shareholders of the Group
contributed with the remainder of the round

2013

ProGDerm closed an internal round of financing of $1 5 millon equity nvestment from Alled Minds,
part of which fulfilled the maximum funding threshold for the anti-dilution protection of the existing
non-controling interest shareholder As a result of the transaction, after covenng the anti-chilute
protection of those shareholders, Alled Minds® interest in ProGDerm increase from 90 00% to
90 38%
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The following summanses the changes in the non-controling ownership interest in subsidianes by
reportable segment

Early Stage Commercial Consolidated
STT Other RFB Other
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Non-controling interest as of
31 December 2012 12,280 {1,355) (457) (793) 9,675
New funds into non-controlling interast - 52 - - 52
Share of comprehensive loss {4,113) {1,157) (1.992) {(944) (8,206)
Effect of change in Company’s
ownership interast 1,693 329 179 i1 2,212
Deconsoldation of subsidianes - {1,127) . — (1,127)
Non-controling interest as of
31 December 2013 9,860 (3,258) (2,270) (1,726} 2,606
New funds into non-controliing interest 49,981 4,492 — —_ 54,473
Share of comprehensive loss (6,283) {3,320) (1,968) (657} (12,228)
Effect of change in Company's
ownership interest (12,457) (666) 174 9 (12,940)
Non-cantroling interest as of
31 December 2014 41,101 (2,752) (4,064) (2,374) 31,911
(18)Loans
2014 2013
As of 31 December: $'000 $'000
Non-current habities — Loans
Secured bank loan — 2,195
Unsecured loan 338 549
338 2,744
Current trabiities - Loans
Secured bank loan - 854
Unsecured loan 213 202
213 1,056
Total loans 551 3,800
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The terms and conditions of outstanding loans are as follows

2014 2013

$'000 $'000
Nominal Year of Face Camying Face Carrying
As of 31 December Currency interest rate matunty value amount value amount
Secured bank loan USD USD Pnme+125% 2013-17 - - 3.049 3,049
Unsecured loan USD usob 65% 2013-17 551 551 751 751
Total interest bearing habilities 551 551 3,800 3,800

CryoXtract Instruments, LLC Promissory Note

In May 2012, CryoXtract Instruments, LLC signed a promissory note with a state financing authonty
in the amount of $800,000 to provide working capital for matenals and fund salanes The note fully
matures m May 2017 and bears interest of 6 5% Payment of nterest only 1s due in the first 18 months
As of 31 December 2013, CryoXtract had drawn the full balance of the note, of which $210,000 and
$21,000 was repaid dunng 2014 and 2013, respectvely, and $213,000, net of discount, 1s iIncluded
in current hlabiities Interest expense paid on the note was $42,000 and $60,000 for the years ended
31 December 2014 and 2013, respectively

As part of the consideration for the loan, CryoXtract had issued to the lender a warrant enttling the
lender to purchase an aggregate of 65,310 membership units 10 the subsidary’s ordinary shares,
representing 0 01% of the total membership units The far value of the warrant issued of $35,000 1s
amortised over the life of the loan as a discount agamnst the note balance

Spin Transfer Technologies, Inc Loan and Secunty Agreement

In October 2012, Spin Transfer Technologies, Inc (Spin Transfer) signed a loan and secunty agresment
with a bank to finance eligible equipment purchases made on or after 1 June 2012 of up to $4,000,000
After repayment, no additiona! advances may be re-borrowed The lean was ongnally set up to fully
mature N July 2017 and bear interest of 1 25% above the Prme Rate The loan was collateralised
by the financed equipment and Spin Transfer was required to maintan at all tmes a ligudity ratio of
unrestncted cash mantained with the bank to the aggregate amount of all outstanding obligations with
the bank of at least 2 0to 1 0 As of 31 December 2013, Spin Transfer had drawn the full balance of
the loan, of which $806,700 was repaid in 2013 and the remainder of the full balances was repaid In
2014 Interest paid was $275,000 and $170,000 for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013,
respectively

As part of the consideration for the loan, Spin Transfer had 1ssued to the lender a warrant entiting the
lender to purchase an aggregate of 37,500 shares in the subsidiary’s ordinary shares, representing
0 2% of the total number of the outstanding shares The fair value of the warrant 1issued of $175,000
was amortised as a discount against the note balance over the Iife of the loan

Page 137 of 152

n
5
o
5
2
o
i
(s
=%
@
3
@
=1
3
o



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014 ALLIED MINDS /

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{continued)

(19) Trade and Other Payables

2014 2013

As of 31 December $'000 $'000
Trade payables 4,769 1,394
Accrued expenses 6,570 3,644
Trade and other payables, current 11,339 5,038
Other non-current payables 182 278
Total trade and other payables 11,521 5,316

(20} Leases
Cffice and laboratory space 1s rented under non-cancellable aperating leases These lease agreements
contain various clauses for renewal at the Group's option and, in certain cases, escalation clauses
typically inked to rates of inflation

Minimum rental commitments under non-cancellable leases were payable as follows

2014 2013

For the year ended 31 December- $'000 $'000
Less than one year 1,772 1,691
Between one and five years 2,066 3,201
Mare than five years a8 —
Total minimumn lease payments 3,876 4,892

Total rent expense under these leases was approximately $2,478,000 and $2,223,000 in 2014 and
2013, respectively Rent expenses are included in seling, general and administrative expenses and
research and devslopment expenses in the consolidated statemants of comprehensive loss
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(21) Financial Instrument — Fair Values
The following table shows the cammying amounts and farr values of financial assets and financial labilities,

including their levels in the far value hierarchy

2014
$'000
Carrying amount Fair value
Other
Loans and financial
As of 31 December recevables liabihties Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 224,075 — — 224,075 - 224,075
Fixed income secunties 37,407 -_ 2,761 34,882 -_ 37,643
Trade and other receivables 6,305 - — 6,305 — 6,305
Secunty and other deposits 879 — — 879 — 879
Total financial assets 268,666 - 2,761 266,141 — 268,902
Financial habilities
Secured bank loan - - - - - -
Unsecured loan - 551 - 581 - 581
Trade and other payables - 11,521 - 11,521 - 11,521
Deferred revenue - 1,144 - 1,144 - 1,144
Total financial labilities —_ 13,216 - 13,246 - 13,246
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2013
$'000
Carrying amount Fair value
Other
Loans and financial
As of 31 December recevables habiltties Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 104,551 — — 104,551 — 104,551
Trade and other receivables 2870 — - 2,870 — 2,870
Secunty and other deposits 796 - — 796 — 796
Total financial assets 108,217 — - 108,217 - 108,217
Financial habilities
Secured bank loan - 3,048 - 3,048 — 3,048
Unsecured loan — 751 — 789 — 789
Trade and other payables — 5,318 - 5316 - 5316
Deferred revenue — 2,830 — 2,830 — 2,830
Total financial kabihties — 11,945 - 11,983 - 11,983

The far value of financial instruments that are not traded 1s determined by using valuation techriques
that maximise the use of observable market data where it 1s available and rely as ittle as possible on
entity specfic estimates If alt significant inputs required to far value an instrument are observable, the
instrument 1s included in Level 2

The Group has determined that the carrying amounts for cash and cash equwvalents, trade and other
recevables and payables, secunty and other deposits, and customer deposits are a reasonable
approximation of tharr fair values and are included in Leval 2

The secured bank loan was at a floating interest rate of 1 25% above Prime rate, which was adjustable
immedately when Pnme rate changes As such, the Group has determined that the far value of the
secured bank loan equals the carrying amount at 31 December 2013 and 1s classified as Level 2 The
foan was repaid n 2014

(22) Capital and Financiai Risk Management
The Group's policy 1s to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintan investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustan future development of the business Management monitors the level of
capital deployed and avalable for deployment in subsidiary projects The board of directors seeks to
mamntan a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of deployed
capital and the advantages and secunty afforded by a sound capital position

The Group's executive management and board of directors have overall responsibiity for establishment
and oversight of the Group's nsk management framework The Group 1s exposed to certain nisks
through its normal course of operations The Group’s man objective in using financial instruments Is to
promate the cornmercialisation of ntellectual property through the raising and investing of funds for this
purpose The Group's palicies in calculating the nature, amount and tming of funding are determined
by plannad future investment actvity Due to the nature of activities and with the am to maintain the
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investors' funds secure and protected, the Group's policy 1s to hold any excess funds m highly iquid
and readily available financial instruments and reduce the exposure to other financial nsks

The Group has exposure to the following risks ansing from financial mstruments

Credit Risk

Credit risk 1s the nsk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
falls to meet its contractual obligations Financial instruments that potentially subject the Group to
concentrations of credit nsk consist pnncipally of cash and cash equivalents and trade and other

recevables
The Group held following balances

2014 2013

As of 31 December. $'000 $'000
Cash and cash equivalent 224,075 104,551
Trade and other recewvables 6,305 2,871
230,380 107,422

The Group maintains money market funds and certificates of deposits with financial insttutions, which
the Group believes are of high credit qualty Risk control assesses the credit guality of the customer,
taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors Indwvidual nsk imits are set
based on ratings in accordance with imits set by the board The utihsation of credit Imits 1s regularly
monitored The credit quality of financial assets that are nerther past due nor impaired can be assessed
by reference to credt ratings {if avalable) or to histoncal informatton about counterparty default rates

Group policy is to maintain its funds in highly iquid deposit accounts with reputable financial nstitubions '5" -
m B

The aging of trade recevables that were not impaired was as follows a
2014 2013 £

As of 31 December. $'000 $'000 %

Neither past due nor imparred 784 2,042 g

Past dus 30-90 days 276 — o

Past due over 90 days 548 343 o
1,608 2,385
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The Group has no significant concentration of credit nsk The Group assesses the credit quality of
customers, taking into account their current financial positicn An analysis of the credit quality of trade
receivables that are neither past dus nor impaired 1s as follows

2014 2013
As of 31 December: $'000 $'000
Customers with less than three years of trading history with the Group 1,608 2,385
1,608 2,385

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity nsk 1s the nsk that the Group will encounter difficulty m meeting the obligations associated
with its financial labilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset The Group's
approach to managing quidity 1 to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient hquidity to
meet its liabilikes when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without Incumng
unacceptable fosses or nsking damage to the Group's reputation

The Group seeks to manage hquidity nsk, ensuring that sufficient iguidity 1s available to meet foreseeable
requirements

The fallowing are the remaning contractual matunties of financial lkabiities at the reporting date The
amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact
of netting agreements The current portion of the camying amount of lease obligations 1s included in
trade and other payables

Contractual cash flows

As of 31 December 2014 Carrying Less than More than
$'000 amount Total 1year 2-5years 5 years
Trade and other payables 11,338 11,339 11,339 - -
Other non-current llabilities 182 182 83 a7 2
Secured bank loans - - - - -
Unsecured bank loans 551 622 252 370 -

12,072 12,143 11,674 467 2

Contractual cash flows

As of 31 December 2013: Carrying Less than More than
$'000 amount Total 1year 2-5years 5 years
Trade and other payables 5,038 5,038 5,038 — —
Cther non-current liabiities 278 278 96 182 -
Secured bank loans 3,049 3,457 1,017 2,440 —
Unsecured bank loans 751 873 252 621 -

9,116 9,646 6,403 3,243 -

1t 1s not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity anatysis could occur significantly earlier,
or at significantly different amounts
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Market Risk

Market nsk 15 the nsk that changes n market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prnices - will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial nstruments

The objective of market nsk management 15 to manage and control market nsk exposures within
acceptabie parameters, while optimising the return The Group mamntains the exposure to market nsk
from such financial instruments to insignificant levels The Group exposure to changes in interest rates
1s determined to be msignificant

Capital Risk Management
The Group 1s funded by equity finance and long term borrowings Total capital 1s calculated as ‘total
equity’ as shown in the consolidated statement of financial postion

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's abilty to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
mamntain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital In order to maintan or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may 1ssue new shares or borrow new debt The Group has some external
debt and no material externally imposed capital requirements The Group's share capital 1s set cut In
note 16

{23) Related Parties
Key Management Personnel Compensation
Key management personnel compensation recenved compnsed the following

2014 2013
For the year ended 31 December: $000 $°000
Short-term employee benefits 2,863 1,252
Share-based payments 7,430 3,119
Total 10,293 4,371

Short-term employee benefits of the Group's key management personnel include salanes and bonuses,
health care and other non-cash benefits
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Share-based payments include the value of awards granted under the U S Stock Plan and the LTIP
during the year Approximately $5 muillion of the value of share-base payment n 2014 represents the
value of restricted stock units granted under the LTIP established in June 2014 Share-based payments
under the LTIP are subject to vesting terms over future penods Share-based payments granted under
the U S Stock Plan fully vested upon the reorganisation described m note 16 See further detalls of the
two plans in note 6

Bonuses to key management for the year of $1,500,000 were outstanding at 31 December 2014
{2013 $636,000) and were pad in January of 2015
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Key Management Personnel Transactions
Key management personnel transactions compnsed the following

2014 2013
For the year ended 31 December: $'000 $'000
Non-exacutive Directors’ fees 199 50
Non-executive Directors’ share-based payments 295 —
Total 494 50

Fees to non-executive Directors of $67,500 were outstanding at 31 December 2014 (2013 $12,500)
and were paid in shortly after the year end

Executive management and Dwecteors of the Company control 12 7% of the voting shares of the
Company as of 31 December 2014 (2013 18 1%)

The Group has not engaged in any other transactions with key managerment personnel or other related
parties

Other related party transactions
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Loss

2014 2013
For the year ended 31 December: $'000 $'000
Purchase of goods
Equity accounted investee 1,879 —
Consolidated Statement of Financia! Position

2014 2013
As of 31 December: $'000 $'000
Purchase of goods outstanding balance
Equity accounted mvestee 33 -

(24) Taxation
Amounts recogmised in profit or loss
No current income tax expense was recorded for UK or US junsdictions for the years ended
31 December 2014 and 2013 due to accumulated losses

2014 2013
For the year ended 31 December: $°000 $'000
Net loss 57,706 42,707
Income taxes - =
Net loss before taxes 57,706 42,707
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Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate

The Group 1s pnmarily subject to taxation in the US, therefore the reconciliation of the effective tax
rate has been prepared using the US statutory tax rate A reconciliation of the US statutory rate to the
effective tax rate 15 as follows

2014 2013

% %

Weighted average statutory rate 350 350
Effect of state tax rate in US 5.4 53
Credits 2.8 26
Share-based payment remeasurement 26.6 {7 9)
Other {8.2) (2 9)
Current year losses for which no deferred tax asset 1s recognised (61.6) (32 1)

Factors that may affect future tax expense

The Group 13 pnmarily subject to taxation in the US and UK Additionally, the Group Is exposed to state
taxation n varous junsdicttons throughout the US Changes in corporate tax rates can change both the
current tax expense {benefit) as well as the deferred tax expense (benefit) The main UK corporate tax
rates enacted for the taxation financial years (1 Apnl to 31 March the following calendar year) 2014 and
2013 are 21% and 23%, respectively The maximum corporate tax rate in the US for the corresponding
penods 1s 35%

Unrecognised Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items, because ik is not
probable that future taxable profit will be avalable agamnst which the Group can use the benefits
therefrom

2014 2013
As of 31 December $'000 $'000
Operating tax losses 59,586 32,170
Capital losses @ 1,952 2,017
Research credits " 3,820 2,616
Temporary differences © 17,829 11,616
Deferred tax assets 83,187 48,419
Other temporary differencas @ (974) {824)
Deferred tax llabilities (974) (824)
Deferred tax assets, net, not recongised 82,213 47,595

{1) exprra starting in 2024
(2) exprre starting In 2015
{3) generally will expire 20 years subsequent to the time the deduction is taken
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

Deferred tax 1s measured at the rates that are expected to apply n the pernod when the temporary
differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the statement of financial position date The reduction in the main rate of UK comoration
tax to 20% (from 23%) was substantally enacted on 2 July 2013 and will apply from 1 Apnl 2015

However, the UK corporation tax rate initially reduced from 23% to 21% from 1 Apnl 2014 The change
in the UK corporate tax rate did not matenally impact the calculation of the deferred tax assets as these
assets are generally exposed to tax m US junsdiction

There wers no movements in deferred tax recogrised in income or equity i 2014 or 2013 as the
deferred tax asset was not recognised in any of those years

(25) Subsequent Events
The Company has evaluated subsequent events through 28 Apnl 2015, which 1s the date the
consolidated financial infermation 1s avalable to be issued

BndgeSat, Inc

BndgeSat, Inc was formed n February 2015 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Foreland Technologies,
Inc BndgeSat s developing an optical connectivity system that aims to increase the speed, secunty
and efficiency of data transmissions from Low Earth Orbit (LEO) satellites at a reduced cost compared
with traditonal radio frequency solutions

SiEnergy Systems, LLC

In March 2015, SiEnergy was awarded a convertible grant of $300,000 from the Massachusetts
Clean Energy Centre {"MassCEC") under therr AmplfyMass program The full amount of the grant
was receved in March 2015 Funds shall be used solely for the cost of working capital and bustness
activities incurred by SiEnergy related to the ARPA-E award receved dunng 2014 The grant has an
automatic conversion provision whereby 1t automatcally converts into secunties of SIEnergy upon a
consumption of a qualfied financing as defined by the grant agreement Cptional conversion may
occur at the option of MassCEC () immediately pnor to, but contingent upon, a Major Transaction as
dsfined by the grant, (1) any tme on or after the fifth anniversary of the grant, or (in) upon or during the
occurrence of an event of default as defined by the agreement Based on the tirming of the conversion,
the convarsion ratio at which the grant converts into SiEnergy secunties equals 75% to 100% of the
COMnversion prce

Optio Labs, Inc

In April 2015, Optio Labs, Inc acquired substantialty all of the assets of Oculis Labs, Inc , the developer
and owner of the PrivateEye and Chameleon device screen secunty software for a total consideration
of $500,000, of which $380,000 was due at closing (net of $27,500 advanced by Optio Labs) and
$120,000 due one year from the date of closing (net of $65,000 advanced by Optio Labs) plus a royalty
consideration equal to 10% of net sales of the PrivateEye and Chameleon products for a period of three
years following the date of closing, provided, the deferred cash payment and the royalty consideration
are subject to offset against indemnification claims by Optio Labs against Oculis Labs

SciFluor Life Sceences, LLC

In Aprit 2015, SaiFtour successfully raised $30 milion in Series A preferred stock financing, of which
Allied Minds participated with $4 8 milion for 501,857 shares of the preferred stock and the remainder
was provided by existing shareholders of the Group
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Dissolved Subsidiaries
Aled Minds Devices, LLC and Broadcast Routing Fountains, LLC, wholly-owned subsichanes of the
Group, wers dissolved subsequent to year end n April 2015

The impact of this was assessed in the Group financials as of 31 December 2014 and unrecoverable
amounts were wntten off
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Company Balance Sheet

As of 31 December Note 2014
$ ‘000
Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiary 2 169,429
Total non-current assets 169,429
Current assets :
Cash at bank and in hand 3 1,639
Trade and other receaivables 33
Loan to subsidiary 4 131,500
Total current assets 133,172,
Total assets 332,601
Equity ——
Share capital 5 3,411 |
Share premium 5 153,442
Merger reserve 185,544
Other reserve 5 1,286 i
Translation reserve 5 (10,209)
Accumulated deficit 5 {1,036y
Total equity 332,438,
Current habilihes i
Trade and other payables 163,
Total current habilities 163
Total iabilites 163!
Total equity and hiabiiities 332,601

Registered number 8998697

The company presents is financial statements from the date of incorporation on 15 Apni 2014 to
31 Dacernber 2014 The financial staterments on pages 148 to 151 were approved by the Board of Directors
and authonsed for 1ssue on 28 Apnl 2015 and signed on its behalf by

Christopher Silva -
Chief Executive Officer @_
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Notes to the
Financial Statements

{1) Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation and Measurement
The financial statements of the parent company have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention,
In accordance waith the Companies Act 2006 and applicable United Kingdom accounting standards A
summary of the more important accounting pclicies which have been applied consistently throughout
the year are set out below

Functional and Presentation Currency
The functional currency of the parent company 1s Brtish Pounds The financial statements of the parent
company are presented in US dollars

Foreign Currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the parent
company at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and iabilities
denominated n foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are retranslated to the functional currency
at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date Foreign exchange differences ansing on translation are
recogrised in the income statement Non-monetary assets and liabihties that are measured in terms of
hustoncal cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction
Non-monetary assets and habilhies denorminated n foreign currencies that are stated at far value are
retranslated to the functicnal currency at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the farr value was
determined

On translation of the Company financial statements from functional currency to presentational currency
the assets and labilities are translated at the closing exchange rates Profit and loss accounts are
translated at the average rates of exchange during the year Gains and losses ansing on these translations
are taken to reserves

Investments

Investments are stated at histonc cost less any provision for imparment in value and are held for long-term
investment purposes Provisions are based upon an assessment of events or changes in circumstances
that indicate that an impawrment has occurred such as the performance and/or prospects {including
the financial prospects) of the investee company being significantly below the expectations on which
the investment was based, a significant adverse change in the markets in which the investee company
operates or a detenoration in general market conditions
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Intercompany Loans

All ntercompany loans are inhally recognised at far value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost Where intercompany icans are intended for use on a continuing basis in the Company’s activities
and there 15 no intention of therr settlement in the foreseesable future, they are presented as current
assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash eqguivalents include all highly iquid instruments with onginal matunities of three months
or less
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Notes to the
Financial Statements (contnued)

Impairment

If there 1s an indication that an asset might be impaired, the Company will perform an imparment review
An asset1s impaired if the recoverable amount, being the higher of net realisable value and value n use,
15 less than its carrying amount Value in use 1s measured based on future discounted cash flows (“DCF™)
attrnbutable to the asset In such cases, the carrying value of the asset is reduced to recoverable amount
with a comesponding charge recognised in the profit and loss account

Financial Instruments

Currently the Company does not enter into dernvative finangial instrurnents Financial assets and financial
habilities are recogrnised and cease to be recognised on the basis of when the related titles pass to or
from the Company

Share-based Payments

Share-based payment arrangements in which the Company receives goods or services as consideration
for its own equity instruments are accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment transactions,
regardless of how the equity instruments are obtained by the Company

The grant date far value of share-based payment awards granted to employees 1s recogrised as an
employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the penod that the employees become
unconditionally entitled to the awards The far value of the options granted 1s measured using an option
valuation modsl, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted
The amount recognised as an expense Is adjusted to reflect the actual number of awards for which
the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount
ultimately recognised as an expense 1s based on the number of awards that do meet the related service
and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date For share-based payment awards with
non-vasting conditions, the grant date far value of the share-based payment 1s measured to reflect such
conditions and there is no true-up for differences between expected and actual outcomes

{2) Investment in subsidiary

2014

$'000

Balance at 15 Apni -
Additions 218,085
Imparment -
Disposals —
Effect from currency translatton (18,656)

Balance at 31 December 199,429

Investment in subsidiary represents the Company's investment n Alled Minds, LLC as a result of the
reverse acquisihon descnbed above in note 16 on page 133, immediately pror to the Company’s the
initial public offering on the London Stock Exchange in June of 2014 Alled Minds LLC operates in the
US as aU S -focused science and technology development and commercralisation company For a
summary of the Company’s indirect subsidianes see note 11
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(3) Cash and cash equivalents

2014

As of 31 December $'000
Bank balances 1,639
Cash and cash equivalents 1,639

{4) Loan to subsidiary

2014

$'000

Balance at 15 Apri -
Additions 142,531
Impawrment -
Disposals -
Effect from currency translation (11,031)
Balance at 31 December 131,500

The Company has loaned its excess cash to its operating subsidiary Alled Minds LLC tc be further
deployed in support of the continuing operations of the Group The note bears an interest of 1 25% and
1s repayable upon demand However, there 1s no intention of its settiement n the foreseeable future

(5) Share capital and reserves

Other

Share capital Share Merper reserve Translaton Accumutated Total

Amount premium reserve reserve reserve deficit equity
Shares $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 0
>
Balance at 15 Aprt 2014 - - - - - - - - g
Issuance of ordinary shares 205,628,155 3,263 142 244 185 544 - 62 - 331 13 Q.
Exercise of stock options 8817 424 148 11108 - - 74 - 11272 o
Equity-settied share based payments - - - - 1346 - - 1,346 'C_D._
Loss for the year - - - - - - (1,038} {1,036) &
Foregn cumency ranslation - - - — 50 {10,187} - {10,257) [12]
Balance at 31 Decemnber 2014 214 445 579 3411 153 442 185 544 1288 {10,209} (1038) 332,438 g
|
(=
Alled Minds plc was incorporated with the Companies House under the Companies Act 2008 as a 7]

public company on 15 Apnl 2014 Full detad of the share capital and reserves activity for the year can
be found In note 16 on page 133 to the consolidated financial statements

(8) Profit and loss account
As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company’s profit and loss account has
not been included in these financial statements The Company’s loss for the year was $1,036,000

(7) Directors' remuneration, emptoyee information and share-based payments
The remuneration of the Directors of the Company 1s disclosed in note 23 on page 143 Full details for
therr remuneration can be found 1n the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 63 to 87 Full detall
of the share-based paymsnt charge and related disclosures can be found n note 6 on page 116 to the
consohdated financial statements

The Company had no employees during 2014
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